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STATUS OF FEDERALLY CONDUCTED AGENT
ORANGE STUDIES

TUESDAY, MAY 3, 1983

Houvusk or REPRESENTATIVES,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON QVERSIGHT AND INVESTIGATIONS,
CoMMITT® , ON VETERANS  AFFAIRS,
Washington, D.C.
The subcommittee met, pursuz .o notice, at 8:30 a.m. in room

884, Cannon House Office Building, don. G. V. “Sonny” Montgom-
ery (chairman of the subcommittee) »residing.

ent: Representatives Montgomery, Penny, Rowland, Evans,
Hillis, Burton, and Sundquist.

OPENING STATEMENT OF CHAIRMAN MONTGOMERY

Mr. MoNTGOMERY. Good morning, the subcommittee will come to
order. We are meeting this morning to receive testimony from
Members of Congress, the Veterans' Administration, the rt-
ment of Health and Human Services, and the Department of the
Air Force on the current status of federally conducted agent
orange studies, as well as the State of Tennessee's Select Commit-
tee on Veterans’ Affairs on studies they have recently completed.

As you know, at the direction of this committee, the epidemiolog-
ical study on the effects of exposure to l.e?ent orange mandated lg{
Public Law 96-151, has been transfer from the Veterans’ Ad-
ministration to the Centers for Diseage Control. I want to empha-
size that the transfer of responsibility for the study from VA to
CDC was in no way a reflection upon the VA’s ability to conduct
such a study, but simply was based upon the belief that the results
of the study, if conducted by an entity with no responsibility over
veterang’ benefits and services, woul({ be more readily acceptable
by the veterans who may be affected. However, the VA is continu-
ing to be heavily involved in the overall picture, and we are par-
ticularly interested in the progress of VA's twin and mortality
studies, as well as the joint EPA/VA retrospective study of dioxins
and furans in adipose (fatty) tissue of Vietnam veterans. Also of in-
terest is the Ranch Hand study conducted by the Air Force, which is
now in its final stages. We will hear from the Centers for Disease
Control on their progress. It should be pointed out that the final
agreement between VA and CDC was gigned on January 14, 1983,
8o CDC hasn't had a great deal of time to implement their actions
to commence the study.

Before hearing from our witnesses, 1 request that a letter, with
enclosures, I recently received from the Australian Ambassador to
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the United States, Sir Robert Cotton, be made a part of the hearing
record.! Ambassador Cotton's letter refers to this subcommittee’s
hearing of September 15, 1982, concerning agent orange, and re-
ports that the Department of Veterans’ Affairg in Canberra, in
reading that hearing record, noticed that the statement of Mr.
Lewis Milford of the National Veterans Law Center indicates a sig-
nificant misunderstanding of the Australian Government’s action
in regard to :fent Orange.

Mr. Milford stated that 70 percent of veterans from Australia
have had their claims granted on the basis of agent orange. The
Ambassador’s letter explaina that some 70 percent of claims made
by veterans of all conflicts in the Australian repatriation system
are successful, and further explains that of the 478 claims accepted
which mention possible exposure to chemicals, not agent orange
alone, only one was accepted on chemical exposure grounds. If
there is no objection, the letter will be made a part of the hearing
record. A copy of Ambassador Cotton’s letter has also been placed
before each subcommittee member,

Additionally, if there is no objection, I would like to include in
the hearing record a memorandum of February 24, 1983, from Dr.
Peter M. Beach, staff director of the agent orange working group,
listing Federal research on agent orange,? as well as a statement
submitted by the American ion.3

I would like to recognize the gentleman from Tennessee, Mr.
Sunquist, who is certainly a fine member of this subcommittee as
well as the House Veterans’ Affairs Committee, I appreciate very
much him coming to my State recently where we conducted hear-
ings on different issues affecting veterans. The Chair would like to
recognize the gentleman from Tennessee.

Mr. Sunpquist. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I would like to commend you for your leadership on this commit-
tee. We were visiting a few minutes ago and these folks were brag-
ging on the Veterans’ Committee and your leadership. I just totally
agree with that.

Mr. MonTGoMERY. Thank you.

Mr. Sunpquist. Mr. Chairman, I would like to introduce some
distinguished people from Tennessee. It is privilege for them to be
here today. First of all, cur Commissioner of Veterans’ Affairs, the
Honorable William “Dusty”’ Roden, commissioner, Tennessee De-

rtment of Veterans' Affairs. To his left is Representative Ralph

elton who represents Sullivan County and several other counties,
but his home is in Sullivan County. 1 also want to introduce an old
lifetime friend of mine, Representative U. A. Moore, Shelby
County. And then Mr. Jeff Doran, who is the chief of staff assistant
for the Tennessee Select Committee on Veterans' Affairs,

Mr. Chairman, I appreciate you allowing them to be here and
testify today.

Mr. MoNTGOMERY. Thank you, Don. I have a warm interest in
Tennessee, living close to Tennessee and having the privilege of
going to the McCallre School for 3 years in Chattancoga. [ have a
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nice warm feeling for Tennessee. I enjoyed seeing “Dusty” in Mem-
phis when we had a hearing there last year.

You may proceed as you wish, We have the same problems that
other subcommittees have. If you could summarize your state-
ments, your full statements will be put in the record.

STATEMENT OF U. A. MOORE, A STATE REPRESENTATIVE, HOUSE
OF REPRESENTATIVES, STATE OF TENNESSEE, ACCOMPANIED
BY RALPH YELTON, STATE REPRESENTATIVE, HOUSE OF REP-
RESENTATIVES, STATE OF TENNESSEE; WILLIAM H. RODEN,
JR., COMMISSIONER, TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS'
AFFAIRS; AND JEFF G. DORAN, CHIEF STAFF ASSISTANT, TEN-
NESSEE COMMITTEE OF VETERANS' AFFAIRS

Mr. Moore. Thank You, Mr. Chairman,

It gives me %reat pleasure and honor to appear before this com-
mittee today. This is my second time to appear before this commit-
tee, and we were treated with the kind of treatment that every in-
dividual representing veterans has been treated in the past.

First, | would like to extend my appreciation to you for allowing
us this time to share with you our findings of a comprehensive
study relating to agent orange. As a member of the Tennessee
House of Representatives and the Select Committee on Veterans’
Affairs, it iives me great pleasure to appear before you teday on
behalf of the State of Tennessee and those special people in our
State, the veterans.

To my left, who will continue this report, is Jeff Doran, chief of
staff for our committee. At this time, I would like for him to con-
tinue this report for the committee.

Mr. DoraN. Good morning. I am pleased to be here today to dis-
cuss with you findings of Tennessee’s study on agent orange and to
make recomendations as a result of that study.

In my remarks today, I will provide you with a summary of testi-
mony as recorded by the committee during the course of our study
relative to dioxin and problems encountered by veterans in obtain-
ing medical treatment for perceived herbicide-related illnesses.

For the initial testimony, the Select Committee on Veterans’ Af-
fairs learned that Vietnam veterans had experienced health prob-
lems which they felt were linked to exposure to agent orange. Of
those veterans examined at various VA medical centers, many re-
gorbed sugpected herbicide-related illnesses, including cancer, birth

efective offapring, liver dysfunction, and a number of other physi-
cal ailments and psychological disorders. Many veterans had fa-
thered children born with birth defecta and others testified they
were victims of liver damage, kidney problems and delayed stress
syndrome, Wives of Vietnam veterans also reported miscarriages
and/or hysterectomies.

Another issue brought to our attention was the quality of medi-
cal assistance available for veterans and their families. Instances of
discourteous staff and lengthy waiting periods for medical care
were mentioned. Other instances concern the dispens:inlg1 of drugs
imprudently, which veterans felt were ploys to keep them away
from the VA medical centers for extended periods of time. The
availability of medical services for children born with birth defects



was a major concern. As many veterans testified, they simply couid
:llot afford the medical treatment necessary to care for those chil-
ren.

Another problem area was the location and availability of medi-
cal records. Veterans told committee members that they had tried
repeatedly to locate their medical records without success.

Research and laboratory tests to determine the significance of
herbicide and exposure of such to humans were areas of concern
felt most needed by veterans. They desire answers to questions that
only scientific research can answer, and they believe that, with the
scientific research and the laboratory facilities available today and
the commitment of sympathetic physicians, that these answers can
be obtained.

Finally, veterans feel they are being ignored by their Govern-
ment. They want the Government to fund research studies to de-
termine the physical effect of herbicide exposure and to make these
facts known. The VA sheould be recognizing other health problems
since many of the same symptoms have occurred in a sizeable
number of Vietnam veterans.

From the committee’s study of the disturbing allegations made
with regard to health hazards experienced by Vietnam veterans,
the committee has determined the following recommendations;

We recommend that initiated research efforts by the Veterans’
Administration designed to find answers to the many questions
surrounding dioxin and other herbicides be continued to allow vet-
erans this service of care and research at the hands of the Federal
Government. Since the Veterans' Adwministration is the Govern-
ment agency for services to our Nation’s veterans, it seems only ap-
propriate that medical research and efforts to determine the sig-
nificance of dioxin and agent orange be left to the sole control of
the Veterans’ Administration.

Second, we recommend that the budget for the Veterans’ Admin-
istration be fully funded to allow the Veterans’ Administration to
move in a more expeditious manner in research and laboratory
testing relative to possible adverse health effects in those exposed
to potentially dangerous herbicides.

ird, we recommend that in this money appropriated by Con-
gress, that the agent orange examinations being administered by
the Veterans' Administration be fully funded to allow these veter-
ans an opportunity to seek medical assistance for conditions relat-
ed to agent orange.

Four, we recommend that the Veterans’ Administration medical
centers’ personnel be more sensitive to the physical and psychologi-
cal needs of veterans who claim exposure to agent orange and be
empathetic with these needs as veterans are examined, treated and
counseled, and work to establish more positive rapport with the
veterans who seek such medical assistance.

In conclusion, Mr. Chairman, the committee believes there must
be a concerted and coordinated effort by State and Federal govern-
ments to maintain the quality of service and programs traditicnal-
ly awarded to those who have borne the battle. We believe the Vet-
erans’ Administration must take a more aggressive stance in ad-
dressing this issue of possible adverse health effects on American
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gervice personnel from agent orange or other herbicides used in
Vietnam.

We believe the State, through efforts of government committees
and cooperation with the Veterans’ Administration, can listen to
the many problems that confront cur State’s veterans and possibly
offer veterans a more direct explanation of the government’s in-
volvement in research and the programs related to agent orange.

Finally, we believe that, through these combined efforts of both
the State and Federal governments, Tennessce and the United
States can continue its commitment to those who served our coun-
try in time of war.

Thank vou very much.

[The statement of the Tennessee delegation appears on p. 79.]

Mr. MontcoMeRY. Thank you, Mr. Doran.

Mr. Sundquist, do you have any comments or questions?

Mr. SunpQuist. Mr. Chairman, I would just like to thank these
entlemen for heing here today. I want to assure them that their
ull testimony will be made part of the record. Thank you.

Mr. MontcoMmERY. Thank you.

Before recognizing Mr, Penny and the other members of the sub-
committee, let me ask the members of the legiglature to tell my
good friend, Ned Ray McWherter, the speaker of the house, hello
and that we asked about him. He often comes to our State and also
comes up here a great deal.

How did the State of Tennessee become involved in the agent
orange issue—quite frankly, more than any other State, as far as I
can determine?

Mr. Moore. Let me direct that to Commissioner Rhoden, who has
been on top of that problem.

Mr. ReHobeEN, Mr. Chairman, I think this primarily came about
because of some veterans, particularly in t]l?ne eastern Tennesgsee
area, who felt that they were victims of various types of maladies
attributed to agent orange, contacted their members of the general
assembly and my office and asked that there be some opportunity
for them to express their concerns and their conditions.

Mr. 1. V. Hillis, a member of the committee, a representative
from Sparta, Tenn., convened the committee in Rogersville, and
then there were subsequent hearings in Donelson in the Nashville
area, and then also at the Legisiative Plaza in Nashville, which
these people attended. We had, I would say, 200 to 300 people at
the Rogersville meeting. The meetings in Nashville were not quite
ao well attended with numbers, but the information given to them
was very significant,

So it came from a concern that was expressed to our legislature
and the Select Committee on Veterans' Affairs, particularly in the
House of Refpresentatives. Our State has been very active in veter-
ang' affairs for some 8 years, and it was in response to this inquiry.

Mr. MonTgoMERY. As I understand it, you are requesting from
this subcommittee and the Veterang’ Affairs Committee of the
House of Representatives in the U.S. Congress that the Govern-

ment move ahead on research in this area; is that basically cor-
rect;? You are not doing any research yourself in Tennessee, are
you?



Mr. RHODEN. No, sir; nothing other than taking the information
and passing it along and sharing it with our VA medical centers.
What our concern is that there be a concerted effort by the Veter-
ang’ Administration with all capabilities at the Federal and State
level to do the research. But we are not doing any pure research
ourselves with regard to this.

Mr. MonTGoMERY. Thank you.

Mr. Penny.

Mr. PEnNY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I am delighted to have the legislators from Tennessee and their
staff with us this morning. As a State senator in the Minnesota
Legislature, I was involved with the establishment of an agent
orange referral program at the State level. I want to commend you
for your interest in this very important issue. I understand that in
addition to your encouragement that we continue strong efforts for
funding agent orange research, you are also supportive of some
type of assistance in their expenses for medical examinations for
people who feel they are a victim of exposure to agent orange,
There is legislation pending before our subcommittee here that
does speak to the issue of compensation for agent orange victims
until such time as the study is complete.

1 wonder, if you have had a chance to review that legislation?
Would you like to comment here about your feelings on that partic-
ular hill?

Mr. RHODEN. I am not familiar with the entire content of it. I
think there is a very basic concept and principle on which the Vet-
erans’ Administration is operated. I think those of us who are pro-
fessionals in the field feel very strongly that this must be contin-
ued, and that is that there must be scientific evidence that would
su&port any kind of a pregram on a permanent basis for remedy.
Otherwise, I think we will completely destroy the scientific basis on
which our Veterans’ Administration compensation and medical
care program has been established.

But there is a great concern to which you are addressing on the
Eart of these young men—there are some young women invelved—

ut a great deal of concern on their part in not knowing. I think
that is more of a concern than the matter of their being compen-
sated. I think they are looking for more information, and certainly
they are looking for medical attention,

As indicated in our report, many of these people are poor people
who do not have the resources to provide for their children whom
they feel may be affected as a result of their exposure. These are
the things to which we would direct your attention.

Mr. MONTGOMERY. Another area that I think you recommended
in your report is that the Veterans’ Administration certainly does
a goed job in examining these young men and women who might
have been exposed to agent orange in the veterans hospitals. %r
Custis, who is Chief Megical Director of the Veterans’ Administra-
tion, will talk to us further about this examination and testing of
these veterans who have had exposure to agent orange.

I would like to thank you on behalf of this committee.

Mr. Hillis, the ranking minority member of this subcommittee,
wag delayed, but is here now. Mr. Hillis, I would like to recognize
you at this time.
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Mr. HiLuis. I want to thank all of you gentlemen for taking the
time to come up and sharing your experience with us. We are very
concerned of course about agent orange This committee is trying to
look everywhere we can to sift out the scientific bases and evidence
and to reach conclusions that can help us soive some of the prob-
lems that may be associated with it,

I certainly appreciate you all taking the time to come up here
and share your experience with us,

Mr. MoNTGOMERY. Thank you, Mr, Hillis.

Also, it seems that before we finish reaching some conclusions on
agent orange, that the Federal Government would have spent more
than $100 million to get to the bottom of this situation. So I think
the funding will be there. You requested there be enough funding
to come up with a good research on this.

The problem is that it just takes a lot of time, We were a little
il:ﬂ:e ﬁettmg started, but it seems now that these studies are moving

ea

Thank you very much for being here this morning.

Mr. Moore. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We do appreciate this
committee for the job that they are doing. It helps us out quite a
bit to know you are here. ThanK

Mr. MonTtgoMERY. Thank you. We are going fo take care of the
veterans as long as we operate up here.

Mr. Moore. Thank you, sir.

r. MonTeoMERY. 1 would like to invite to the witness table Mr.
Bart Kull, Special Assistant to the Deputy Under Secretary for
Governmental Affairs, Department of Health and Human Services.

Mr. Kull, we will let you introduce these other persons with you
this morning.

STATEMENT OF BART KULL, SPECIAL ASSISTANT TO THE
DEPUTY UNDER SECRETARY FOR GOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS
AND SPECIAL ASSISTANT TO THE CHAIRMAN, AGENT ORANGE
WORKING GROUP, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES, ACCOMPANIED BY CARL KELLER, SENIOR EPIDEMI-
OLOGIST, NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH
SCIENCES, NATIONAL INSTITUTES OF HEALTH; VERNON HOUK,
DIRECTOR, CENTER FOR ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH, CENTERS
FOR DISEASE CONTROL; J. DAVID ERICKSON, DIRECTOR,
CENTER FOR ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH; AND WILLIAM E.
HALPERIN, NATIONAL INSTITUTE FOR OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY
AND HEALTH

Mr. KuLL. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman and members of
the committee,

I am Bart Kull, Special Assistant to the Acting Deputy Under
Secretary for Intergovernmental Affairs, Department of Health
and Human Services. I am also assistant to the acting chairperson
of the agent orange working group of the cabinet council on human
resources.

I am very pleased to appear before the subcommittee to report
on the activities of the agent orange working

With me, to my left, is Dr. Car]l Keller, mor Epidemioclogist
with that National Institute of Environmental Health Sciences of



the Natjonal Institutes of Health, and chairman pro tempore of the
agent orange working group’s science panel.

Dr. Keller, a long-terim member of the working group’s science
panel is serving as chairman pro tempore of the panel to insure the
uninterrupted flow of activitiee by the panel until a permanent
chairperson is designated.

The former chairman of the science panel, Dr. Vernon Houk, to
my right, Director of the Center for Environmental Health of the
Centers for Disease Control, has stepped down from the chairman-
ship. Although he remains an important member of the science
panel, he proposed and it was agreed, that with the recent transfer
of the responsibility for the conduct of the VA epidemiological
study to the Centers for Disease Control, it would not be appropri-
ate for him to remain as chairman because of the review responsi-
bilities of the science panel and the major role taken in such re-
views by the chairperson of that panel.

I understand that this committee is mainly interested in the
status of various human research studies currently underway or in
the planning stages.

Representatives of the various agencies involved in this research
are present to provide reports on studies under their purvue, I will
}‘imit my remarks to an overview of those considerable research ef-
orts.

Since my appearance here on September 15 of last year, the VA
has agreed by interagency agreement signed January 13 and 14
that the CDC, the Centers for Disease Control, be provided the re-
sources and the authority for the design, implementation, analysis,
and scientific interpretation of the epidemiology study mandated
by Congress under section 307 of Public Law 96-151, as amended.

The Office of Management and Budget has approved the hiring
of personnel by CDC for fiscal year 1983 for these purposes. The
preparation of a protocol for the study is well undta't'-.wa,[\;.3

Data collection for the CDC birth J:efects study will be completed
by the end of this year with preliminary analysis expected shortly
thereafter. The representative from CDC will provide the commit-
tee with much greater detail on these topics.

Similarly, the CDC/NIOSH dioxin registry of U.S. Production
Workers is proceeding on schedule. The establishment and mainte-
nance of an international registry of similar workers in other coun-
tries apéacears feasible. The National Institute of Environmental
Health Sciences will meet with the principal investigator from the
International Agency for Research on Cancer, as well as a scientif-
ic advisory group, on May 20. The purpose of that meeting will be
to decide whether to begin work on the development of the actual
international registry and of a protocol for an epidemioclogy study
derived from cohorts obtained from that registry. It is anticipated
that this will be approved. This registry will be compatible with
the NIOSH Dioxin istry, thus improving the numerical power
of mortality and other data.

The National Cancer Institute is conducting a case control study
of lymphoma and soft tissue sarcoma to test the association be-
tween the use of herbicides and the incidence of lymphoma and
goft tissue sarcoma among agricultural applicators in the State of
Kansas. The interview phase of this study is 50 percent complete



and should be 100 percent complete by the end of September with
final resulis expected by the spring of next year.

Additional studies are being conducted by the States of Minneso-
ta and lowa where insecticides are generally applied simultaneous-
ly with herbicides to corn and other crops. A similar case control
design is being employed in these areas to compare pesticide expo-
sures in general among cases of leukemia and lymphoma and suit-
able controls. Although information will be obtained on herbicide
use, we may not be able to separate possible effects of exposure to
herbicides alone from those exposed to herbicides and other pesti-
cides. Results of these studies should be available in late 1984,

The Veterans’ Administration is engaged in a number of studies
on agent orange exposure and the Vietnam experience. For in-
stance, a mortality study is well underway to analyze and compare
death rates and cause of death between veterans with service in
Vietnam and comparable veterans who did not serve there. Also,
the Veterans’ Administration is planning a study of identical twins
in which one twin served in Vietnam and the other did not. VA
expects to have its protocol completed, including peer review, by
October. As you know, the VA is engaged in other registry and re-
search work, including the agent orange registry and dioxin-in-fat-
tissue studies. The representative from the Veterans’ Administra-
tion will elaborate on thege topies shortly.

The mortality data from the Air Force ranch hand study will be
released soon. Data should be available for public release after
review by the Advisory Committee next month. It will be followed
with morbidity data later this year. Air Force Gen. Murphy Ches-
ney will he providing detailed testimony on this today.

Finally, following the recent departure of James Stockdale,
chairman of the agent orange working group, Ms. Kae Rairdin has
been appointed Acting Deputy Under Secretary for Intergovern-
mental Affairs and acting chairperson of the working group.

Secretary Heckler is seeking a permanent replacement to fill
these important positions, Having served with Mrs. Heckler on this
committee, you know, I am sure, of her genuine longstanding con-
cern about this issue and the fact that, as a member of the Cabinet,
she considers it to be of high priority.

In the meantime, research, the oversight of research, contacts
with Members of Congress, the public and the veterans groups and
t};he_general flow of information has continued on an uninterrupted

asis.

I appreciate this opportunity to provide this introduction, and
would be happy to respond to any questions.

Mr. MonTGOMERY, Why don’t we hear from Dr. Houk, and then
we will go into questions, if there is no objection.

Dr. Houk has been here before. If you could summarize your
statement, it would help us very much.

Dr. Hour. Thank you, Mr. chairman and members of the sub-
comimittee.

I am Dr. Vernon Houk, Director of the Center for Environmentat
Health. [ am accompanied by Dr. David Erickson, director of the
CEH'’s agent orange projects; and Dr. William Halperin of the Na-
tional Institute for Occupational Safety and Health.
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I am pleased to be here this morning in response to your request
for testimony regarding the plans for the Centers for Disease Con-
trol’s conduct of the epidemiological study mandated by Public Law
96-151, ag amended, regarding agent orange that the work CDC's
NIOSH has done in evaluating the health of workers who may
have been exposed to dioxin, the major toxic contaminant of agent
orange,

1 appeared before this subcommittee as chair, science panel,
agent orange working group on September 15 of last year. Since
the matter of CDC’s involvement in the epidemiology study was
mentioned at those hearings, CEC began consideration of the iggue
then. We determined as early as the first week of October that, if
called upon and provided with apprt:jpriate resources, it could
degign and conduct a acientifically sound study. On October 22, the
HHS Asgistant Secretary for Health, Dr. Ed Brandt, met with the
VA’'s Medical Director, %r. Custis, to begin discussions of transfer-
ring the responsibility of the study to CDC.

On October 27, I asked Dr, Paul Weisner, Director of the Chronic
Diseases Division and also Assistant Director for Medical Affairs of
the Center for Environmental Health, to assign staff and resources
to start work on development of a scientifically acceptable protocol
outline along the lines of other epidemiological investigations con-
ducted over the years at CDC. Dr. David Erickson agreed to chair a
task group of experienced medical epidemiologists and biostatisti-
cians from among CDC staff. They were aided by a VA senior staff
person loaned to us to give the CDC group firsthand information
about the previous work in the area. The task group held its first
meeting on November 1, 1982. During the first few days of Novem-
ber, its membhers {raveled extensively to several cities to meet on
the subject with the VA, Army, Air Force, National Institutes of
Health personnel, and with the developers of the UCLA proposed
protocol which had previously been submitted to the VA.

I must say that I am proud of the energetic manner in which our
geientific staff attacked the task of developing a protocol outline.
By November &, they were meeting daily to complete the proposed
outline, which was submitted by Dr. Brandt to the Veterans’ Ad-
ministration on December 6. The outline we proposed included two
separate but related investigations—one to evaluate the proposed
long-termn health effects of exposure to U.S, ground forces to agent
orange; the other to make an assessment of the possible health ef-
fects of service in Vietnam.

The protocol outline calls for the participation of 80,000 veterans,
comprising of 5 cohorts, or groups, of 6,000 each. Three of these five
cohorts will provide data for the agent orange study, and the three
cohorts will be made up as follows: One cohort of veterans who
served in areas of Vietnam where herbicides were used and who
were likely exposed; a second cohort of veterans who, though serv-
ing in areas of Vietnam where herbicides were used, were unlikely
to have been exposed; and a third cohort of veterans who served in
areas of Vietnam where herbicides were not used. Data from the
fourth and fifth cohorts will be used in other investigation of the

ible health effects of the Vietnam experience. Of the two co-
orts in this related study, one will comprise Vietnam era veterans
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who served in Vietnam. The other will be made up of veterans who
served during the same years but in other parts of the world.

Each of the two concurrent studies wil have three major compo-
nents. First, a mortality assessment to determine which veterans
may have died since being discharged and the cause of death;
second, a health interview; and third, a comprehensive medical ex-
amination and laboratory assessment. This third component, the
examination and laboratory work, will be provided to 2,000 men
from each of the 5 cohorts. Although both of the concurrent studies
will have several other features in common, the sampling plan,
timetables, and some of the health oufcomes measured in the inter-
view and medical examinations will differ between the studies.
They are designed to answer related but different questions of im-
portance to Vietham veterans and their families.

Because of the particular concern that Vietnam veterans may be
at increased risk for contracting certain cancers, particularly soft
tissue sarcomas and lymphomas, we have since proposed an addi-
tional study of this problem and its relationship, if any, to service
in Vietnam. This addition has been approved by the Assistant Sec-
retary for Health as a critical third element of the CDC agent
orange epidemiology study and has been recommended by the
Public Health Service to the Veterans’ Administration for funding.

The choice of veterans for inclusion in the various study cohorts
will derive from review of military records from the Vietnam era.
Considerable work with records vrom Vietnam has already been
done in consultation and cooperation with the Department of De-
fense—primarily staff of the Army apent orange task force—and
the White House agent orange working group. CDC has assigned a
staff member to work full time with the Army agent orange task
force. We continue to be pleased with the energetic and dedicated
work of the Army agent orange task force under the able leader-
ship of Mr. Dick Christian.

In approving the interagency agreement with the Public Health
Service on January 13, the Veterans' Administration accepted the
agent orange exposure, as well as service in Vietnam studies con-
cept, and committed to provide $3 million to CDC to initiate action
to obtain OMB approval for 28 full-time staff positions during 1983
for the beginning phases of the studies, including the development
of the comprehensive protocol.

Since early November, a small agent orange projects staff within
the Center for Environmental Health has been preparing for the
planned studies. We are now in the process of recruiting the appro-
Friately qualified professional and support staffs for the continuing
ormative and implementation phases of the study. CDC is sched-
uled to have complete protocols, including one for our proposed soft
tissue sarcoma and lymphoma case control study, ready for peer
review and necessary policy and budget clearances by the end of
May 1983,

Mr. MonTtgomeRrY. Dr. Houk, would you mind summarizing?
Time is of the essence, not only for you, but for us. Take about 2
more minutes and summarize it, if you could. We try to keep a
panel of witnesses to about 10 minutes. We have a good attendance
here this morning, and I want the members to have an opportunity
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to ask questions. If you could summarize it in about 2 minutes, it
would be most helpful to the Chair.

Dr. Houx. Yes, sir.

In addition to that study, the CDC birth defects study, which is
funded by the Veterans' Administration and the Department of De-
fense is proceeding on schedule. As Mr., Kull said, we will have
data collected for analysis very soon thereafter.

The NIOSH dioxin registry, which we reported on before to this
committee, is proceeding. It is expected that a total of 6,000 people
will be registered at the end of this year, and the analysis will
Ehegin. That analysis will be necessarily slow, as all of the effects in

ere,

As was mentioned by Mr. Kull, NIOSH sent an individual to
IARC to determine the feasibility of including dioxin workers from
20 other eountries. That was found to be feasible, and now the Na-
tional Institute of Occupational Safety and Health is considering
funding that on an international basisg.

Along with the mortality in the Dioxin istry, we will also
very seriously consider using that registry for the analysis of other
morbidity and other outcomes as necessary, depending upon the
availability of the resources. It is important that that registry be
looked at very carefully, because we have latency of exposures that
date back to 1940.

I would like to conclude, then, if I may, by saying that in addi-
tion to the above studies, NIOSH continues to examine the report-
ed association between dioxin and diseases in occupationally relat-
ed workers. In 1977, cases of soft tissue sarcoma were identified in
Sweden, and a Swedish epidemiologic study—two studies, in fact—
showed an association. There were four small studies in this coun-
try that were reported to show no association. When those four
studies were completed, put together and analyzed, the Swedish
studies were corroborated. In addition, four more individuals dying
of soft tissue sarcoma were found in the dioxin workers.

In summing this question up, I think that we can say that we
that the information suggesting an association of soft tissue sarco-
ma in humans and exposure to dioxin products accumulating. Care-
ful epidemiologic data are needed. The questions of an association
of sarcomas and expeosure to phenoxy acids and chlorophenols is
blziﬁg addressed in the NIOSlPI istry mortality study and the

study. In addition, other studies which you will hear about
today are being conducted. Epidemiologic studies like these will
fml-t er delineate tlinji:l.association. . 41y with th
n suminary, we believe we are progressing very rapidly wi e
proposed VA epidemiology study that been assigned to us and that,
coupled with all of the other studies and the very energetic efforts
of the Federal Government and others, will help answer all of the
questions we seek.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We will be happy to respond to any
questions.

[The statements of Mr. Kull and Dr, Houk appear on p. 122.]

Mr. MoNTGOMERY. Thank you, Dr. Houk,

I will just set the stage, if I can, and then recognize my col-
leagues. Bagically, in the last couple of sentences you said that you
think there are ample atudies being conducted now through the dif-
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ferent departments and private institution so that we can come up
with some logical answer within a reasonable time on agent
orange?

Dr. Houk. Yes, sir, as we testified before, Mr. Chairman, there
are several studies underway now that may give some preliminary
- answers at the end of this year and the middle part of next year.

Mr. MonTgoMERY. What are those at the end of the year, so we
can get it for the record? '

Dr. Houk. Specifically, the agent orange study which will be
shortly after the end of the year.

Mr. MonTGOMERY. Who i8 doing the agent orange?

Dr. Houk. The birth defects study, we are doing that.

Mr. MonTGOMERY. You are doing that by the end of this year.

Dr. Houk. By the end of this year, we will have collected all of
the data, and the analysig will be out ghortly.

I believe the preliminary data of Ranch Hand is going to be an-
nounced reasonably shortly.

Mr. MonTGOMERY. That is being done by the Air Force?

Dr. Houk. By the Air Force.

Mr. MonTGoMERY. OK.

Dr. Houk. The NIOSH regisiry of dioxin workers, the data input
of the registry, will be completed, and we will look at that very
carefully and trying to get some analysis out of that as quickly as
we can.

M{m D‘{)IONTGOMERY. Who is doing that study, and what is the date
on that!

Dr. Houk. The NIOSH dioxin registry, the National Institute of
Occupational Safety and Health.

Mr. MontGoMmERY. OK.

Dr. Houk. The Veterans’ Administration’s proportionate mortal-
ity study, which I believe is scheduled for 1984—the end of 1984 or
mid-1984. Maybe Dr. Custis can do that. He is going to provide very
good information to this.

I believe the study that is going to be the longest in coming is
the very complex VA epidemiology study which we are currently
designing.

Mr. MonTGOMERY. Who i8 doing that?

Dr. Houk. The CDC is doing that, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. MoNTGOMERY. As I understand it, you have moved from
Washington to Atlanta to conduct this study; is that correct?

Dr. Houk. No. I have alwaya been in Atlanta at the Centers for
Disease Control—since 1968. In addition to my other duties, I was
chairman of the science panel of the agent orange work group
which brought me to Washington very frequently.

Mr. MonTGOMERY. That covers most of the studies.

Dr. Houk. There is a host of various other studies around. The
National Cancer Institute has studies looking at lymphomas, soft
tissue sarcoma in herbicide workers. 1 am not sure precisely when
that is scheduled to come out. But indeed a great deal of energetic
rapid work by all of the government agencies is going forward to
try to get this question answered.

Mr. MonTGoMERY. You feel comfortable, now that we have
gotten these studies moving, that you can come up with some an-

23-542 9 - 83 - 2
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swers within the year, and then several other studies will take
much longer. How much longer will they take?

Dr. Houk. We are scheduled to complete the epidemiology study
which we are contracting with the VA by interagency agreement is
scheduled for September of 1987. OTA believes that that iz optimis-
tic. We agree with that. We will do everything in our power to
insure that that comes in. Many of the registries that are being set
up, many of the other studies, initial results will be coming in and
probably will be looked at periodically every 5 years or so to see if
the results are different, are changing, or anything more could be
gleaned from those studies.

Mr. MoNTGOMERY. I have one question to Mr. Kull before yield-
ing to my colleague, Mr. Hillis.

When do you plan on filling these positions that have been men-
tioned here, the vacancies now in this area?

Mr. KuLL. Secretary Heckler, as 1 mentioned in my testimony
considers this a very high priority. As I am sure you can under-
stand, she has been deluged with a great deal of work since assum-
ing the position as Secretary. But I am reasonably confident that at
least the Deputy Under Secretary for Intergovernmental Affairs
position will be filled momentarily. By momentarily, I mean within
the next few days.

The Secretary, incidentally, has been to Vienna to the World
Health Organization meeting—! believe it is World Health—for
this entire week. We sort of expect that, on her return, she will
probably take some action in that regard. She has an interest, nat-
urally, because of her interest in this entire issue of finding and
putting in place persons of a high level of competence. We feel that
is very important that perhaps time be spent on that.

Mr. MonNTGoMERY. We miss Mrs. Heckler being on the commit-
tee. So I wish you would express to her that we are sorry she can’t
be here today.

Mr. Hillis.

Mr. Hirwis. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I have two or three questions. First, Dr. Houk, in your testimony,
you refer to these Swedish studies. You mentioned them here just a
moment ago. Can you tell us if you know how many cases are in-
volved that are under study in those particular studies?

Dr. Houk. Let me ask my colleague, Dr. Halperin, to answer you,
sir.

Dr. HarrerIN. There were several Swedish studies. In one, there
were 52 cases of soft tissue sarcoma, of which 25 percent of the
cases had phenoxy herbicide exposure. There is another study of
110 cases, and 13 percent of these cases had exposure. These cases
are case control studies. The bottom line on them is that there was
about a sixfold higher degree of exposure in the cases of soft tissue
sarcoma than would have been expected.

Mr. HiLLis. I am not an expert on these types of matters. But for
scientific purposes, are those representative numbers? Are there
sufficient numbers involved here in these cases? Do you weigh
them to be significant for scientific finding?

Dr. HaLpPERIN. The consistency of the results in Sweden is cer-
tainly impressive. On a technical basis, the excesses found were
statistically significant. As is true of epidemiology, one looks for
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consistency between results. I think that when you look at ihese
results in combination with the reanalysis of the U.S. cohorts,
there is accumulating evidence.

Mr. HiLuis. Recognizing that these studies are still going on, are
there any preliminary conclusions thot you couid give us that
might be helpful at this time to the committee?

r. Houk. Mr. Hillis, epidemiologic studies d2 not demonstrate
cause and effect. They demonstrate association. As I say—which is
different than what I said last year, if you remember, Mr. Chair-
man—we now believe that data is showing an association between
soft tissue sarcoma and exposure to dioxin contamination.

We need to further address that association very carefully to de-
termine the other parts and to delineatc that association as best
that we can.

Mr. Hinis. Mr. Kull, I understand on this same line, there are
also studies taken by the Nationai wancer Institute to test the asso-
ciation between the use of herbicides and the instances of diseases
among agriculture applications. This has been done out in Kansas
and the result will be due in the spring.
hIs %here any preliminary information you can share with us on
those’

Mr. KuLL. The study to compare herbicide exposure among cases
of lymphoma and soft tissue sarcoma is being conducted and a
report of the findings is expected, as you mentioned, in 1984. 1 am
not aware—and perhaps Dr. Carl Keller might be aware—of some
Freliminar information that has come forward. 1 am not personal-
vy aware of it.

Dr. KeLLER. I have recently contacted one of the principal inves-
tigators in this study, and there is no preliminary information at
this time. It is expected to be finished, the interviewing, by the end
of this fiscal year, and sometime early in 1984, a report, whenever
that analysis is completed.

Mr. Hiuis. Dr. Houk, how many people would you estimate are
involved in various studies that are underway in this field at the
present time, that would relate to what we are discussing here this
morning?

Dr. Houxk. I could only relate to the numbers that we have. You
mean study participants, not people working on the studies; is that
correct, sir?

Mr. HiLLis. Yes. What kind of forces have we marshaled to work
on the problem?

Dr. Houk. As we said, the VA epidemiology study which is being
planned is planned for 30,000 individuals. The birth defects study is
designed to get 5,400 children with birth defects out of the Atlanta
birth defects registry and compare them with 3,000 control babies
born during the same period of time.

The intitial registry of the National Institute of Occupational
Safety and Health will be about 6,000 individuals. In the IARC part
of that will be maybe another 4,000 or a number similar to that.

The veterans twins study, which they can address better than I
can, is, I think, 500 people. The veterans mortality study, if I re-
member correctly, will be around 60,000,

All of these studies, when put together, are really a very energet-
ic examination of this issue.
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I would like to make one comment. 1 recognize the desire for im-
mediate information as soon as possible. But the way one insures
that an epidemiologic study is biased is to start deing piecemeal
analysis of preliminary results and try to push it up a little bit
ahead of schedule. That will almost always bias studies.

Mr. HirLis. [ have one final question, Mr, Chairman.

Can you give the committee a figure of the costs of these various
studies? In other words, how much we are putting into them of a
monetary nature?

Dr. Houk. I can only do the cost of the studies as they relate di-
rectly to the Centers for Disease Control, and allow the other wit-
nesses before you do that.

The VA epidemiology study is estimated in the magnitude of $70
million, depending on how it is going to be done. The birth defects
study is approximately $2.5 million to complete. The NIOSH dioxin
registry is about $150,000, in addition to the work that they use of
IARC, the staff time that has been continuing to analyse these in-
formations.

Mr. MonTGoMERY. Thank you.

Mr. Penny.

Mr. PenNNy. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Dr. Houk, are you satisfied with the budget and staffing alloca-
tion for fiscal year 19837

Dr. Houk. For the VA epidemiclogy study, we entered into an
interagency agreement which the VA agreed to provide $3 million
and agreed to request and help us get additional positions. The po-
sitions are the very critical issue with something like this. We have
estimated that for this year, we needed 28 people, which comes
down into 14 full-time equivalents because they were available only
half the year. We just received permission for those 28 full-time po-
gitions on the eighth of April. We have been anticipating they will
have the process going forward of hiring people, seeking out the
best people that we can find for that.

The $3 million is enough for this year. In fact, we probably will
not expend all of that, and we are making arrangements with the
VA to still have that available to us in the following years, 1984
and the other years, where the big expenditures are going to come.

Mr. Pegnny. T don't recall seeing an appropriation for the VA
study on agent orange in the President’s fiscal year 1984 request.
Have you been working with the administration to get a supple-
mental request for fiscal year 19847

Dr. Houx. We have been working with the Veterans' Adminis-
tration, and Dr. Custis can best answer how that process goes. It is
my understanding that the request for both dollars and positions is
in the Veterans’ Administration, it was forwarded to them on April
17 by Dr. Brandt, and there were some preliminary discussions
about the dollar amount before that time, that this is an adequate
time for there to be a supplemental or an amendment or however
the budget people feel.

Mr. Penny, Can you give us a ballpark figure on the dollar
amount for 1984.

Dr. Houk. As I understand it, the preliminary studies are in the
order of magnitude of $7¢ million for the 5-year period.

Mr. PeEnNnY. OK.
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The interagency coordination that is underway for this study,
does that involve everyone, the Air Force, the Department of
Health and Human Services, the Veterans’ Administration? Is ev-
erybody tied in so that these various studies are all coordinated in
some manner under that agreement?

Dr. Houk. That is the purpose of the cabinet council interagency
working group on agent orange. I must say that, in my opinion, sir,
that functions very well.

Mr. PENNY. Thank you.

Mr. MonTGOMERY. Thank you.

We are going by the way the members came in this morning. Dr.
Rowland?

Dr. Rowranp, Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

There are two areas of dioxin being studied now, the carcinogen-
icity of it and in reference to birth defects. Are there, to your
knowledge, any other areas that are being taken under considera-
tion for investigation?

Dr. Houk. Yes. In the epidemiology study, we will be looking for
a whole host of different health outcomes. Primarily, these are pre-
dicted, Dr. Rowland, by animal data. We don’t have good human
data. We have a great deal of the animal toxicological data, both
acute and some chronic—not as much chronic as we would like.
Certainly the ranch hand study is looking at other things. The VA
proportionate mortality studies and all of the studies of which I am
aware are not designed exclusively to look at the cancer issue,

The birth defects study is designed to look exclusively at that
issue because it is that study. But we are concerned about the
other animal data linking dioxin to certain diseases. In the overall
studies, 1 think all of the agencies are concerned about that. The
design of the studies is to overall give us the answer.

Dr. RowrLaNDd. Do you have enough information at this time in
anﬁ of these other areas to suggest a relationship?

r. Houk. Other than chloracne, no.

Dr. RowrLanp. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. MonTGOMERY. Thank you, Doctor,

Mr. Burton of Indiana.

Mr. Burton. Thank you, Mr. Chatrman.

Dr, Houk, in Indiana, we just celebrated Vietnam Veterans Day
on May 1. We had a ceremony down on War Memorial Plaza. A
number of the veterans came up and talked to me and asked me
about the progress of agent orange research and wanted to know
what was being done to make sure that they were going to get help
and their families were going to get help.

You indicated in your testimony that a number of these stud-
ies—at least some of them-—won’t be completed until 1987. Isn’t
there any way that those could be speeded up so that we could
come to some conclusions before that? Some of these people feel
like—and I tend to agree with them—that they need a response

uicker than that. That war has been over for a long time, and
they believe that the side effects are continuing to hurt their fami-
lies and their children, and they would like to know what the Gov-
ernment is going to do for them.

Dr. Houx. It is not possible to conduct the epidemiologic study
any faster than having it to come out in 1987. If you doubled the
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amount of money or tripled the amount of money going in, tyou still
would not get the job done very much faster. It 18 a limit of getting
Beeople in and tracking people down. One of the issues is going to
, and we are going to have the help of veterans groups in this,
the groups who are selected for the study, to really encourage them
to participate. If we can’t find people, they can’t participate in the
study, and the results are not there.
think this is the reason that a lot of the other studies have
been coming—the proportionate mortality study, the VA, the birth
defects, the ranch hand—are going to be coming in on different
timetables and will provide some information. We don't have to
wait, I don’t believe, unti! 1987 before there will be information
upon which the Veterans’ Administration and the Congress can
act

Mr. BurToN. Is there anythitéﬁ that we can do in the Congress to
) up the informational-gathering process so that you will be
le to complete those any quicker?

Dr. Houk. One of the difficulties, because of the privacy of the
individuals concerned, is tracking down people, particularly track-
ing down females who change their name in marriage. The identifi-
cation of those individuals through social security numbers or
through the Internal Revenue Service and the tax, that is a very
difficult and complex issue which has been partially addressed by a
piece of legislation specifically for the National Institute of Occupa-
tional Safety and Health. We will be happy to provide that to the
committee for your record.

But it is being able to find people, and yet being sensitive enough
of their privacy and their concerns so that we don’t violate their
privacy in finding them scattered throughout the country.

Mr. BurTton. Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. MonTtgoMERY. Thank you, Mr. Burton.

I only have two questions, and then we will call on the Honor-
able Tom Downey, a Member of Congress, to give him the opportu-
nity to testify before this committee,

My first question, Dr. Houk, is is Ranch Hand study & fairly well
prepared study? Is the protocol for the study well conceived?

Dr. Houk. In my opinion, Mr. Chairman, it is as elegant as you
can get. The only criticism of the Ranch Hand study is that they
were studying 1,200 individuals. The reason the 1,20 individualg
are being studies is because there aren’t any more. That is all of
them. We have heard that in criticism sometimes that it is not big
enough. If you don't have the people to study, you can't study more
people. In a simple answer fo your question, Mr, Chairman, yes, it
is very well done, very well executed, very well oversighted and
very well planned, and the results will be believable when they
come out.

Mr. MontcoMERY. Thank you,

1 have one other question to Dr. Halperin. I come from an agri-
cultural area, and I think Mr. Kull mentioned about the different
t: of herbicides such as 2,4,5-T. Tell us briefly something about
that such as what it affects, and so forth.

Dr. HavLreErIN. The principal effects of agent orange is from the
contamination of 2,4,5-T, one of the two compenents. This is a spe-
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cific contamination of a specific class of compounds. They use not
only 2,4,5-T, but biphenyl chlorophenol, a wood preservative, and
other kinds of chemicals. The hexachlorophene manufacturer is as-
sociated with contaminants of dioxin and a few other chemicals.

The real issue here, Mr. Chairman, is what are the soil levels of
dioxin in the United States? No cne knows that. One would suspect
that in a rural community, particularly in the South where both
you and I live, with the use of a lot of materials in weed control
along the rivers, et cetera, that we would have higher soil levels
than a community that is not associated with their use.

There is also a general misunderstanding, 1 believe, Mr. Chair-
man, in the use of the term “dioxins.” When we talk about dioxins,
we should limit our concern in this issue to 2,3,7,8-tetrachloro-
phenol, a specific compound, one of the 75 families of dioxins. You
frequently hear that dioxins are made by grilling steaks, by the
combustion of automobile and diesel engines, from the incineration
of our incineration plants, et cetera, et cetera. That is true, but it is
not that specific compound of which we are interested in this issue
of agent orange.

Mr. MonTGOMERY. I guess my question is can you relate agent
orange to pesticides or herbicides, the dioxins that are used on agri-
cultural crops?

Dr. HarperIN, A herbicide, 2,4,5-T, one of the two components of
agent orange has been used in this country. I believe it was discon-
tinued in 1979. I may be wrong on that date, but at a certain time.

The dioxin got there because it is a contaminant of the manufac-
turing process. If that manufacturing process is very carefully con-
trolled as in relation to temperature and pressures, and if the
clean-up of that produce is very carefully done, it can be marketed
with very low levels of dioxin in that particular batch of 2,4,6-T
that was made.

If, on the other hand, the manufacturing process is sloppy and is
not well controlled, you get much higher levels of dioxin as a con-
taminant for that.

It is related to some of the agricultural uses of these compounds,
and that means that those compounds must be as scrupulously
clean as we can make them,

Mr. MontGoMERY. Thank you very much. You have been very
helpful this morning.

I would like to thank the panel for being here and taking your
time to appear before us.

The next witness is a distinguished Member of Congress, the
Honorable Thomas J. Downey, of the 2d Congressional District of
New York. I would like to welcome Congressman Downey, who is a
member of the Ways and Means Committee, and also is unofficially
the best athlete in the Congress of the United States.

Tom, welcome to this committee. We would like to have your tes-
timony.

STATEMENT OF HON. THOMAS 1. DOWNEY, A REPRESENTATIVE
IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF NEW YORK

Mr. DownEey. Thank you, Sonny.
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In QOctober, Mr. Chairman, Senator Heinz and I released this
report on the VA agent orange examination program and actions
needed to more effectively address veterans’ health concerns. 1
became involved in this subject the same way lots of us get in-
volved with these issues on Long Island. We have a series of youn-
ger veterans who feel that they have been, in one way or another,
afflicted by agent orange. They have set up a New York State
group and they are very active in their lawsuit against the govern-
ment.

This one particular fellow—I want to relate this before reading
my testimony-—was found to have testicular cancer. The incidence
of that in a young man—I think he was age 30 or 31 at the time—
is very, very rare, 1 in 10,000. He was very concerned that he was
just one of many in his unit who, they had gince found out, were in
an area that had been sprayed and had been affected.

He tried to contact the 15 members of his unit and he was only
able to contact 6 of them. Of the six, five had severe health prob-
lems that were abnormal in their incidence in society. Two of them
had chloracne. Others of them had reduced resistance to alcohol,
which they claim is one of the side effects of exposure,

It is the result of that activity in my Congressional District that I
became involved. I think that we see from this report, which is
what I am about to talk about, a very, very sad response to this
problem by the Veterans’ Administration.

Mr. Chairman, I want to thank you for having this hearing and
allowing me the opportunity to come before this committee regard-
ing the agent orange issue. My colleagues and I, we all have, n
besieged with questions and letters over the last few years from
Vietnam veterans who are concerned about exposure to agent
orange. A guestion asked by many is, “What is the Veterans’ Ad-
minigtration doing to help me?” This question, unfortunately, be-
comes an embarrasging one to answer for many of us. The Vietnam
veteran has tried turning to his Government for answers and help,
and he has been sorely disappointed.

The following iz a section of a letter from a Vietnam veteran
who suffers from a serious illness that he helieves is due to his ex-
posure to agent orange. He describes how disgatisfied he was by the
atti{.;:lde of the doctor and the agent orange examination program
itself,

To me it was rather farcical to take laboratory work done months earlier which
had, in no way, anything to do with agent orange * * * So, once again, the

ple in the institution of the Veterana’ Administration gave me a glap in the face
or my service in Vietnam * * *, I found this program conducted by the VA amidat
great ballyhoo and publicity to be an ineffectual and as insulting as was their so-
called "“Jobs-for-Vets” program of a few years ago. In an effort supposedly designed
to reconcile the Vietnam vet with the rest of American society, the major instru-
ment for that reconciliation is doing more to widen the rift than to heal the wound
* * * The prognosis for me ia 55 percent chance of living 5 years if | take chemo-
therapy and experimental drugs * * *. Could all of this been caused by agent
orange? Apparently, we'll never know because the VA doesn’t want to find out
* * * Bitter? Angry? Hurt? You bet ] am. I don’t want their damn money, 1 just
want a little help now that I am totally disabled and for my wife and my children to
have the satisfaction of knowing what really, in the final analysis, killed me. If not

agent orange, fine, but let’s not support any more farces under the aegis of the VA
such as the “agent orange” Screening.
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I think this is a particularly sad commentary, Mr. Chairman and
members. This particular veteran has expressed the sentiment of
many Vietnam veterans who are disgruntled, disappointed. and dis-
%;usted with the inertia exhibited by the Veterans’ Administration.

he Vietnam veterans have pressing questions about chemicals
with catch code names—questions about chemicals that can defol-
iate a jungle, but supposedly not harm young men—questions
iilb?ut the lack of real concern by an agency that should be offering

elp.

Obviously, the VA has chosen not to pay attention to the com-
plaints of Congress regarding their program. 1 realize that the sub-
Jject of the hearing today is the status of federally conducted agent
orange studies. However, my testimony will focus on the General
Accounting Office report which I released in October 1982, I was
both pleased and saddened to release the report. I was pleased that
we in Congress have taken steps to try to solve the problems facing
the Vietnam veteran and have confirmed veterans’ charges against
the VA, 1 was saddened that the VA, the Government agenc
which is supposed to abide by its motto, “To care for him who shall
have borne the battle,” cares very little.

I requested the GAQ study over 2} years ago. Here, again, Mr.
Chairman, we have a veterans hospital up in Northport. I went up
there, and then 1 went over to one of the VA hospitals in lowa. |
was, frankly, appalled by what I saw. Like most of us, we learn in
this business that where there is smoke, there is fire. So I asked
the GAQ to take a look at some of the hospitals. It covered 14 hos-
pitals nationwide. According to the study, only 1 of the 14 medical
centers adequately followed up on the health problems reported by
veterans. The study clearly indicates that the VA has made little
effort to insure that the program is addressing veterans’ health
concerns.

I might add, Mr. Chairman, the Minneapolis center was an out-
standing exception to the probiems cited in the study.

The study confirmed veterans’ complaints that medical examina-
tions were incomplete. Eight hundred and ninety-one veterans re-
sponded to the GKO questionnaire, and 55 percent were disaatisfied
;vitl_l their agent orange examination. Those veterans said the fol-
owing:

Forty-nine percent were dissatisfied with the interest VA person-
nel took in their health; 47 percent were dissatisfied with the thor-
oughness of the questions VA personnel asked them; 49 percent
were dissatisfied with the opportunity that they were given to ask
questions; 57 percent were dissatisﬁ);d with the completeness of
their agent orange examination; 80 percent were dissatisfied with
the amount of information the VA provided them about agent
orange; 83 percent were dissatisfied with the amount of informa-
tion they learned from the VA about their own exposure to agent
orange; and 57 percent were dissatisfied with the amount of time
the VA spent on their examinations,

Another major finding was that the examinations were per-
formed by physicians not always knowledgeable about the potential
health effects of agent orange. The GAO report states, and I am
quoting, “* * * about half of the environmental physicians ex-
pressed negative attitudes about the agent orange program * * *
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environmental physicians at six of the facilities told us that the
proiram was of little or no use * * *.”

The study further confirmed that little .. no attempt was made
to provide veterans with information about agent orange. Although
about 500,000 agent orange information pamphlets were distributed
to VA facilities, less than 9,000 were sent outside the VA system. A
$28,000 video tape on the agent orange examination program was
mentioned by enly 2 of the 112 VA facilities contacted in the GAO
telephone survey. Only 4 of the 10 facilities provided the pamphlets
to veterans who had contacted the facility, and only 24 of the 112
VA medical facilities GAO contacted by telephone survey told GAQ
about the pamphlet. So we have got the tools, but apparently the
VA doesn't appear to want to tell anyone about them.

The sad irony is that the Vietnam veteran has literaily been
searching for answers while the VA practically hides its outreach
materials. The GAO found that various States had established
dioxin commissions and outreach programs which have proved very
effective. Unfortunately, the VA just doesn’t follow suit. The VA
doesn't reach out to those very veterans it was established to help.

Finally, the VA's $3 million computer registry containing the
names of 89,000 Vietham veterans examined for symptoms of agent
orange exposure is of little or no use. Qur colleague, Mr. Burton,
was asked about finding out who they were. Just listen to what the
VA is currently doing with this registry.

It is not meeting two of its primary objectives—providing infor-
mation on health problems experienced by Vietnam veterans, and
facilitating followup with veterans if necessary. Why is it not meet-
ing its own objectives? The study found that the registry does not
contain the specific diagnoses of health problems and lacks ade-
quate exposure and medical history information to compare veter-
ans' health problems with their degree of exposure to agent orange
or the area of Vietnam where they served. As far as its usefulness
for followup, the VA did not include veterans’ addresses in the reg-
istry, and the GAO found that at half of the facilities visited, the
locator cards did not contain adequate information for follewup
with veterans.

In a letter dated November 10, 1982, I requested that the Admin-
istrator of the Veterans’ Administration discontinue the agent
orange registry. The Administrator responded by claiming that the
registry had “* * * proved to be a useful mecganism * % * and
that “Full information can be retrieved from the medical center’s
files and the computer registry provides an index to the additional
data there.” I find this highly questionable since the GAOQ found
that only 8 of the 14 medical facilities visited maintained adequate
information in the locator card system to permit followup contact
with veterans, and none of the facilities routinely updated the loca-
tor files. Generally, the cards were missing the veterans’ city,
State, and ZIP code. The VA still has not demonstrated how this
registry will prove useful. It is serving no purpose, and approxi-
mately $892,000 is spent annually on this particular item. This
money could be used in other areas of the program. I am once
again stating that the registry should not be continued.

There is no question that the integrity of the Veterans’ Adminis-
tration is at stake. How many times must the VA be reprimanded?
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How often does the VA need to be reminded of its function and re-
sponsibilities? How often must Congress ride on its tail? I believe
that, at this peint, it is up to the Congress to see that the VA is
forced to improve its agent orange examination program. The com-
mittee can be instrumental in £|in'oviding overgight to see that the
recommendations of the Gener Accountinﬁ Office are fully imple-
mented by the Veterans’ Administration. The GAO report is a fine

iece of work and can greatly benefit the Vietnam veterans. The

A continually promises that it will provide adequate care for
these Vietnam veterans, and yet the results just don’t materialize,

There is no question that additional hearings are necegsary so
that the VA is forced to answer to this committee for its lackadaisi-
cal attitude. If the recommendations of the report were implement-
ed, the a%ent orange examination program could benefit a great
number of Vietnam veterans and Berhaps restore some faith in the
program. We cannot expect the Vietnam veteran to believe that
the Veterans’ Administration is adequately assisting him if we
don’t believe it ourselves.

In conclusion, I offer the following points. First, the agent orange
registry is & mockery and should be discontinued. Second, there is
a tremendous need ?(r)r improved outreach and coordination of out-
reach materials. These materials should be reaching these veter-
ans. Finally, I believe that oversight by this committee will insure
this, and also whether or not the examination program has been
improved to meet the health care needs of the Vietnham veterans
exposed to agent oran@. Once again, I refer to the letter by the
Vietnam veteran from Virginia who is right when he says that the
way this rﬁam is being run widens the rift rather than heals
the wound. The VA's inaction and unresponsiveness just adds salt
to the wound. I think that the time for hearings, members of the
committee, is long overdue.

Mr. Chairman, what I would recommend to you also is that you
show up or appear, members of the committee, at one of the agent
orange screening centers and ask where it is. If you find what 1
found, you will find that there is no designated portion of hospitals,
that there are no designated envirenmental doctors to do this
work, they just pick out regular physicians with regular training
who are so designated. Only one hospital of the system that we
could find—and that one was in Minneapolis—actually received ad-
ditional funding to look at this program in any detail. These men
and women, as you know, particularly men who have served in
Vietnam and have any concern about this—and I dare say, as the
committee knows, there are literally tens of thousands—are ap-
palled by this. They see it as another way of our not caring about
them. Tge irony is I know the members of this committee care and
I know that the Members of the Congress care. The question is
bridging the gap between us and them. That bridge, the VA, I am
afraid, is in desperate need of repair.

Thank you again, Mr. Chairman, for this opportunity to testify
and present the findings of the general accounting office.

[The statement of Congressman Downey appears on p. 127.]

Mr. MonTGoMERY. Thank you, Mr. Downey, for that very strong
testimony. I might say that | and other members of the committee
and the staff are familiar with the GAO report in some areas that
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ou have explained, especially on the registering. You are correct,
here was a problem there. Dr. Custis will appear in few minutes
and we will ask him the same questions that you have asked us

. this mornin;

This is wﬁat we want to do. We want to do the right thing on
agent orange. It has started out slowly, and we are trying to get it
on track. That is basically why we are having these hearings.

We had hearings by Mr. Applegate on the Compensation Sub-
committee last week, and now we are having these hearings,
mainly about the different studies that are talking place. We are
always open for suggestions. I know that iou have a deep interest
in the Vietnam era veterans as well as other veterans. You repre-
sent a lot of them. We are open for constructive criticism. That is
what you have given us this morning.

What is the top area that you are concerned about, this top point
that you might want to mention here this morning.

Mr. DownNEY. Sonny, let me just say that in the work of this com-
mittee in its oversight, it is important to make sure that the hospi-
tals are conducting the exams and making an extended effort to
provide these individuals with this additional information and by
making sure the exams are properly done, I think that if the com-
mittee did nothing else but to conduct some oversight, you will find
that the VA will respond to you. You know that to be the case. As
soon as the committee turns up the heat, they will dance properly.
That is something you just have to do,

They know what has to be done and they know how it has to be
done. The question of whether they do it or not is another thing.
You have been here long enough—longer than any of us—to know
that when a Government agency comes up and says, “Well, yes, we
have been bad,” they do their dance and then they leave, and they
can go back and continue to do anything they want. They are like
a big pillow. They can absorb your punch and move right back
after a little bit of time and you move on to other things—inevita-
bly because there are so0 many other things to do.

Keep the pressure on them. Do some spot checks in these hospi-
tals and find out what they are doing. You can make them change.
Thﬁy really do need to change.

r. MoNTGOMERY. As you know, Mr. Edgar of Pennsylvania is
chairman of the Subcommittee on Hospitals, and they have been
very active so far this year. We will certainly pass your idea on to
that subcommittee in order for them to take a look at it.

Mr. Hillis?

Mr. HiLuis. [ will yield to Mr. Burton.

Mr. Burton, Thank you, Mr. Hillis. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

One of the things that really mystifies me is this outreach pro-
gram you were alluding to, and you have evidently done some
study on this. You said there were 500,000 agent orange informa-
tion pamphlets that were distributed to VA facilities, but less than
9,000 were sent outside the system. Do you mean through the mail?

Mr. DowNEY. In any way—offered off counters, handed to people,

Mr. HiLuis. 1 can’t understand with service numbers and social
security numbers that are filed in computers now at the Internal
Revenue Service why in the world we can’t contact them directly
by blanket mail with some kind of a letter to every single Vietnam
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veteran and say that this information is available if you desire to
have it. It is unbelievable to me that, with the informational
sourlces we have available, that we can't contact these people di-
rectly.

Mr. DowNEY. I would say to my colleague that that would be
long overdue. Let me explain to you that a lot of the information
that veterans are going to ask for—the VA may say, “Look, we
don’t want to needlessly alarm anyone.” They are already alarmed.
You may have heard all of the horror stories about cancer, about
genetic defects. It is not as though you are going to needlessly exac-
erbate a problem that doesn’t exist. It does exists. What needs to be
done is to provide people with information.

On Long Island, we have set up privately—because we couldn’t
do this at Stony Brook—a genetic screening program which is very
involved and tremendously costly to the State, because we have
been deluged with women of childbearing age who are married to
vets and are very concerned about genetic screening. With the vast
majority, that doesn’t need to be done. But information explaining
that can make a very big difference to whether or not people un-
derstand the scope of their problem. They are not even getting the
information. They don’t even know ahout the film. [ mean only
four of the contacts were even aware that there is a good film that
explains some of the problems.

Mr. Burtron. Mr. Chairman, would it be possible to have an in-
quiry directed to the VA to find out why some kind of correspond-
ence can’t be mailed or communicated to these veterans?

Mr. MonTGOMERY. That is an excellent point. Dr. Custis is the
next witness. 1 believe that would be the time to find out. If we
don’t get a satisfactory answer from Dr. Custis or from the VA,
then we will consider what you suggested.

Mr. BurtoN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. DownNEY. I would just tell my colleague once again that these
are not my fanciful view of history or of what happened, this is the
GAOQ report saying that when they made contact with the various
112 VA facilities, only 2 of them in the telephone survey knew any-
thing about the film.

Mr. MoNTGOMERY. Mr. Sundquist,

Mr. SunpquisT. Thank you, Mr, Chairman,

I appreciate your testimony, Mr. Downey. I spent seme time
Friday in a vet center in Memphis, and 1 did note that there were
brochures and pieces of information there sbout agent orange. In
fact, there were things on the walls. So 1 feel that maybe there is
some progress being made in this regard.

Mr. Downey. I hope so.

Mr, Sunpquist. In your testimony, you say that the agent orange
registry should be discontinued.

Mr. DowNEY. Yes.

Mr. Sunpquist. Isn’t that a little incongruous when you are also
saying that we ought to be contacting these people?

r. DowNEY. The registry was set up so that it could presumably
get information and keep a list of people. We are not getting any of
the scientific data from the registry, and they are not keeping the
names and addresses. So it would be one thing if the registry were
filled with names so that you could mail things, but the vast major-
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ity of the registry doesn't contain that information. So it would be
nice to have a complete registry with outreach, but unless you
want to spend a lot of money, which the GAQ doesn’t recommend,
to fix it, my recommendation is that you discontinue it and find
some other means of contacting the veterans. You are spending
about a million dollars a year to maintain it and we spent $3 mil-
lion to set it up.

Mr. SunpquUIsT. What would be an alternative?

Mr. DownEy. [ don't know offhand. It would seem to me that
there must be a list, though it is incomplete and inadequate—the
GAO has done a study of that as well—of the veterans who served
in the areas that potentially were defoliated. I suggest that you do
a mailing to them.

Mr. Sunpquist. I just wondered if we shouldn’t perhaps correct
the registry so we would have a mailing list as opposed to discon-
tinuing it.

Mr. DownNEY. Let me read to you from the report, one paragraph
on the registry. ‘Although the registry’s deficiencies could be cor-
rected, the corrections would be costly and the data still could not
be used as a basis for scientifically valid conclusions about veter-
ans’ health.” So the question is whether we use the registry as
some basis for information for the Centers for Disease Control. It
clearly can’t be used for that. There are a whole host, although 1
can't think of them now, of ways to get hold of veterans to mail
them a pamphlet other than the registry. The registry already pre-
sumes that you have taken the first step to come to the hospital.

Mr. Sunpuist. I see. Thank you, Mr. Downey.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. MoNTGOMERY. Mr. Penny.

Mr. PENNY. Mr. Chairman, I just have one quick question of Con-
gressman Downey.

You indicated in your testimony that you requested the GAQ
study 2% years ago. Can you give me the timeframe during which
the study was conducted?

Mr. DowNEY. The report was released, Tim, on the 25th of Octo-
ber of last year, so it would have been in 1980, or actually late
1979, that they went about it, As is usually the case with the GAO,
they were very thorough. Despite the fact that Senator Heinz and 1
were constantly berating them that we wanted this information
done more quickly, they felt that in order to get the questionnaire
produced and sent out it would take that long. So it was during the
period of 1979 and 1980,

Mr. PENnY. Thank you, Mr. Downey.

Mr. MoNTGOMERY. Mr. Evans?

Mr, Evans. Mr. Downey, I came in late. I don’t know if it is in
your written testimony, but I heard you say there was not any kind
of screening program in one of the hospitals that you went to, Was
that in your district?

Mr. DownEeY. The one outside of my district in Iowa, was all
right, when 1 showed up and asked them to show me the Vietnam
veteran screening program. First of all, the way I look, it took me
some time to convince them that I was a Member of Congress. For-
tunately, I had my voting card with me.
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Mr. MoNTGOMERY. That has been your problem up here, too,
with your young looks.

Mr. DowNey. I still get pushed out of the elevator, I might add.

Anyway, after | established who I was and why I was there, we
set about to talk to a number of physicians who were just regular
doctl?rs, one of whom took me aside and said that the program was
a joke.

Mr. Evans. What city in Iowa—Iowa City?

Mr. DownEy. No, it was the other one. I forget where it was. |
remember being there, but I, being from the East, after leaving the
elite New Jersey, it all becomes a big blur to me. It was not the one
in JIowa City; it was the other one.

Mr. Evans. I think you raised a good point. We are embarked on
a nationwide, region-by-region survey of the hospitals on the Hospi-
tals and Health Care Subcommittee. It seems to me that if we are
going to publicize this, if we are going to put out pamphlets and
send them out to Vietnam veterans, we had better have the pro-
gram there. If one veteran was outraged that there wasn't an agent
orange screening program, and you proceed to go whole hog and
advertise it, you are going to have a lot of people showing up for it.
If the program doesn’t exist when they come to the hospital, they
are really going to be outraged.

Mr. DowNEY. Sometimes, let me say, it is better to get the pam-
phlets out just for the purpose of disseminating information and
then force the VA to respond to them as they come in. I think that
that is a potentially backwards way of doing it, but it seems to me
from time to time the only effective way of moving them.

Mr. Evans. From now on, I hope to make every one of the field
trips. We have already been to Pittsburgh, and the chairman has
had most of the committee down to Mississippi to visit the hespi-
tals there. That is one point that I will raise continually when [ go
through the facilities.

Mr. Downey. 1 think that you and Mr. Penny, if you showed up
at a hospital and started asking some questions, or any member of
the committee—just by yourseif without one of the pre-announced
visits where everybody is showered, shaved, in their nicest clothing,
and just freshly painted sign “Herbicide Clinic, Welcome”’—you
will find that there is very little to see.

Mr. Evans. | thank the gentleman for his testimony today.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. MonTcoMERY. Thank you, Lane.

I agree with what Tom Downey said, and | wish that the mem-
bers of this subcommittee—and it is an investigative subcommit-
tee—would just show up like that sometime.

On these outreach programs, Tom, there has been some feeling
that we kind of let them operate on their own. I found out that it is
really the individual who heads it up who makes the difference. I
went out as you did to Los Angeles. They said they wanted me to
go to this outreach program, and [ said “Let’s go to this one.” We
went out there, and there was a black person there who was totally
in charge. The place was neat. He didn't have a television set
where he could sit arcund all day. He was really running an out-
reach center like it was designed.
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We have a problem—and the staff can correct me—whether the
director of that hospital has the authority to go out and make some
suggestions to the director of the outreach program. Quite frankly,
it is really left up to that person who is in charge.

Mr. DowNey. Sonny, that is absolutely right. As you no doubt
found, and it is true of any Government program, if you get good
people involved in this, they can do a marvelous job of reaching out
to the community and making sure that they are aware of what is
available and what 1uestions they should be asking,

If you made the hospital administrators or facility administra-
tors aware that you thought it was important, they would put good
people in those programs, or they would put better people in them,
or they would watch them. Right now, it is a hit or miss operation,
as you suggest. Some people are good, and some people aren’t.
Frankly, we just can’t bear to have a lot of bad pecple operating
that outreach center. It is just hurting all of the wrong folks.

Mr. MonTcoMERY. This has certainly been helpful testimony this
morning. We will follow up on what you have told us.

Thank you very much.

Mr. DownEy. | would observe, Mr. Chairman, that right here you
have the makings of a good two-on-two game, right here in the sub-
committee. I congratulate you on selecting this fine array of bas-
ketball talent.

Thank you.

Mr. MonTGgoMERY. Thank you.

Mr. BurToN. Excuse me, Mr. Chairman.

Did you say that with a condescending tone in your voice?

Mr. Downey. I will pass on that.

Mr. MoNTGOMERY. We have two sets of witnesses still left. We
will have the Air Force testify right after we hear from Dr. Custis.

Dr. Custis, we are always glad to have you. Come on up and let
us beat on you some. I noticed, Dr. Custis, you were getting further
})ackt in the hearing room. You are always welcome to come to the

ront,

STATEMENT OF DR. DONALD L. CUSTIS, CHIEF MEDICAL DIREC-
TOR, VETERANS' ADMINISTRATION, ACCOMPANIED RY DR.
BARCLAY M. SHEPARD, ACTING DIRECTOR, AGENT ORANGE
PROJECTS OFFICE, VETERANS' ADMINISTRATION; DR, ALVIN
YOUNG, ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCES SPECIALIST, AGENT
ORANGE PROJECTS OFFICE, VETERANS' ADMINISTRATION;
AND AUDLEY HENDRICKS, ASSISTANT GENERAL COUNCIL

Dr. Cusmis. Mr. Chairman, as always, it is a pleasure to appear
before your committee.

With your permission, I will present a summarized version of the
opening statement. It should take about 4 minutes.

With me at the table are Dr. Al Young of the Agent Orange Proj-
ects Office; Dr. Barclay Shepard who heads that office; and Audley
Hendricks of the Office of General Counsel.

Mr. Chairman, the Veterans’ Administration has undertaken a
number of activities which [ think demonstrate our commitment
and resolve to address the concerns raised by our Vietnam veter-
ans, When the controversy first arose in late 1978, we initiated a
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program of offering a free examination to any veteran who was
concerned about the possible health effects of exposure to agent
orange, A veteran coming to the VA under this program receives a
thorough physical exam with all appropriate laboratory tests. The
results of the examination are discussed with the veteran personal-
ly and basic information concerning the health status of the veter-
an is entered into the computerized agent orange registry.

I might say here, Mr. Chairman, that the GAO survey of this
program, specifically the questionnaire that was sent to veterans,
was put in the hands of veterans, all of whom had physical exams
prior to 1981. We have come a long way since then in improving
not only the completeness of the program or the examination, but
also the attitude of those providing services.

The main purpose of the registry is to provide a systematic way
to identify concerned Vietnam veterans and to assist in determin-
ing whether there are any significant health trends among them,.

Again, Mr. Chairman, on the contrary, it was never our inten-
tion to design a registry to be used as a scientific tool. It cannot be
used as a scientific tool. A registry of this nature is inherently
flawed as the basis of an epidemioloyical study. It does not provide
valid data for scientific analysis, We vill ha.e more to say about
the registry in a minute.

To date, over 106,000 veterans have received ex~minations under
the program. With the enactment of Public Law %:-72, the Veter-
ans’ Administration was authorized to provi‘e comprehensive
health care to veterans for conditions that may be associated with
exposure to dioxins contained in herbicides in Vietnam. Under this
entitlement, approximately 12,000 veterans were admitted for care
during the period February 1982 to February 1983. There were ap-
proximately 440,000 outpatient visits to VA health care facilities,

While we are attempting to meet the immediate health carc
needs of Vietnam veterans, we continue to explore every approach
available that will assist us in providing up-to-date technical infor-
mation for our health care staff. The series of scientific mono-
graphs written by recognized experts in their respective fields are
being prepared on the topics of agent blue, birth defects, genetic
screening and counseling, human exposure to phenoxy herbicides
and chloracne. When completed, these monographs will be widely
ii_istributed, both within and outside of the Veterans’ Administra-
10n.

Accompanying this effort will be an interim update of the review
of the literature on herbicides that was completed in 1981, The
Veterans’ Adminjstration has been mandated to perform an
epidemiologic study of veterans who were exposed to dioxins con-
tained in herbicides used in Vietnam. The Veterans' Administra-
tion contracted with UCLA to develop the study’s protocol and
asked non-VA experts to review it.

When concerns were raised about the pace and credibility of a
VA-conducted study, and upon your wise recommendation, Mr,
Chairman, the Veterans' Administration asked the Centers for Dis-
ease Control to undertake the design and conduct the study. The
Centers for Disease Control will have complete independence in
this effort, which is expected to take a number of years to com-
plete. Parenthetically, the only role the VA retains in this regard
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is to act as a conduit for funding through the VA funding scurces.
Justification for resource requests ig left to the CDC.

Complementing the epidemiologic study are a number of other
Veterans’ Administration-initiated studies that should yield results
in a shorter timeframe. These are a mortality study that will com-
pare mortality patterns and specific causes of death between those
who served in Vietnam and those who did not. There will be a
twins study that will examine pairs of identical twins, one of whom
served in Vietnam, the other of whom did not, to determine wheth-
er the current paychological and physical health of Vietnam veter-
ans was adversely affected. There is a birth defects atudﬁr which is
being jointly sponsored by the Department of Defense, the Depart-
ment of Health and Human Services, and the VA to determine
whether Vietnam veterans are at higher risk of parenting children
with birth defects than non-Vietnam veteran. And there will be an
epidemiologic study managed by the Armed Forces Institute of Pa-
thology exploring the possible causal relationship of phenoxy acid
herbicides exposure and soft tissue sarcomas. Finally, a retrospec-
tive study of dioxins and furons in adipose tissue In cooperation
with EPA to determine the background levels of dioxin in fatty
tiggue among maleg of the Vietnam era veteran age group and
whether service in Vietham has had an effect on the dioxin levels.

Mr. Chairman, we recognize also the need to fully inform our VA
staff in the field of these initiatives and to keep them advised of
the many research efforts now underway. Also, we must assure the
Vietnam veteran that we are doing all we can to address the very
sincere concerns they raise about exposure to agent orange.
Toward that end we will continue to visit VA facilities throughout
the country offering a program of education and information to VA
staff, veterans service organizations, and other concerned citizens.
We will attempt to be fully responsive to questions raised and to
insure that problems that may be experienced by veterans and
their relationship with the VA are promptly investigated and cor-
rected wherever possible.

On the other hand, Mr. Chairman, I really don’t know what to
do about the irresponsible critic who seems to feel that he has a
monopoly on compasggsion and shows n¢ hesitancy in taking isolated
half-truths and inflating them into libelous attacks against the
entire VA health care systemn. I can’t believe he does not realize
the damage he can do in undermining the veteran patient’s confi-
dence in the health care system which they so sorely need. It is a
good system, and I am proud of the talented, dedicated and good
people who serve in that aystem.

Mr. Chairman, that concludes my summary remarks. My col-
leagues and I will be pleased to answer any questions the commit-
tee may have.

[The statement of Dr, Custis appears on p. 129.]

Mr. MonTgoMERY. Thank you, Igr. Custis.

I know your concern. Mr. Hillis and T were talking about this sit-
uation. There is a tendency to work on Government agencies from
time to time in a harsh manner. But you do have a lot of friends in
the Congress, and we do appreciate the dedication that we get out
of your Department. You have more friends than you think. You
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continue to do the job that you are doing and it will all work out.
We appreciate you being here this morning.

I only have one question. I understand that on the 1984 budget,
there is an amendment that would be of interest to you. Do you
care to tell us what the specific provisions. of this amendment are?

Dr. Custis. You are referring to the supplemental appropriation
for the CDC study?

Mr. MoNnTGoMERY. To support agent orange research efforts.

Dr. Custis. It is in the research budget. It is the 1984 require-
ment for supporting CDC’s epidemiologic effort, and I think it is
$55 million,

Dr. SHEPARD. We are in the final stages of preparing the budget
amendment, which will include the request for funds to support
the CDC epidemiological study.

The dollar figure which they have requested is in the range of
$56 million in fiscal year 1984. The additional moneys alluded to by
Dr. Houk would be over the subsequent years.

Mr. MonTcoMERY. So it would be a total on that study of about
$70 million?

Dr. SHEPARD. Yes, sir, that is what they are projecting at the
present time.

Mr. MonTGoMERY. Why is that so expensive, Dr. Shepard?

Dr. SHErArD. When you consider that they are proposing con-
ducting questionnaires with some 30,000 veterans, that is a large
number of individuals. It isn’t just conducting the questionnaires, it
is the significant expense involved in contacting these individuals,
and a number of them will be brought to one or two or three exam-
ining centers around the country and a very thorough examination
;!vill be conducted on some of the individuals in each of these co-

orts.

I think that if you compare it to the Air Force Ranch Hand study
costs—and 1 mﬂ defer to Dr. Chesney and his colleagues—you
might want to ask him how much it has cost the Air Force to con-
duct the ranch hand study. I think the figures are compatible.

Mr. MonTcOMERY. All right.

As I understand the study we are talking about, there will be a
group that was exposed in effect a number of times to agent
orange, and then there were groups in veteran that were not ex-
posed, and then groups that did not even go overseas. Is that cor-
rect? [ am really trying to get that clear in my mind.

Dr, SHEPARD. Yes, sir.

Basically, the CDC is proposing two parallel studies, one consist-
ing of three cohorts which will look at the whole issue of the
health outcomes resulting from exposure to agent orange, and then
two cohorts to examine the broader issue of the health effects of
service in Vietnam fairly irrespective of agent orange, the other
environmental circumstances which Vietnam veterans faced. That
second study will be of two cohorts, one of whom served in Viet-
nam, and the other—matched by age, sex, race, and so forth—who
did not serve in Vietnam,

Mr. MonTGOMERY. Thank you.

Mr. Hillis.

Mr. HiLLis, Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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4 I, Doctor, want to also express my support of what you have been
oing.

1 am reminded of when I used to practice law the defendant who,
when he first got on the stand, was “When did you quit beating
your wife.” I suspect that is how you felt here this morning in lis-
tening to some of the preceding testimouny as to the characteriza-
tion of the efforts of the VA in the approaches that they have
taken to try to deal with this difficult problem.

I don’t want to pick on any other Government agency as well,
but I have seen GAO reports on many things of which I thought
were either flawed or hastily done, or certainly not responsive to
the questions that were asked. I would want to study this one very
carefully before I gave it credence of jumping out of the boat and
taking a different direction.

I don’t want to put you on the spot, but 1 wonder if you would
want to cornment on tﬁat report and, apecifically, update us as to
any criticism that was directed at the program?

Dr. Custis. Yes, Mr. Hillis. As a matter of fact, we have the
counterpart of a white paper which, if we may, we would like to
submit for the record as a detailed response to every recommenda-
tion GAQ made.

Mr. Hiuuis. I would like to ask you to do that.

Dr, Cusris. All right, sir.

[The information appeats on p, 135.]

Dr. Cusris. Incidentally, Dr. Shepard just reminds me in a note
he has written here that I said that the qgoestionnaire from the
GAO went to veterans examined before 1980, I should have said
during 1980, prior to January 1981, to correct the record.

Mr. HiLuis. Let me agk another question. Is there any question in
your mind as to the need for the agent orange registry?

Dr. Custis. We feel the agent orange registry serves our purpose
very well, We feel that it also serves the individual veteran as a
baseline history and physical for future reference when other
things may appear. Beingocomput.erized, it is a duplication of the
essential facts over and above the medical record.

We also have used it on four occasions for mass mailings. We do
have addresses for everyone registered in the file. We have no in-
tention of discontinuing it. Incidentally, the price quoted of
?8(}0,000, I don’t know where it comes from. It must be a blue-sky
igure.

Mr. Hinws. Is the cost worth the effort, in your opinion?

Dr. Custis. It is worth more than the cost, Mr. Hillis. We feel
very strongly about it and are very protective of the registry.

Mr. HiLiis. You mentioned, I think, also in your testimony that
some 9,400 veterans have been admitted as inpatients to VA medi-
cal centers under Public Law 97-72, and there have been roughly
369,000 outpatient visits. Are you able to draw any preliminary
conclusions from the episodes of treatment as to the disabilities
being medically associated with agent orange, or is it even possible
to do so at this stage?

Dr. Cusms. I was about to answer the question, but I think I will
defer to the two experts on my right, and then add to what com-
ments they might have.
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Dr. SueParDp. Those two figures that you read, the figure dealing
with the 9,400 admissions and the 3‘%,000 outpatient visits are
those which were determined to have resulted from exposure to
agent orange. Dr, Custis’ testimony alludes to the total figure that
has come through as a result of passage of Public Law 97-72 which,
as you know, included exposure to ionizing radiation.

e are in the process now of looking at the patient treatment
file, which is a computerized file of any veteran who is admitted to
a VA hospital. Prior to this legislation, we had not had a systemat-
ic method for determining or inserting into the patient treatment
file those veierans who actually served in Vietnam and those who
did not. We have now instituted such a process, so that we are now
collecting data which we will be able to analyze and, therefore,
make a comparison between those veterans of the Vietnam era
who actually served in Vietnam and those who did not.

Dr. Custis. What [ would add to that, Mr. Hillis, is that one
should not expect nearly as much from that effort that Dr. Shepard
was just describing. The real expectation lies in the epidemiologic
study of CDC and other comparable studies such as Ranch Hand.
Those are carefully designed protocols and much more scientifical-
ly based than a review of our patient treatment file.

Mr. HiLus. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. PENNY [presiding]. Mr. Sundquist.

Mr. SunpquisT. One (%uestion that I have is that on page 17 of
your testimony—maybe I am not reading it correctly—it is regard-
ing the Australian birth defect study. It says, “In all, 127 fathers of
children with defects were Vietnam veterans, while 123 Vietnam
veterans father normal, healthy children.” It follows up and says,
“There was no evidence that service in Vietnam increased the risk
of fathering a child with a birth defect.”

Dr. SuEparp. The figures are correct, sir. I am not clear as to
what your question is.

Mr. Sunpbquist. It said that out of the study, 127 of the fathers of
children—in other words, it applies that there were 127 fathers
who fathered children with birth defects and 123 who fathered
normal children. That is not the normal percentage of children
who have birth defects.

Dr. SHEPARD. This is a case control study in which they conduct-
ed questionnaires on the parents of two groups, those with birth de-
fects and those without, and the representation of Vietnam veter-
ans in the two groups was statistically identical. There is no statis-
tical differencegbetween the 127 and the 123 when you are talking
about a group of 8,000 children.

Mr. Sunpquist. It is confusing to me. Do you see what I am
saying.

Dr. SHEPARD. Are you concerned about the difference between
127 and 1237

Mr. Sunpquist. Yes.

Dr. Sueparp. That figure is not deemed to be statistically differ-
ent. Those two figures, when measured against the total number of
people questioned, there is the possibility of that being simply a
chance difference. So when we talk about statistical difference
when analyzed statistically, those two figures are essentially the
same. S0 this study demonstrates that there is no increased risk of
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i}ustralian Vietham veterans producing children with birth de-
ects.

Mr. Sunpquist. I understand what the study says, but 1 think
that sentence is very confusing. At least it is to me,

Dr. SuEPARD. We will take another lock at it, sir, and see if we
can't clarify it for the record.

Mr. Sunpquist. Dr. Custis, I appreciate your testimony. I do com-
mend you for all of the good work that all of you do.

I am not trying to put you on the spot, but perhaps some of the
criticiam that the VA has been coming under is perisaps the slow-
ness, at least in the perception of some veterans, that all of us ar-
rived at, we moved so slow to recognize and really get involved in
agent orange. Do you think that is l;)a.rt of the criticism, that it
took so long for us to get to this point?

Dr. Custis. I think that undoubtedly explains a lot of it, Mr. Con-
gressman. I think there is enough blame to go around. I think the
same thing is true in the private sector of medicine. I think that,
through 1979 and 1980, there was a much higher level of doubt
that there was any validity at all to this scare. As time went on
and as some studies began to appear, there is more and more ques-
tion and perhaps there is something behind this. To this day, I
think that we simply don't know. We don’t know one way or the
other. The fact that we can’t answer the veterans in a definitive
wag is very frustrating to them and further adds to their anxiety
and, not being able to get the information they want, they un-
doubtedly are impatient with services rendered.

Mr. SunpquisT. I don’t blame them for being impatient, and I
don’t think you do either, because we were so slow to act. Now,
from their perception, as I get it from talking to veterans, they are
saying that we are studying this thing to death. It took us so long
to get to this point, and now we are going to study it to death.

When will we have—I am talking about a year—when will we
have some definitive information of all of the studies that have
been described, whether it is ranch hand or whether it is the one
involving twins, the data from Australia, or all of the information
that we have? When we will arrive at some conclusions? I think
that will solve a lot of the problems. People may disagree with
some of the conclusions, but when will we arrive at this? Do you
have any sort of a target date?

Dr. Custis. If I could start off with the answer, and then [ will
ask Al Young who obviously is anxious to say something.

1 would say that the answer will come—one way or the other—
will come sequentially over a period of time. The gDC is very close
to reporting on their birth defects study. I understand that will be
coming late this fall. The ranch hand study ia now in the hands of
their advisory committee for review and analysis. Those findings
will be published yet this year.

Other studies will be come to fruition in 1984. Our twins study,
hopefully, is slated for 1985. The large epidemiologic study, there is
a general consensus that we cannot expect the end result of that
betore 1987. So it is going to be a sequence of information. As those
studies are completed along, incidentally, with multiple other stud-
ies—in all, right now there is something like 25 or 26 studies just
within Federal Government purview and subgidy. In addition to
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that, there are miltiple studies in foreign countries that are going
on.

The time will come when there will be a consensus arrived at in
the medical scientific community that there is enough statistically
significant evidence that stands up under the scrutiny of peer
review and that can be duplicated by other independent investiga-
tors, there will arrive a consensus one way or the other.

Al, do you have anything to add?

Mr. SunpquisT. When will that be, Dr. Custis?

Dr. Custis. I would say it will come slowly over a period of time,
say, between 1985 and 1987. That is a pure guess, and others may
disagree.

Mr. SunpquisT. The problem that the veterans have is you are
talking about genetic studies, and they are going to be out of the
child fathering age at the point you all come to some conclusion.

Dr. Younc. What [ would like to add, sir, is that there are many
issues, as you have eluded to. You have birth defects, cancers, and
spontaneous abortions; all of these are concerns. Individual studies
are answering each part and they are going to be completed at dif-
ferent times.

We already have from the Australians the first birth defects
study; published in January 1983. Likewise, the New Zealand Sci-
entist News folks just released a birth defects study in the same
sort of timeframe. That is what is going to happen. You are going
to see the birth defects studies coming out very quickly now. Then
there are going to be the cancer studies, which are already coming
out, and there will also be some additional cancer studies extend-
m% into next year.

o each part of these—~the mortality study will look at death pat-
terns. The State of New York has just completed their mortality
study on veterans. We should have those results within the next
few months.

There are going to be a lot of answers in 1983, Whether that will
form a consensus remains to be seen. There will be more answers
in 1384, a lot more in 1985,

Mr. Sunpquist. Will the VA, Dr. Young, assume the responsibili-
ty for taking all of this information, and say in 1983, when all of
the genetic results are in of all the studies being made, that the
VA will say conclusively, based on our studies and all of the other
information the foliowing: one, two, three, four?

Dr. Young. One of the things that we are doing is, for example,
having an outside scientific body assess the literature. We expect a
report in January of 1984 of all of those scientific data that are
available at that time. There will be an assessment by an outside
body in addition to our own interpretations.

r. SUNDQUIST. 1 don't think you are getting the impact of what
I am saying. We started late on studying this—I am not blaming
anybody, we were all at fault—and now we are studying it, but I
think there has to be some urgency on the part of everybody, not to
rush anything through, but somebody has got to grab hold of the
ball and say that this is the end of the ball game and we are now
saying the following: one, two, three, four—so that it puts to ease
those veterans who have some anxiety about these problems. Some-
body is going to have to be responsible for taking all of the other
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data and comparing it, and I think there is a sense of urgency that
gould solve a lot of the problems that we have and the veterans
ave.

Dr. Custis. I think we can only assure you that we share your
sense of urgency. Literally, everyone who has a vested interest in
this problem would like to see it speeded up. The reality is that it
is going to take time.

Mr. PENNY. Because the various studies will be completed over
the course of the next several years, early studies are going to be
used by veterans and others to try to draw some conclusions that
the Veterans' Administration or the Centers for Disease Control
may not want drawn. How you control that until such time as we
are sure the evidence ig conclusive, I think, is the concern that we
feel needs to be addressed.

That is where the coordination comes in. How do we pull all of
those studies together? How do we make sure that the right signals
are going out to the public and the veteran population?

Dr. Custis. I assure you that the VA will do everything we can to
play a role in pulling things together and making some determina-
tion at the proper time.

However, it is not going to be just the VA, i. is going to be the
medical community at large with many authoritative offices en-
gaged in the same thing. [ am sure CDC will about the same time
arvive at their opinion. [ am sure that authoritative offices such as
the Council on Scientific Affairs of the American Medical Associ-
ation will be continuing to publish their status reports, their stand,
as they have on two occasions now.

I don’t see that one of our problems is going to be the unwilling-
ness of somebody to coordinate and draw some conclusions when it
is possible to do so. We certainly will play a role in that, I am sure.

Mr. PENNY. Mr. Sunquist, do you want to follow up on that?

Mr. SunpquisT. I have one last comment. That is that 1 submit,
Dr. Custis, that if the VA would state publicly area by area with
some time goals, that by 1984 we are going to have results on this,
1985 on this, 1986 on this, 1987 on that, then at least the veterans
are going to know that this isn’t going to be prolonged, for the sake
of research discussion, for the next 25 years and that there are
some targeted dates that we are aiming for and, even if they are
preliminary conclusions, we will announce those preliminary con-
clugions; as opposed to, right now, study after study after study,
maybe in 1984, maybe in 1985, maybe in 1990—I think that we
need some targeted dates that we will have arrived at some conclu-
sions in each area. That is my suggestion.

Dr. Custis. We can do just that. As a matter of fact, in the next
brochure that we pubiish for distribution, there is no reason why
we can’t respond to exactly the sort of thing you are requesting.

Incidentally, on the matter of information process, we, in addi-
tion to the matilings to the registrants on file, there is also litera-
ture distributed in 172 hospitals, 200-some additional clinics, in 136
readjustment counseling vet centers, and through the 400-plus con-
tract readjustment counseling centers that are also in operation—
in addition to which DVB, through the regional offices, is constant-
ly distributing literature on this subject.
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I can't imagine a veteran who reads the newspaper who isn't
aware of the problem of agent orange, and whose curiosity hasn't
long since been tweaked, and who must know that there is help
available in VA hospitals.

Mr. Sunpquist. Dr. Custis, I don’t have a problem with that from
the mail I have been getting and {rom the meetings I have held.
My problem is arriving at some conclusions, and you offered to do
that. I appreciate that. Thank you very much,

Mr. PENNY. Mr. Burton.

Mr. Burton. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Dr. Custis, when Representative Downey talked a while ago, he
indicated that—and this is in response to what you just said—
500,000 agent orange information pamphlets were distributed to
VA facilities, but less than 9,000 were sent outside the system. We
had over 2.5 million in the Vietnam war.

It seems to me that, even though the newspapers do carry a lot
of accounts of what is going on with agent orange, they should be
made aware of the dangers that are involved. Early detection in
cancer, as | understand it, has a great deal to do with longevity. 1
have heard estimates as high as 90 percent of those who have early
detection of cancer in their body can survive and have an average
length life expectancy. It seems to me that, unless they are aware
of the dangers of the exposure that they have experienced, that the
real possibility exists that they will have cancer, for instance, and
not be aware of it until it is too late. That is why I am concerned.
Not that you haven’t been trying to do the job, but that they
should be contacted, either through the mail or some way, to make
sure that they are aware of the dangers that are involved.

I don’t think that the expense, from what I have heard today,
the expense of sending a one-page letter out eliciting some kind of
response from them, would be out of order, do you?

Dr. Custis. Mailing to every veteran? | am not sure where you
would go for the mailing list.

Mr. Burron. When | was in the Army, | had—I still remember
it, BR 16584353. That was my Artny ID number. That was back in
1957. The social security numbers that we have are on file with the
Internal Revenue and many departments of the Government. It
seems to me that everybody who went in the service would be on
file with the Department of the Army, Air Force or Navy, and we
could send to them—especially those who were exposed to agent
orange or in any area where agent orange was sprayed.

Dr. Cusms. This was discussed at one time and discarded as a
project. There is no reason why we can’t reconsider.

Mr. Burton. Why was it discarded? I am just curious. The war
has been over now for 10 to 12 years, and everybody is aware of the
problem, and a lot of people haven't been contacted. I talked to a
number of them this week.

Dr. Cusmis, It was discarded because we could not identify an
easy source for a complete mailing list of all veterans. We can go
through service organizations, and we have, and the service organi-
zations have sent their constituents, their members, a tremendous
amount of information through their mailings.

There are other avenues. There could be, for example, mailings
through the social security office. I don't know. Perhaps
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Dr. Chesney has some ideas when he testifies as to whether DOD
could be of any further help to us in terms of a veterans mailing
list. But it is not an easy thing to come by.

Dr. SHEPARD. We have looked into this, Mr. Burton. You would
think that the military must maintain active mailing lists or
names and addresses of individuals who served in Vietnam. Unfor-
tunately, that simply is not the case. If that were the case, we
would not have had such difficulty in identifying individuals who
served in Vietnam for purposes of conducting major epidemiolog-
ical studies.

I have asked that question myself a number of times. Those
records are not maintained in a computerized fashion. One can de-
termine by examining personnel records at St. Louis which veter-
ans served in Vietnam and which did not. But, believe me, there is
no complete computerized list of veterans who served in Vietnam
or a mailing list.

Mr. BurTtoN. I really find that extremely hard to understand. All
the papere that we filled out back when I was in the service in the
1950’s and it has gone on every since—when we had the Vietnam
war, we had the massive drafting—and you say we don’t have
records of those who served in Vietnam? We don’t have social secu-
rity numbers of those ?eople?

Dr. Young. We don’t have a master list, sir. We have all their
records, of course. We could go to the military records centers and,
over a number of years, probably 5 or more, and build, if we had
the manpower and the dollars, that list that you are looking for.
But it doesn’t exist at present.

Mr. BurtoN. But you don’t have them filed by social security
number and date of service?

Dr. Youncg. Within the records center. You would have to go in
and take out all of the Vietnam service from all of the Vietnam
era and all of the other wars.

Mr. Burton. So it would take 5 years, you think, and a lot of
money?

Dr. Young. Yes.

Likewise, we don’t have records on who was exposed to agent
orange in Vietnam. We simply don't know who was exposed and
who wasn't.

Mr. BurtoN. This must be a simple attitude, I suppose, but I en-
visioned that we would have these in a computer, and we would
push a button and be able to send a letter to 2.5 million, and the
cost would be less than what Congress spends in 1 day franking
mail out of here, and we could have contacted all of them or at
}ieast made them aware of the danger. But you say that can’t be

one.

Dr. Younc. We began to computerize in the 1971, 1972, 1973
timeframe. At that peint, we can pick up a lot of military. But, you
see, there were an awful lot who served before then and we simply
don't have them computerized at this time.

Mr. Burton. Thank you.

Mr. PeEnny. Thank you, Dr. Custis.

We have one last witness that we want to get to yet this morn-
ing. We appreciate your answers to our questions.
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Mr. PENNY. Qur next witness is Maj. Gen. Murphy A. Chesney,
Deputy Surgeon General, Department of the Air Force.

General Chesney, if you would introduce those with you, we
would appreciate it.

We are running short of time. If you could summarize, we will
see to it that your entire testimony is submitted for the record.

STATEMENT OF MAJ. GEN. MURPHY A. CHESNEY, DEPUTY SUR-
GEON GENERAL, DEPARTMENT OF THE AIR FORCE, ACCOMPA-
NIED BY COL. GEORGE LATHROP, AEROSPACE MEDICINE
DIVISION, BROOKS AIR FORCE BASE; AND DR. RICHARD AL-
BANESE, AEROSPACE MEDICINE DIVISION, BROOKS AIR
FORCE BASE

General CHESNEY. Good morning, Mr, Chairman and members of
the committee. I am Maj. Gen. Murphy A. Chesney, Air Force
Deputy Surgeon General. I am accompanied by Col. George Lath-
rop and by Dr. Richard Albanese of the Aerospace Medicine
Division at Brooks Air Force Base,

I thank you for the opportunity to present an update on the
progress of the Air Force epidemiologic study of Ranch Hand per-
sonnel exposed to herbicide in Vietnam from 1962 to 1971,

The information that I will present today includes final study
participation figures, an update of the mertality study, a descrip-
tion of some of the types of morbidity data which will be analyzed
and which will be of special interest to this committee, and the
dates on which we expect the reports to be available,

The Louis Harris and Associates contract for inhome question-
naire administration to the study participants was completed on
November 15, 1982. Of the 2,878 subjects selected for the question-
naire and physical examination phases of the study, only two
ranch handers and nine comparison subjects could not be located.
This is using every method that we could. Therefore, our location
rate for the baseline data group is 99.6 percent.

A total of 1,172 or 97 percent of the Ranch Handers, and 1,156 or
93 percent of the initiaﬁ,24l comparison subjects, participated in
the questionnaire. All comparison subjects who declined the ques-
tionnaire and/or the physical examination were substituted with
wililing subjects who were equally well qualified for inclusion in the
study.

In addition to the study subject questionnaire, Louis Harris and
Associates completed inhome interviews on 2,548 former or present
spouses, and 84 next of kin of known dead study subjecta. They also
completed 84 telephone interviews on the population that refused
to participate. Thirty-four Ranch Handers and 158 initial and/or
control substitutes were classified as absolute questionnaire refus-
als in the study.

One thousand forty-five, 87 percent, of the Ranch Hand popula-
tion and 940, 76 percent, of the initial comparison population par-
" ticipated in the physical examination. Two-hundred eighty-seven
comparison substitutions also completed the physical examination
prior to the contract completion date on December 15, 1982, for a
total of 1,227 comparison participants.
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In September of last year, I presented to this committee our ini-
tial mortality report based on deaths ocurring prior to January 1,
1982, The data that I am presenting today is an update of that ini-
tial report. The mortality analysis is an ongoing process, and addi-
tional deaths will be included in subsequent reports.

As of September 1, 1982, there were 67 documented deaths in the
ranch hand group: 22 were killed in action; 18 accidental deaths; 3
guicides; 1 homicide; 3 malignant neoplasms, or cancer; 1 endo-
crine, nutritional, metabolic and immunity disorder; 14 diseases of
the circulatory system; and 5 diseases of the digestive system.

For the same time period, there were 235 deaths among the com-
parison subjects. The larger number of comparison subject deaths
ig a result of the one-to-five ranch hand comparison gubject mortal-
ity study design. No statistically significant differences in the ¢rude
death rates were found between the Ranch Hand and the compari-
son group.

The overall survival pattern of the Ranch Hand and the compari-
8on group was contrasted to the 1978 U.8. white male population
vital statistics. Both study groups continue to experience signifi-
cantly less mortality than equivalently aged U.S. white males, an
epidemiologic phenomenon called the health worker effect.

The refined analyses of more than 4 million pieces of informa-
tion currently available will account for the effects of the exposure
patterns, social habits, other medical factors, family history or pre-
disposition to specific digeases, and time spent in Southeast Asia.

I would like to outline some of the data analyses we are going to
accomplish which may give you a c¢learer understanding of how we
will be asgessing the overall health of the study population. These
include mortality, assessments of general heslth, fertility/infertil-
ity, reproductive abnormalities, cancer, dermatologic, hepatic, psy-
chologic, neurologic, and cardiovascular diseases. There are many
other parameters which will also be reported,

This initial round of guestionnaires and physicals will form the
basis for the remainder of the study. Followup examinations will
be at 3, 5, 10, 15, and 20 years.

We have concluded our initial mortality study. The data will be
submitted to the advisory committee for review and should be
available for public release on the 30th of June, 1983. The morbid-
ity data—questionnaire and physical examination data—will be
submitted for review and should be available for public release by
early October 1983.

We will be happy to try to answer any questions, Thank you.

{The statement of General Chesney appears on p. 141.]

Mzr. PeEnNy. Thank you, General Chesney.

First of all, I would like to submit a question for the record. We
will submit it to you and ask that you provide a written response.
The question concerns the composition of the advisory committee.

hg‘reneral CHESNEY. Yes, sir. We will provide a written response to
that.

[The information appears on E 144.]

Mr. PEnNY. How is the Air Force collecting data to validate the
exposure of Ranch Hand personnel to agent orange?
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General CHesNEY. We are doing this as part of the questionnaire.
We are developing a mathematical exposure index that we are
working on to collect this data.

Let me ask Dr. Lathrop to tell you how we are doing that.

Mr. PENNY. Dr. Lathrop.

Colonel LatHroP. In addition to what General Chesney just said,
we are also collecting detailed informatior on tour data, that is,
the exact time each and every individual spent in Vietnam.

Further, we have conducted and plan more aircraft simulation
studies with the simulant to attempt to get a handle on how the
agent was dispersed throughout the aircraft while it was in flight.
It is from this information, tour data and simulation, that we are
hoping to construct an exposure index which will apply to each and
every one of the flyers,

Further, we will be attempting to extend this to the ground folks
as well so that all members of the Ranch Hand population will re-
ceive some sort of numeric as an exposure index, We will then at-
tempt to correlate this index with any clinical end point so detect-
ed in the epidemiologic studies,

Mr. PENNY. How would you say the tgrpical Ranch Hand exposure
compares with ground sold)i'er exposure?

General CHESNEY. Early on in our program, we did a crude math-
ematical calculation of this and ended up estimating that there
were many hundreds of times more exposure to the %{anch Hand
flying personnel than to the Army or Marine ground personnel.

Mr. PEnny. Did you calculate in the variable that Ranch Hand
perscnnel, though perhaps receiving greater expesure, had opportu-
nities to bathe or shower, whereas the ground soldier may have re-
ceived a lesser exposure but they had no opportunity to clean
themselves?

General CHESNEY. Yes, we looked at this. Skin absorption can be
rather rapid. After the personnel came back, they had to debrief,
do many other things, s¢ it could be quite some time before they
had a chance to shower. Many of them would fly in the same flight
guit for 2 or 3 days, so they still would be in the same clothing.
They would take it off and put something else on to go eat. But we
should look at this, yes.

Mr. PEnNNY. I don’t have any further questions, General Chesney,
but Congressman Evans may have some questions that he would
also like to submit to you. The committee would like response to
those guestions.

[The information appears on p. 144.]

Mr. PENNY. Mr. Sundquist?

Mr. Sunpquist. General Chesney, what is your conclusion on
Ranch Hand right now?

General CHESNEY. We have made no conclusions at all. From the
early mortality, it certainly seems that there hag been no increase
in death among our Ranch Hand flyers than would be expected in
a comparable population that did not go to Vietnam. That is the
only conclusion we can make so far.

Mr. Sunpquist. In your testimony, you have given a time for
public release in October of this year in that regard.

General CHESNEY. Yes, sir.
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Mr. Sunpquist. What about the other parts of the study in other

arde? When will that be released? When will that be concluded?

eneral CHESNEY. The October release will be all we have done

to date. We will continue to follow the ranch handers for mortality.

At 3, 5, 10, 15, and 20 years, we will repeat the study if it is
thought to be a worthwhile project in later years.

Mr. SunbpQuist. So you are dealing only with mortality?

General ChEsNEy. No, sir. I am sorry,

The mortality study will be released in June. The morbidity
study will be released in October. We are dealing with both. But we
will do repeat physical examinations and the questionnaires again
in 3 years—we are about ready to start over—and then at 5 years,
10 years, and so forth.

Mr. MoNTGOMERY. As a followup to the question that the gentle-
man from Minnesota asked, and that is that in testimony before
another VA subcominittee, statements were made down playing
Ranch Hand results because of the things that he talked about, the
fact that they could take showers and clean up and all of that. Do
you think that your study could be invalidated by that?

General CaesnNey. No, we do not. We think that our Ranch
Handers were by far the most exposed of anybody in Vietnam. They
were saturated with the material. They lived in it. Some of them
gﬁank it at parties. There was tremendous exposure compared to

e_.._

Mr. Sunpquist. They drank it at parties?

General CHEsNEY. Yes, sir. There was one of them that wore a T-
shirt that says “I drank Agent Orange.” There was tremendous ex-
posure when compared to the personnel on the ground.

Mr. SunpquisT. But you are getting into all of the other areas
such r;:13 children, the problem with other generations, all those
areas?

General Cursuey. Yes, sir. That data will all be released with
the morbidity study in October.

Mr. Sunpquist. That will be released in October?

General CHEsNEY. Yes, sir. The data on diseases, fertility, abor-
tions, birth defects, etc. will be released when we have it compiled.
We just have not gotten through it yet. There is too much there to
get done quickly.

Mr. Sunpquist. I want to commend you on how fast you are get-
ting through with that study. I think it is marvelous that we are
going to have some answers.,

General CHESNEY. Dr. Lathrop and his people are doing that. We
have been pushing them very hard.

Mr. Sunpguist. I commend you.

Thank you.

Mr. PENNY. Mr. Burton.

Mr. BurtoN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

What in the world would possess somebody to drink that stuff?

General CHESNEY. If I remember, the reporters were giving them
a hard time about it being poison, and they put it in their cocktails
and drank it. They didn’t worry about it at that time.

Mr. BurToN. As far as Air Force personnel is concerned, what
number do fycuu estimate was exposed to agent orange? Do you have
any rough figures?
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General CuesNeY. Of Air Force personnel?

Mr. Bunton. Yes.

General CHESNEY. Totally?

Mr. BurToN. Yes.

General CuesneEY. Of course, we had 1,269 Ranch Handers who
flew with the mission. There were a la{fe number of other people
who helped at times with the Ranch Hand operation. Our pilots
were, of course, on the ground in Vietnam during the entire thing.
We don't have a figure of how many were in Vietnam. I don’t have
it right now, but I can get that for the record, Mr. Burton.

Mr. BurTton. I am just curious. You have 1,172 as a figure for
how man¥ Bflrticipated in the study.

Genera ESNEY. Yes, sir.

Mr. BurTton, Have you attempted, or is there any way you could
contact everybody who was ex d to agent orange, that worked
on ic}gopping this defoliant in Vietnam, such as contacting them by
mail?

General CHESNEY. No, sir. That is a real problem. We had social
security numbers and addresses at one time on all of these people.
The average person in the United States moves every 5 years,
When they were discharged, getting their present ad , even
through their social security number, has been a problem because
of the Privacy Act. If you remember, we had to get special permis-
sion from Congress to even find the ranch handers through the In-
ternal Revenue Service, via NIOSH, which has the best method of
keﬁfing track of people by their gocial security number right now.

r. Burron. Would you recommend that we try to get the Priva-
¢y Act lifted, at least to contact those military personnel who were
exposed to agent orange in Vietham? Do you think that would be a
good idea, to send them a letter and get an updated address by
using the social security numbers through the Internal Revenue
Service?

General CHESNEY. Yes, sir, I think that could be done, and prob-
ably would be beneficial to the veterans to know what we are doing
and what all of the studies are. Yes, sir.

Mr. Burton. You think it would be a good idea then?

General CHesNEY. | think it would be a good idea to keep them
informed, yes.

Mr. BurToN. Do you think it might ultimately result in increas-
ing their longevity by letting them know that they might possibly
obtain cancer as a result of being exposed to agent orange?

General CHESNEY. | think it is too early to say. We do not have
enough information right now to say whether there will be an in-
crease in cancer or any other diseases at the present time.

Mr. BurtoN. But you do think it would be a good idea to inform
them of the possible dangers.

General CHESNEY. Yes, gir, I sure do, and to get physical exami-
nations and other treatments as necessary.

Mr. Burton. Thank you very much.

General CHESNEY. Yes, sir.

Mr. PEnNY. Mr. Burton, just for the record, I want to stress that
it is the Veterans’ Administration’s policy that anyone who went to
Vietnam is considered to be exposed because we don't have accu-
rate data on who may or may not have been exposed. So the list of
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those who we want to notify in a special way is a pretty extensive
listing right now.

Mr. BurToN. Mr. Chairman, May I ask you a question? I don't
know what the procedure to be followed here is, but I would like to
put in the record my request that we agk the Privacy Act be lifted
so that we can get updated addresses for ag many of the personnel
that were in Vietnam as possible so that they can be contacted, so
that we can give them as much information as possible on the dan-
gers they might have incurred as a result of exposure to agent
orange.

Mr. PENNY. Mr. Burton, we can and will include your request in
the record. The staff will bring that request to the chairman of the
committee, Mr. Montgomery. -

Mr. BurtoN. Thank you,

Mr. PENNY. I have one last question that occurred to me dealing
with the statistical analysis of deaths in the ranch hand group and
the control group.

Most of the statistics look as if they are comparable. In one case,
I think it was deaths as a result of digestive disorders. The Ranch
Hand group, maybe some of those who drank it, had 5 deaths and
the control groups, which was 5 times larger, had 11 deaths due to
digestive disorders. P

How do you square that? That seems like one example out of all
the deaths listed that jumps out as being inconsistent.

Celonel Laturor, Mr. Chairman, we are going to look at that
very carefully over the years. Certainly these folks drank more
than agent orange, the quality——

Mr. PenNNY. I maybe shou{dn’t have included that aside in my
question,

But it does seem curious that all of the other statistics do appear
to be proportional but, in that case, it is out of kilter. I was just
wondering if you could attribute that to anything at this point?
Will you be foﬁowing up on that incongistency?

Colonel LaTHROP. Yes.

Also, for your information, you should look at the malignancies
where you see a distinct shortcoming in the number of cancers in
the Ranch Hand group, which is quite interesting to us as of this
point in time, Again, that is another issue we will be tracking. We
have detected no soft tissue sarcomas in terms of mortality to this
peint in time.

Mr. PeNNy. I want to thank you again for your testimony before
the committee this morning,.

[ mentioned earlier that Congressman Evans would perhaps like
to submit additional questions to you, and you can then give us
written responses. Other members of the committee or the commit-
tee staff, through the Chairman, may also want to submit ques-
tions to you and, if so, we would appreciate written responses to
those so we could include them in the record.

[The information appears on p. 144.]

Mr. PEnnNY. I have one last request of the committee. Mr. Hillis
has asked that his opening statement be included in the committee
record. Vr\Lithout objection, we will see to it that that is included in
our record.



45

If there are no further questions, thank you again for your testi-
mony.

I thank everyone for appearing here today.

The subcommittee is adjourned,

[Whereupon, at 11:10 a.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.]

23-542 0 - 83 - 4



APPENDIX

COMP: PRESUMPTIONS: AGENT ORANGE

April 11, 1983

Sir Robert Cottem, KOMG
Achessedor

Imbassr of Australia
Rashington, P. €. 20036

Dear Azbassador Cotion:

Thank you for your letter of March 30 amd for the attemtion
vou have given to our Subcormittee on Oversicht eand Iovestizarioms
hesring on September 15, 1582,

I a= delighted thet you have reviewad the restimory presented
2t that bearing and have teken time to cozuent on some of the tes-
timewy presented at thzrt hearing, Ve have additions) hearings sched—
uled op the subject of Agent Orznge on Mey 3rd. AC that time I
intend to have Pour comments inserted ic the Tecord 5o they will
be made a part of the permanant hearing record. 1 think it is ex~
tremely icportent that the Tecord be clarified, 1 assuxe you that
will be done. .

I = most grateful for the cooperation we heve Taceived from the
govermuent of your country. We were delighted tc be able to git down
with varicus officials in Anstralis when we were there Tecently to
discuss rhe Agent Orange issue snd other veterans related issues.

The meeting was most helpful to thomse of us who attended.

Sincerely,

G. V. (S0WE7) HONTGOMERY
- Chairpen

MF: clg '
ey to Jack MeDonell

(S



EMBASSEY OF ALSTRALLA

AMBABRADON WASHINGTON, . C.

R RORERT SOTTON. KCMG

e d

30 March, 1983

APR 011983

Dear Mr Montgomery,

The record of the September 15, 1982 hearing
before the Subcommittee on Oversight and Investigation
¢f the Committee on Veterans hffairs, Rouse of :
Representatives, has come o the notice of the Departhent
of Veterans® Affairs in Cenberra, The Department has
suggested that we invite the attention of interested
pecple in the U.E. to the infermetion deteiled in the
attached paper.

The Embassy recently received 2 letter from
Larry Don Shaw, State of Texas House of Representatives,
Hr Ehaw, whe had apparently hetrd the same claim that
"rustralia has recognised 70 pear cent of its Agent
Orange disability claims™, asked for details sbout this
and about the report that hustralia "is taking care of
veterans' children”. RS this may be of interest te yoo
alsoﬁ I attach a copy of the information provided to
Mr Shaw.

I trust that this lctécr will help to clarify
the Australian positiom.

[Robe

Yours sincersly, .
Eoncrable G. V. (Scnny) Montgomery,
Chairman,
Subconmirtee on Oversight and Investigations,
Committes on Veterans Affairs,
House of Representatives,
WASEINGTON, D.C.



49

HEARING BEFORE THEE SUBCOMMITTEE ON OVERSIGHT AND INVESTIGATIONS
. OF THE COMMITTEE ON VETERANS RFFAIRS, HOUSE OF REPRESENTRETIVES,
SEPTEMEER 15, 1982 -
COMMENTS ON STATEMENTS MADE ABOUT THE AUSTRALIAN POSITIOR
O “AGENT ORANGE" CLAIMS

At page 58 of the record (serial number $7-78},

Mr Lawis Milford of the National Veterans Law Center is gquoted

as saying
... the australian case has been mentioned, I

think it is important t¢ point out that in the

last VA Advisory Committee meeting, the Minister

from Australia said that more than 70 percent

of veterans from Austreliz have had their claims

granted on the basis of agent orange. The

.. reasen for that ig that the hustralian system
contains an element of fairpess that is missing
in the VA system. In the Australian system, the
Government has the burden of disproving that 2
hezlth problem wes caused by agent crange”.

Later in the record Representative Margaret M. Heckler is
cucted a5 referring to "the Australian example cated by
Mr Milferd".

Z. Mr Milford's statement shows that there have been
significant misunderstandings of the Rhustralizn circumstances.

EN No Australian Minister has been prescnt at a Vi
advisory Committee mee#ting. The meeting in guestion was
attended by the Secretary of the Department of Veterans'
rffeirs, Mz Volker, whose speech is included 2t pages 110-1123
of the recerd in serial number 9%-78. It will be seen that
there is no mention in the speech of &ny percentage of claims
being granted "on the basis of agent cramge”.

4. A possible explanation of the reference by Mr Milford
to “70 percent” is that Mr Velker may have mentionad that

some 70 percent of claims made in the hustralian "repatrietion”
system are successful. This figure related not to Agent Orance
nor even to Vietnam veterans as such,  but to claims by veterans
of all conflicts, whose disabilicy claims were being accopted
vy Ropatriation Boards in about 70 peréent of cases.

LR As to Vietnam apd the chemical issve, some specific
information ¢an be given. Decause veterans naturally do not
z2lways know  what chemical may have been used at & particular
time, statistics are maintajined by State Branches of the
Department of Veterans' Ahffairs on claims vhere the veteran
makes any reference to possible exposure to chemicels in
Vietnam, rather than to the individual herbicide Agent

Orange alone. As at 31 Janvary 1983, 2 total of 1,327 clainms
mentioning possible chemical sxposure had been lodged at the
initial Jevel (the Repatriation Boards). oOf those claims,



478 were accepted, 627 rojected, and 222 were still awaiting
determination by Boards. In almost 211 of those cascs it

was unnecessary for Boards to determine whether disgnosed
disabilities were linked to chemical exposure. The statistics
show that one of the 478 accepted cases was accepted by a
Board on chemical exposure grounds. An Army veteran had been
treated for creosote and dieldrin burns to both eyes during
Vietnam service. The Board allowed his claim for chronic
conjunctivitis after noting the departmental medical officer’'s
opinion that the burns could well have been 2 ceusal factor

in the development of the condition.

6. Accerding to the Department of Veterans® affairs
state Branch_ statistics, one case was accepted on chemical
grounds on gppeal to the Repatriation Review Tribunal. The
acceptance provided 3 pensian to a widow whose husband had
died of lymphoma. When the claim was first made to the
Depertment of Veteérans' Affazirs, the departmentsl medical
officer's cpinicn was that on a2ll the available evidence
there was no demonstrable relationship between exposure to
hgent Orange and the development of malignant lymphoma in
man. The veteran's ¢laim was then rejected by a Repatriatien
Boaré and on appeal was revected by the Repatriation Commigsion.
When a further appegl-was made to the Repatriation Review
Tribunal, the Tribunzl, referring inter alia to

-~ thy Swddish (Bardell) research on lymphoma and
exposure to chemical substances

- Court interpreteticons of the hustralian
Rematriation legislation

s2id it was not satisfied beyond reascnable doubt that there
‘were inswuificient grounds for granting the claim. ({The
legislation requares a determining authority to grant a

cleim or allow an appeal unless the avtherity is so setisfied}.
A further commant by the Tribunal it thiz case is of relevance
to the remark by Mr Milford relating to the .stapndard of preef -
in the Australian Repatriatiorn system. The Tribupal said :

It mey be that if the Tribunal were reguired to be
satisfied that, on 2ny standard of proof pormally
invoked in civil proceedings, the suggested causal
relationship between the toxic chemicals to which the
Applicant may have been exposed on service and his
particular type of lymphemd hod been proved to

exist we ¢could not, on the evidence before us, be so
satisfied, "



EMBASSY OF AVUSTRALLA

AMBASSADOR WASHINGTOMN. D. C.

i ROPERT COTTON, KOMG

-

30 March, 193

Dear Mr Shaw,

The Austrzlian ﬁcpartment of Veterans hffajre
has aszked me ¢to respond 10 your letter of February 11,
1983 regarding Vietnam veterans.

In regard to your first guestion on Australia's
treatment of "Agent Orange” disability claims, you gupted
the same figure ("70 per cent of claims recognised”) as
mentioned by Mr Milforé of the Nationzl Veterans Law Center
before the Subcommittee on Oversight and Investigations
of the Committee on Veterans Affairs, House of Representztives,
in Washington on September 15, 1982, You will be interested
in the attached copy of our letter to the Subcommittee’s
Chairman on this metter.

You alse expressed interested in the hustraliap
program of 2ssistance to vetgrans and the report that
hustralia "is taking care of vaterans' children”™. The
information which follows has been supplied by the
Department of Veterans' Affairs in Canberrs.

In hustralia, compensation for veterams is provided
under a body of legiglation known as the Repatriation
legislation. This provides for pensions, tedical and
hospital treatment and other henefits for eligible
beneficiaries, The system is applied in similar fasnion
to veterans of azll conflicts,

Under the Busiralian syetem, individual veteran's
claims are investigezted and determined by independent
determining authorities, Where & claim is accepted, free
treatment ie provided for accepted disabilities and a2
pension is granted in accordance with the 2ssessed extent
of incapacity. There is= provisien for appeal to independent
reviewing authorities against unfavourable decisions and
in certain circumstances appeal is 2llowed to the Federal
Court of hustrzlia anc ultimately to the High Court of
hustralia.
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The Repatriation legislation provides that
veterans' claims must be granted unless the determining
suthority is satisfied beyond ressonable doubt that
there are insufficient grounds for granting the claim.
There is po automatic presumption that any eondition
is service-related. Each claim is assessed on its
meIits.

In certain specified cases, benefits for
gligible veterans' children are avajilable under the
Soldiers' Children Education Scheme, zbout which a
shert explanation is enclosef. There are alsp gmall
zllowances known as dependants' pensions for chiléren
of entitled veterans. These benefits &pply to the .
children of entitled veterans of all conflicts. However,
the context of your letter sugQests that you ere referring
to situatiens where veterans claim or fear that abnormalities
in their children are releted to Vietnam service.
There is no benefit provided in respect of such a ¢laim.
No link hes been established between veterans' Vietnam
service and sbnormalities in children., A study was
recently conducted by the Commonwealth Institute of
Bealth, DUniversity of Sydney, which found no increased
risk of fathering &2 deformed child, as a result of
pustralian Prmy service in Vietnam. A copy of the study
report iy enclosed.

Several arrangements have been introduced
especially to assist Vietnam veterzn:. The Vietnam
Veterans Counselling Service provides & focux for advising
these veterans end their families. The facilities to
which the Sarvice may refer cliente includes genetic
counselling. Without additional cost to themselves,
Vietnam veterans may be oiven urgsnt medical treztment
and in certain circumstances their families vay be
provided with emergency treatment in Repatriztion
hospitals on referral from the Counselling Service.

You were &lso seeking the names of individusls
who have sponsored veterans' legisleiion. 1In pustralia,
legislation of this nature is generally sponsored by
the Minister for Veterans' hffairs, who is a member of
the Parlizment. There is n¢ Parliamentary Committee
dealing solely with veterans' issues. However, the
Senate Standing Committee on Sciente and the Environment
recently conducted@ an inguiry intc pesticides and the
health of Australian Vietnam veterans. A copy of that
Committer's Seport is enclosed.
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I trust that the information provided will
be ©of assistance. Should yov -have any further
snguiries I suggest that you direct them to tha
Secretary, Departwent of Veterans' Affajrs, P.0. Bex 21,
Woden, A.C.T. 2606, husptralis.

Yours sincersly,
Lottt
{Ro ton)
Honorable Larry Don Shaw,
State Repressntative,
State of Texas HAouse ©f Representatives,
P.0. Box 2910
AUSTIN, Texas 78769
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EDUCATION AND TRAINING

Suldien'.Child:en Education S¢heme

The cbjects of this Scheme are to usist and encounsge aligible children 1o scquire & man-
dard of education compatible with their apuivadc asdd co provide them with & suitable vou
Torion in dife.

higible children

Childeen of & weienm:

+ whosr Seazh has bern accepred m srvice-redseed, o

+ who died from chwia™no ererehated bur was iving B the time of his diarh: o
it wbsequencly sdivdped to have bren enticled 10 by, 8 postiog st
rhow Specand Ratr for vocal and p incapaciny or for Blind o

o of the s payable 1 dauble smputees; e

o who, a8 the resulr of service, is Blinded i is tosslly and pormanoly mcepicitaod.
Crorvera) bamnactics
From ehe commencemenr of primary sducanon waxil the child reschus vwddve yeary of age,
sobanil reguesines and dares sse proveded. From i comamnietwent of soumdary oo stion,
o deom the age of enehee veurs, s beser g e gackicn, dlwe B ol askieran e lages
and, whele e ) oostitees sl IR or wuamdare cdocatnn, an elaoaiun gl
e v pavalil v
Spuvialisid educainn .
O comphition of peterad rducation, further may B gracn o undeftabie b oourse
wf wpmvialised eduction s prining e 0 the chikd bt o canar.

Thew: couns mcluee:

.p lmdegree or Sipl courses tineluding theulugica! fraining) st
enllepey of advanred educmion and sechawal callepe;

# uadet and pupilag ining: ining bimnd with emplay o G DHTLNE, pasr-
palimi and ocher vorstivem] traimng:

* indurcrial Iuding apprenticethip craining and oeher apprwed coanes of tesde and

businces teaining: and
& agrivultutal=—traiming 3t an apgiveloumd colkage.

As montionnd, vdwoacem allewsnces mar b prvalde inpespant of chikdees seer rweine
vearg ol age. and wedo wotuam ofwmsanees dbddion are sl poveded sk ook and
wquipment. Thur fres and fares are gid while sudying for advanced vimers.
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Hearings Subc on 0 & 1

May 12, 1983

Ms. Kae Rairdin

Acting Deputy Under Secretary for
Intergovernmental Affairs

Acting Chafr, Agent Orange Working Group

Office of the Secretary

Department of Health & Human Services

Mashington, D. C. 20201

Dear Ms. Rairdin:

Thank you for your letter of May 10th, enclosing a
copy of the April 11, 1983 revision to "Update on Agent
Orange Fact Sheet".

The April 11th revision will be included in the
Subcomnittee on Oversight and Investigations May 3rd
hearing record in 1ieu of the February 23rd version.

I apprectate your catling the revision to my
attention.

Sincerely,

G. Y. (SONNY) MONTGOMERY
Chairman

bpd
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES Ctfion of the Secrewry

Weshingion, 0.C. 20201
Joril 11, 1863

MEMRANICHM TO: All State Veterans Departmants/
State AQent drange (bowissiconers/
Wterans Service Organizations and
Quotdinatoca, etc.

SORTECT : Opdate on Ment Orange Mact .Shest

-

The attached Fact Sheet has been updated and revised, afnce
the Pebruary 4, 1982 reledss and vas compiled with che
asmistance of several mambers of the Science Panel of the
Qblnet Guncil MAent Ocangs Working Group. It provides a
listing of Pederal Ressarch into two broad categories:

4} Himan Studies; and,
bl Other Studiss.

This Pact Sheet may by helpful to yeu and your organization.
Flease circulate to any group you cepressnt

Dr. Pater ELMT

tirector of Veterand Affairs/HHS
Staff Director :
Mant Crange Working Group

Actachment



CABINET COUNCIL ON HUMAN RESOURCES

WHITE HOUSE
AGENT ORANGE WORKING GROUF
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AGENCY CONTACTS
ON FEDERAL RESEARCH
ON AGENT ORANGE

Vacant

Deputy Under Secretary for Intergovernmental
hffairs (Chair)

{202} 245-~0409

Mr. Bart Kull, HHS
Alternate Chair and Chair, Public Affairs Panel
{202) 245-6156

Dr. Carl Keller

Temporary Chair, Science Panel

Epidemiologist

National Institute of
Ernvironmental Health Sciences

{301} 236-4111

Mr, Edward Welss, Eaquire
General Coungel Office, HHS
Legal Counsel

(202) 245-1920

Dr. Pater E.M, Beach, HHS
Staff Director
(202) 245=-2210

Dr. Barclay Shepard
Veterans Administratcion
(202) 389-5411

Dr. Petar Flynn
Dapartment of Defanse
(202) 697-8973

Dr. Phillip Kearney
Dapartment of Agriculture
(301) 344-3533

Dr. Donald Barnes
Environmental Protection Agency .
{202) 382-2897
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This Fact Sheet of Agant Crange Ressarch was compliled by
the Agent Orange Working Group tec inform the interestad public
about currant U.5. Federal Governmaunt research on phanoxy
herbicides and theilr contaminants. The liat describes ongoing
ressarch and demonatrates the breadth of research efforts.
Interestesd parsons may obtain further information on these
studies by contacting the repreaentative, as listed in the Fact

Shest, from each Pedaral agency conducting research.

This Fact Shaet, dascribing the sixty-four federal studies
and reasearch projscts completad and undarvay, 18 a clsar
illustration of the time and effort and funding that has been
sxpendad in the Federal arena and demonstrates the government's

positive affort to seek answers to the Agent Orange guestion.

The Agent Oranges Working Group has the responalbility for
cverseeing such reaearch and disseninating information to the
puhl;c as it becomes available. In light of this mandate, ths
Working Group has complled this list. The Working Group will
also assure that res;;rch findings are promptly made availabla

to the public as data are gathered and analyses are completed,
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FEDERALLY SPONSORED HUMAN STUDIES RELATED TO MGENT ORANGE

AGENCY TYPE OF STUDY STATUS
Rapro~ Estimated
STUDY TITLE Mortality Morbidity cCancer duction Analytical _@!pletcd Sugoing Completion Data

DEFARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
HOMAH SERVICES

WIOSH Investigation of x X Publication
Laukemis Cluster in Oct 83
Hadison County, Fentucky

Allegedly Associated with

Pantachloropheno)l Txeated

Mmunition Boxes

D¢ Birth efacts and b 4 X Late 1383
Military Bervice in
Vietnam Study

WIOSH Dioxin Reglstry X - x X Late A%

NIEHE Establishment and X i X Indefinite
Maintenance of an Inter-

naticnal Pegleter of Perscns

Exposed to Phenoxy Acid

Berbicides and Ooptaminante

HIOSA Soft Tigsue Sarcoms ¥ x x Indefinite
Invextigation

HCI Cape Control Study of 4 ) I Late B4
Lymphoma and Scft Tissue Sarcosa

WCI Study of Mortality Among - X Publications in
Pasticide Applicators from Frean

Florida
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FEDERALLY SPONSORED HUMAN STUDIES RELATED TO AGENT ORARGE

AGRECY TYFR OF STUODY STATUS
Repro- Extimated
SrUDY TITLE Wortality Morbidity <ancer duction Malytical Compleced Oogoing Completion Tate

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
AND HUMAM SERVICES cont'd

wnC Epidemiclogic Study of I x x 4 x 1967

Ground Troops Exposad to
Agent Orange during the
Vietnam Conflict

VETERANS ADMINISTRATION

Vistpam Veteran Mortality x x Late 1984
Srudies

Vietnam Vetaran Jdentical I x Proto- Initial 1984
Twin Stuwdies col

Survey of Patient Treat- ) 4 } X Initia) 19683
went File for Vietnam Burvey

Vetaran In~Patient Care

Agant Crange Bugistry } 4 X x Indefinice
Examinationg

DD in Pody Fat of x x x b 4 Publicaticn in
Vietnam Vetarans and Freparation
Othear Han

Retrospective Study of H X 1985

DMoxins and Purans in
Miposs Tissas of
Vietnam—Exra Veterans

;;:;dltad to the YA by P.L. 96-151 Bec¢. 307. Tranaferred from VA to CDC under Interagency Agreemsnt Janvary 14,

19



FEDERALLY SPONSORED HUMAH STUDIES RELATED TO AGEMT CRANGE

ETATUS

AGERCY TYPE OF ETODY
Repro- Estimated
ETUDY TIYLE

DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE

Epideniclogic Investiga- X
tion of Haalth Effects

in Mr Poxce Personnal

Following Exposure to

Barbicide Orange {Mr

Porce Health Study}

Armad Forcas Institute

of Pathology Agant Oxange
Registry of Vietnam Vateran
Riopay Tissues

EMY TROMMENWTAL PROTECTION
AGERCY

Raport of Aseeswment of a
Meald Inveatigation of
Eix-Year Spontansous Abor-
tion Rates in Thras (vegon
Areas of Falation to Porest
2,4,5-T Spray Practices

Wational Pesticids Monitor-
ing Project of Human
Miposs Tiasue

sortality Morbidity Cancer duction Malytical Completsad Ongoing Completion Date

x Baasline 1383
Complete 19990

x Indefinite
I
{Published}
) Indefinita
{Annual
Baports)

29



FEDERALLY SPORSORED HUMAK STUDIEE FELATED TO AGENT ORANGE i

AGERCY TYPE OF S5TUDY BTATDE
Repro= Eacimated
STUDY TITLE Mortality Morbidity cCancer dustion Analytical Completed Ongoing Complstion Date

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

A Cage Oontrol Btudy of X X
the Relationpship Between -
Expoguxe to 2, .4-D and

Spontanecus Abortions in

Humans

Expogure Meaguremsnts of X X 1982
Mixers, Loaders and Appli-

cators of 2,4-D op Whaat

Exposure of Forest Workars x X 1981

to Ground Mplicaticns of
2,4-D



FEDERALLY SPORSORED LARORATORY STUDIRS AND LITERATURE SURVEYE RELATED TO MGEMT ORAHGE

TYPE OF STUDY

GTATUS

8TULY EFPORT Animal

Enwir

Analytical Literature

Completed

DEFARDENT OF HEALTH
AND HUMAN SERVICES

Bicassay of Octachlorodiben—
so=p—aioxin

Carcinogenesin Biocassay of
3,3,7,8~Tetrachlorodlbans o=p—
dioxin in Swiss Webster Mica

Carcinoganeais Bicassay of
2,3, 7,8=Tetrachlorodibengo=p-
Aioxin in Oeborne-Mendsl Ratx
and BSCAFl Kice

Bioapsay of a Mixtura of
1,2,3,6,7,8- and a Mixture
of 1,2,3,6,7,8-Bexachloro=
dibenso—p=dicxins for
Pousitble Carcinogunicity

Comparative apaclies Evalu-
ation of Chemfcsl bl gposition
and Metabolism of 2,3.7,8~
Tetrachloreodibenzafuran (TCDF)
in Rat, Monkey, Guinea Pig and
Two Strains of Mice

Beurotoxicity of 2,4,-D in
Fodents

Dangoing

Estimated
ooapletion Date



FEDERALLY SPONSORED LABCFATORY STUDIES AND LITERATURE SURVEYS RELATRD TO AGENT ORANGE

AGENCY 4

TYPE OF STODY

STATUS

ETUDY RFFPORT Animal

DEPARTNENT OF HEALTH
AND HOMAN SERVICES cont'd

Stydiss of the Chamica)l Dispo- I
sition and Mataboliam of
Octachloxodibenrodioxin (OCDD)

Effects of Agent Orange Compo-—
nants on Male Pertility and

Reproduccion

Mutagenicity Studies of TCDD,
2,4-D; 2,4,5%T and Exters of
2,4=D and 2,4,5-7

Implicationg of Low Lavel
Bxposurs of Doxine

Mechanisms of Toxicity of
the Chlorinatad~ p—dioxins

Research Toward lnderstand- H
ing the Molecular Level
Machanisms of Toxiclty of

TCOD and Related Compounds

Synthezis of Beleacted
Tetrachlorodibenzo-p-dioxine
and Falated compounds am
Malytical Standande

Envirc 1 Analytical Litarature

Complated  Ongoing

Estimated
Completion Date



FEDERALLY SPONSORED LABORATORY STUDIES AND LITERATURE SURVEYE RELATED TO AGEHMT ORANGE

TYPE OF STUDTY

STATUS

ETUDY EFFORT

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
AND HIMAN SERVICES cont'd

Matrix Effect and Sub Parta-

par-billion Quantitative
Anaiysie of T™CDD by Hasca
Bpectrometry - With Special
Rafarence to Milk

Toxic Actione of Tetra=
chloroazobenrane Dlioxine

Fancbiotic Induction of
Fleiotropic Responass in
Tdver

Molecular, Biochemical
Actions of Chlorinated-p-
aloxing

Mechanism(s) for Toxicity
of thlorinated Dibenzo-
dioxips

Modular basis of Diaxin
toxicity in keratinocytes
{HIEHS}

Malytical Literaturs

Entimated
Completed  Ongolng Completion Date

X 8/84



FEDERALLY SPOMSORED LABORATORY STUDIES AND LITERATURE SURVEYS RELATED TO AGENT ORANGE

AGENCY TYPE OF STUDY STATUS

Bstimated
STUDY EFFORT Animal  Envir tal  Analytical Literature Cospleted Ongoing Completion Date

ENY IROMMENTAL PROTECTION
AGERCY

Evaluation of Large Scale x X
Cosbustion Scurces

Evaluation of Municipal X
Wasta Combustors

Bacterial Decomposition x
of TCDD

Investigation of Bioavajla- x x
bility to Fresh Water Fish

of TCoDe in Fly aAsh

Analysis of Enviropmental X X X
Samples foar PCDDs and PCOFs

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Survey of Phenoxy Herbi- X X
cide Use by Agricultural

ommodity

Survey of Phenoxy Herbi- ) 4 ) Annaul Biblig-

cide Litaraturs graphiea
Eublished



FEDERALLY SPONSORRD LABORATORY STUODIES AMD LITERATURE SURVEYS RELATED TO AGENT ORAKGE

TYPE OF SETUDY

BTATUS

EMIDY EFFORT

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
cont'd

Photolysis of 2,4.5-7
Bioclogical and Bconomic
Aazescment of 2.4,5-T and
Silvex

TCDD Residue Mopitoring
in Deer

DEFARTMENT OF DREFENSE

Environmental Chesdlatry of
Perbicide orange and TCDD

VETERANS ADMIMISTRATION

Reviaw of Literatura on
Heybicides, Including
Fhenoxy Herbjicides and
Agpociated Dioxins

Mrinary &é-Hydroxy Cortisocl:
Mhyalologlical apd Pharmace—
logic Stwdies (Including
Agent Cwange)

Effact of TCOD on Lipid
Metaboliam

Animal

Envir

Exstimnted

Analytical

Literature

Comprl eted

Ongeing Completion Date

Pablished
1981

Baport in
Preparation

X indefinite

Annual Update

Approved

x 1982

x 1383



PEDERALLY SPOMEORED LABORATORY STUDIES AND LITERATURE SURVEYS RELATED TO AGENT ORANGE

MCENCY TYFPFPE OF ETU0DTY STATUS

Estimated
STUDY EPPORT Animal  Envin tal pnalytical Literaturs Compleved Ongodng Completion Data
VETERARE ADMINISTRATION
cont'd
Machanisme of Dioxin Induced ) 4 x Publication in
Toxicity Using the Chloracme Press
Modal - Phase I
Behavioral Toxicity of An X X 1984
Ment Orange Oomponent 2,4=D
Effacts of 2,3,7,8-Tetra=- X X igas
chlorodibenzodioxin on Hepato- -
biliary Punction in Animals
Machanism of TCDD Absorption x R 4 1985
and Toxicity on Lipid and
Lipoprotein Betabollsw
Metabolisw of the Harbi- x x 1985
cldes Present in Agent
Orange and Agent White
COD Bxposed Phesus Monkeya: x x 1985

Effects on Behawior and
Btress Bormones

69



PEDERALLY SPORSORED LABORATORY STUDIFR AND LITERATIRE SURVEYS RELATED TO AGENT ORANGE

AGENCY TYPE OF S§TUDY STATUS

Estimated
STUDY EPPORT Animal Envir tal Analytical Literatore Completed  Omgoing Coepletion Date
VETERANS ADMINISTRATION
cont'd
Haurcmuacular Toxicity of 4 X 1985
Agent Orange
Hechanisms of Dicxin Inducad i X 1985
Poxicity Ueing the Chloracms
Modal - Phage II
Effecta of Low Dose TCDD X X 1986
on Mammalian Chromoacises
and Liver Calls
Mechaniam of Porphyria Caused X i 1986
by TCDD and Related Chemicals
Ef focta of Agent Orange on X x 1986

Slaep

oL
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STATEMENT OF JOHN F. SOMMER, JR., DEPUTY DIRECTOR
NATIONAL VETERANS AFFAIRS AND REHABILITATION COMMISSION
THE AMERICAN LEGION
TO THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON QOVERSIGHT AND INVESTIGATIONS
COMMITTEE ON VETERANS AFFAIRS
U.8. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

MAY 3, 1983
My, Chairmsn and Members of the Subcommittee:

The American Legion appreciates this opportunity to present
our views on Agent Orange research; a priority issue of this
organization, and a matter of utmost importance to Vietnam
veterans and their families.

There 15 a conalderable amount of research relatlng to
various health affects of Agent Orange exposure, aside from the
study mandated by PL 96-151, that is either currently underway
or in the planning stages, and we will comment on several of
the projects that the Legion feels are significant.

Mr. Chairmen, The American Legion was extremely pleased that
the Centers for Disease Control tock aver the responsibility for
the PL 96-151 study when the Interagency Agreement between the
Veterans Admirnistration and the Department of Health and Human
Services was signed on January 14, 1883, The transfer fulfilled
a icng and intense effort by the Legion to have the study completed
by a scientifle agency that is independent of the Va.

¥e are encouraged by the manner in which CDC has progressed
since accepting the responsibillity for the study. Within a
matter of days following the signing of the Interagency Agreement,
CDC officials met with The American Legion to discuss tThe study

and elicit input and recommendations relating to the research.
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At the same time, wa offersd the cooperatiom of the Leglon
in encoursging the participation of Vietnam veterans in the study,
ag We are keenly aware of the importance that such participation
will play in the success of the CDC studies.

In reviewing the protocol outline prepared by CDC when it
first became available to the Leglon in early February, it was
obvious that a great deal of what appears to us to be highly
competent work waas achleved in a relatively short period of time.

CDC bas recommended that two historical cohort studles be
completed; the Agent Orange study, and & broader Vietnam experienca
atudy. Authority for the expansion of the study wae provided under
PL 97-7T2, and CDC was quick o reslize the importance of studying
the pessible health effects that other herbicides such ms Agents
White and Blue (picloram and cmeodylic acid, respectively), cother
chemicals, medications, or environmental bazards or conditions,
that exlisted in Vietnam could have had on the veterans who served
in RVN.

The studies will edch be coamprised of three major components;
a mortality study, a heelth and exposure questionnaire, and a
clinical and laboratory asgessment.

The Agent Orange study is to consist of 3 cohorts, and the
Vietnam experience study 2 cohorts, The cohorts are to be compased
of 6,000 individuals each, selected pursuant to a thorough review
a? the military records by the Army Agent Orange Task Force (AAOTF).
The americen Legion is pleased to have learned that CDC has assigned

a Public Health Advisor to work full-time with the AAODTF, as we
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have long streszed the importance of a liaison between this
dedicated group of experts in the area of military records and
the agency responsible for the development of the protocol and
the conduct of the Agent Orange study.

The AAOTF plays an 1lntegral part in the Ageat Orange research
efforts, and especially with respect to the foregoing studies that
are currently belng implemented by CDC. Without the military
records from Vietnam the study cohorts could not be selected, thus
it would be imposaible to carry out the studies. It is unfortunate
that the unckbtrusive nature of the work performed by AAOTF detracts
from the actual importance of the responsibilities that the Task
Force bear. The American Legion is concerned that because of this
inconspicuousness, not enough emphasis 1s placed on the priority
nature of the Army Agent Orange Task Force's role in the ongoing
research.

The Leglonunderstands that CDC has received approval for the
requeated poaitions needed to carry out the studies, and they are
in the process of recrulting the necessary staff, However, this
has not detracted from the ongoing development of the protocols
for the two studies which are expected to be completed and avallable
for peer review by the end af May.

CDC 15 also looking at the possibility of conducting case-
control studies of the incidence of soft tissue sarcomas and
lymphomas. The American Leglon is aware of the importance of such
case-~cobtrol studies, particularly wivh respect to soft-tissue

sarcomas, and we urge that they be cohducted by, or under the
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responsibility of CODC.

Mr, Chairman, as we stated at the outset, the Legion is
both encouraged and pleased by the progress made by CDC in a
relatively short period of time. ¥n addition, CDC has held to
a committment made at the time the agency assumed responsibility
for the study - to seek the input and recommendations of The
American Legion and other veterans organizations, and to maintain
opes lines of communication. For this we are appreciative.

The only other thing that we can ash is that CDC release
all relevant findings as they become available during the studies.
Vietnam veterans are concerned about the effects of Agent Orange
and cther epviromnmentel hazards and want the facts as best they
can be aestablished. The American Legion's goal is to make
absolutely sure that these concerns and apprehensions are promptly
and accurately addressed.

Mr. Chairman, we will now offer comment on some of the other
ngenf Orange related research projects that are currently being
carried cut by the Veterans Administration, ather Federal agencies,
and by private entities under contract to the government, The
American Legion is monitoring all of these studies, within the
limits of our capabilities, and it is hopeful that the results
of each of the projects will complemont the total Agent Orange
research effort.

The examipnation of Ranch Hand personnel, those Air Force
personnel who were directly involved in Agent Orange spraying

missions jn Vietnam, has heen completed, and we understand that
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an excellent rate of participation among the over 1200 individuals
who served in that unit was experienced. The study is compased

of three elements; a mortality study, a morbildity study, and a
follow=-up. The questionnaire iavolved in this investigation was
administered under contract by the Harris Organization, and the
physical examinations and laboratory siudies were conducted by

the Kelsey=Seybold Clinic in Houston, Texas on a contract basis.

4 mortality report ls expected to be issued in the near future,
and prelimipary reports cn the data obtained from the examinattions
and questionpaires later in 1983. Follow-up examinations will be
completed at 3,5,10,15 and 20 year points.

The Centers for Diaease Control in Atlanta is conducting &
study that 1ls designed to determine whether or not veterans who
served in Yietnam are at a higher risk of producing offspring
with serious birth defects. The test population consists of
approximately 7500 babies with birth defects born in the Atlanta
area between LS8E and 1980, the ildentlity of which were extracted
from the CDC birth defect regilstry. Where possgible, the parents
of the subject babies are being interviewed to determine the
factors which may be responsible for the occurrence of the
abnormalities, including service in Vietnam and pessible exposure
to toxic substances which may be attributable thereto. Reportedly,
CDC has experienced a good participaticon rate in this study.
However, we understapnd there are some prablems in locating a
smail number of veterans who were previounaly interviewed, and

are pow belng contacted for follow=-up interviews, due to the fact
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they have moved. The results of this study are expected to be
avallable by the end of 1983,

The Armed Forces Institute of Pathology, since 1978, has been
collecting pathologic material including tissues extracted during
surglesl procedures and during autopsy procedures, of Vietnam
veterans from Veterans Administration medical centers, Armed Forces
hospltalas, and from medical facllitiea in the private sector, for
the purpose of surveying the illpmesses that have been incurred by
these Vietnam veterans. It was recenﬁly reported that 1200Q caees
have been submitted to AFIP to date, and an additional 600 are
forthcoming. The project ia being divided tnto two phases. The
first phase is the collectlon and evaluation of the cases of veterans
who served on active duty in Vietoam from 1962 to 1974. The second
phase consista of the collectlon and evaluation of the cases of
veterans or active duty personnel who did not serve in Vietnam.
This group will serve &E matched controle for the cohort included
in phaee one. We find it interesting to note the different diagnoses
that have been made thus far. There are 86 different diagnoses
af the skin, 15 varied liver dlagnoses, 16 different benign tumor
diaghoses, and 30 diagnoees of malignant tumora. There have besen
an additional 173 diagnoses made, not including the foregoing.

Aa for the collection of the pathoclogic tiasue, 1088 samples are
submitted by VA medical centers, 74 of the casezs involved veteraans
in ¢ivilian bospitals, and the remaining 4 percent were submitted
by Federal hospivals, for the most part Alr Force. The tissue

samples have been sent to AFIP from 46 States, and 299 percent of
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the cases lpvolved male veterans., The completlion date of this
study is indefinite,

The Veterans Adminlatration has begun preliminary work on a
Vietnam veteran mortality study which will draw a comparison of
death rates and ihé causes of demth between groups of veterans who
served in Vietnam and those who did not. VA estimates that this
study will be completed in mid 19B4.

An identical twin study is currently being designed by the VA
at the St. Louls VAMC, The proposed study will compare a significant
number of pairs of twins; one of whom served in Vietnam and the
other who was in the military but was n.* in RVN, to examine the
effectea of the Vietnam experience. This study is expected to be
concluded in mid 1884,

Ten additionel research projects have recently been approved
by the Administrator of Veterans Affairs, selected from proposals
submitted by iodividusl investigators working in VA medical centera,
in response toc a request for new research proposals lssued by VA
Medical Reaearch Service, which specified a biochemical, physiolo-
gical or toxicological focus on the delayed effects of exposure to
Agent Orange and other herbicides. The research projects for the
mogt part involve animal studies, but human tissue cultures will
be analyzed in acme of the experiments, such as blochemical studies
of fat metabolism. The new projects are supported for up to five
vears with VA research funds in excess of $2 million.

The VA has established an Environmental Medicine Monograph

Series which was desgigned to provide useful ipnformation of a

23-542 Q0 - 83 - 6
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geientific pature on environmental and oceupational factors that
have or may have affected the health of Vietnam veterans. The
Monographs that are to be initiated in Fiscal Year 1583 include
agent Blue (cacodyliec acid), Human Exposure to Phencxy Herbicides,
Birth Defacts {genetlc screening and counseling), and Chloracne.
The American Legion will centinue to monitor the development of
these and other wmounographs that have been preoposed for future
implementation.

The Legion is alac following with interest several other
ongoing studies involving dioxin exposure, tncluding the National
Institute for Occupetional Safety and Health (NIOSH) Dioxin
Reglstry, the NIOSH Soft Tissus Sarcoma Lovestigatjion, and the
National Cancer Institute's Case Control Study of Lymphoma and
So0ft Tissue Sarcoma.

Mr,. Chairman, we have presented thiszs compeandium of major
agent Orange and related research projects to demonatrate the
magnitude of the total effort being put forth to determine the
possible consequences of exposure, Needless to say, the pilcture
is chaoging and it iy apparent to the Legion that progress 1s
being made. As was stated earlier, the Canters for Disease Control
has moved quickly on the preliminary implementation of the study
mandated by FL 96-151, and the expanaion of that study authorized
by PL 97-72. The agency has determined the complexities involved
ip such problemstic research, and has moved forward to address
the studies. We urge that CDC coatiaune to sct in aa expeditious

but cautious manher s they compiete the protccols for the Agent
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Orange and Vietnam experience studiaes.

Mr. Chairman, The American Legion thanks you for your
timeliness in scheduling hearings on this issue that is of such
extreme importance to Vietaam veterans, as time igs of the essence
in this critical matter, and the continued vigilance of this
Subcommittee will certainly serve to ensure that the research
digcussed today will continue to be conducted without delay.

You may be assured that The American Legion will continye
its involvement in every aspect of the issue of Agent Orange.

Mr, Chairman, that completes our statement.

STATEMENT OF TENNESSEE SELECT COMMITTEE FOR THE STUDY OF VETERANS APFAIRS:
REPRESENTATIVE U. A. MoORE, REPRESENTATIVE RalPn YELTON, AND JEFF G
DoraN, CHIEF STAFF ASSISTANT

Good morning, I am pleased to be here today to discuss findings of Tennessee’s
study on Agent Orange and to make recommendations as a result of that study.

In my remarks today, I will provide you with a summary of testimony as recorded
by the committee during the course of our study relative to dioxin and problems
encountered by veterans in obtaining medical treatment for perceived herbicide re-
lated illneases.

From the initial testimony, the Select Committee on Veterans Affairs learned that
vaterans of the Vietnam War had experienced health problems which they felt were
linked to exposure to “Agent Orange. Of thome veterans examined at various VA
medical centers, many reported suspected herbicide related illnesses includi
cancer, birth defective offepring, liver dysfunction and a number of other physi
ailments and paychological disorders. Many veterans had fathered children both
with birth defects such as spina bifida and hearing i:;gairments. Other veterans tes-
tified they were victime of liver damage, kidney problems and delayed stress syn-
drome. Wives of Vietnam veterans also reported miscarriages and/or hystorecto-
mies.

Another problem area waa the location and the availability of medieal records.
asistance for veterans and their families. Instances of discourteous staff and lengthy
waiting periods for medical care were mentioned. Other instances concern the dis-
Fensi of drugs imprudently, which veterang felt were ploys to keep them awa

rom the VA medical centers for extended periods of time. The availability of medi-
¢al services for children born with birth defects was 8 major concern, as many veter-
ans testified they could not afford the medical treatment necessary.

Another problem area was the location and the availablity of medical records.
Veterans told committee members they had tried repeatedly to locate their medical
records, without success, Many felt these records would relate past medical history
to some of the shysical and mental problems they are experiencing today.

Research and laboratory tests to determine the real significance of herbicide and
exposure of such to humans were perhaps areas of concern felt most needed by vet-
erans. Many felt the psychological problems encountered were a direct result of ten-
sion and worry as to the effecta of human exposure to potentially dangerous herbi.
cides. They desire answers to questions that only scientific research and technology
ean anawer, They believe with the scientific research laboratory facilities available
and the commitment of sympathetic physicians, that these answers can be obtained
and the psychological strain of not knowing the possible physical effects of Agent
Orange t0 humans can be resolved.

Finally, veterans feel they are being ignored by their government. A more com-
plete explanation from the government about the facts of the dioxin chemical is a
major concern. The veterans want the government to fund research studies to deter-
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mihe the physical effect of herbicide exposure and to make these facts known. Al-
though chloracne is the only related disorder scientifically proven, veterans believe
the VA should be recognizing other health %roblems gince many of the same symp-
toms have occurred in a sizeable number of Vietham veterans.

From the committee’s study of the disturbingvallegations made with regard to the
health hazards experienced by veterans of the Vietnam War as a result of their ex-
posure to potentially dangerous herbicides and the difficulty in obtaining treat-
ments from the VA, the Tennesaee Select Committee on Veterans Affairs has deter-
mined the following recommendations:

RECOMMENDATION NO. 1

In recognition of the trust this nation holde in behalf of those who have served
our country in time of war and in reoog;ition of the heavy questions that eat at the
minds of the many who have served, committes recommends that initiated re-
search efforts by the Veterans Administration, designed to find anawers to the
many questions surrounding dioxin and other herbicides, be continued to allow vet-
erans this service of care and research at the hands of the federal government.
Since the Veterans Administration is the ﬁ(;:ernment agency for services to our na-
tion’s veterans, it seems only approcrriate t medical research and efforts to deter-
mine the significance of dioxin and Agent Orange be left to the sole control of the
Veterans Administration. Through the VA, the veterans can see their government
at work for them and they can identify with the people and the service.

RECOMMENDATION NO, 2

Vietnam veterans exposed to Agent Orange find themselves in the middle of a
whirlpool of claims and counter claims. They have been told by dependable sources
that dioxin contaminants found in Agent Orange are more deadly than the war
itself. Other sources however maintain that the quantities of dioxin found in Agent
Orange are not a threat to humans. Vietnam veterans in Tennessee and acroes the
country are demanding scientifically valid answers from the scientific community
and from the federal government. %‘herefore, the committee recommends to Con-

that the budget for the Veterans Administration be fully funded to allow the

A to move in a more expeditious manner in research and laboratory testing rela-
tive to masible adverse health effects in those veterans exposed to potentially dan-
gerous herbicides

RECOMMENDATION MO. 8

Vietnam veterans exposed to Agent Or have described a variety of eymptomes
to VA doctors. These symptoms include: chloracne, liver damage, loss of sex drive,
cancer, birth defects in the children of exposed veterans and numbness or tingli
in the extremities. The fres Agent QOrange physical examination being administe
at the present time will serve as a method of spotting trends in the health status of
Vietnam veterans and will be used in subsequent Agent Or scientific inquiries.
Therefore, we recommend that in this money appropriated by Congress, that the
Aqent Orange examinations being adtninistered by the Veterans Administration be
fully funded to allow these veterans an opportunity to seek medical service for con-
ditions related to Agent Orange.

RECOMMENDATION NO. 4

Many Vietnam veterans who have sought assistance from the Veterans Adminis-
tration in th;ffﬂt have been subjected to bureaucratic runarounds and indifferent
or cynical & members. Therefore we recommend that the Veterans Administra-
tion Medical Center's personnel be sensitive to the physical and peychological needs
of veterans who claim exposure to Agent Qrange and be emphathetic with these
needs as veterans are examined, treated and counseled and work to establish more
positive rapport with the veterans who seek such medical assistance.

In conclusion, the committee believes there must be a concerted and coordinated
effort by the federal and state governments to maintain the quality of programa and
services traditionally awarded to those who have borne the battle. We believe the
Veterans Administration must take a more aggressive stance in addressing this
issue of possible adverse health effects on American service perscnnel mm
Qrange or other herbicides in Vietnam.

We believe the state, through efforts of government committees and in coopera-
tion with the Veterans Adminiatration can listen to the many problems confronting
our state’s veterans and possibly offer veterans a more direct explanation of the
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government’s involvement in research and the programs and services now available
for the purpose of medical care.

Finally, we believe, through these combined efforts of both the state and federal
government, Tennessee and the United States can continue its commitment to those
who served their country in time of war.

Thank you.
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Fellow Lawmakers:

This® study hag been conducted by direction of the Ninetcy-
second General Assembly apd the recommendations herein represant
the opinion of the majority of the members of the Select Committee
for the Study of Veterans Affairs.

Much tima has been devoted to collecting and studying information
in regard to the health hazards experienced by veterans of the Vietnam
War as a result of their exposure to potentially dangerocus herbicides
and the difficulty that these veterans have encountered in obtaining
treatment for their conditions from the Veterans Administration.

The committes has endsavared to insure that thiz report is
objective and non-partisan and it is our intention to forward these
findings and recommendations to Congress,

Our appreclation is extended not only to the federal and atate
officials for their cooperation and assistance in the making of this
report, but also to the vetarans and individuals who extended their
time and effort to make this report possible.

The committee hopes that this report will prove usesful to you

ams you continue to repressant those “"special™ people in your district
and stats known as veterans.

ragycotfully subnitted,

gy Ydbe >

I. V. Hillia, .
Chairman
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HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 30
by Hillias

A RESOLUTIOB to create a committee to
study the problems
confronting Vetarans
Affairs.

WHEREAS, at the directive of the Ninety-first General
Assembly, the Select Committee on Veterans Affairs was created
to examine the unigue needs of Tennessee's 450,000 veterans;
and

WHEREAS, as# an ipnitial part of its study, the committee
conducted tours of sach of the state's four veterans hospitals,
whera the members witnessed first-hand both the accomplishments
and problems of the veterans madical care system; and

WHEREAS, upon examination of these four medical centers,
the committee sent representatives to Washington to express
the views of the General Assemhly before the House Committee on
Veterans Affairs; and

WHEREAS, because the state will be confronting a variety
of new and complex problems as the number of alderly veterans
expanda, it wauld be prudent to examine these problems: now,
therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES OF THE
HINETY-SECOND GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF TENNESSEE, That
a seven member Select House Committes on Veterans Affairs be
appointed by the Speaker of the House of Representatives and
be continued for two years in order to study further the

problems confronting Tennessee Vaterans.
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BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the committee report its
findings and recommendations to the Ninety-third General
Asgembly no later than January 1, 1983, at which time the
committee shall cease to exist.

BE IT FURTHER RESCLVED, That all members of the committee
shall remain members until the committee reports its findings
to the Ninety-third General Assembly and shall be paid as
membars of the General Assembly are paid for attending
committes meetings in accordance with the provisions of

Tennessee Code Annotated, Section 3-1-106.

23-542 0 - 83 - 7
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PREFACE

At the directive of House Rescolution 30, the Ninety-second
General Assembly created the Sslect Conmittse for the Study of
Vaterans Affairs. The Committea chaired by Representative
I.V. Hillis, Jr. was conprised of seven MOO mmbers, sach of
whom had sarved in the nation'sarmed forces. Throughout the
summer and fall of 1981, the Committes conducted a series of two~day
hearings in Rogersville and in the Nashville/Donelson area.

Tha agenda were designed to allow working vetarans to maet with
the Committea in the evenings, with the following mornings devoted
to an open forum discussion for mawxbers of the press and those
veterans that could attend.

Aware that most veterans programs lis within the administrative
purview of the federal government, the Committes nonetheless falt
it necessary to examine closely the concerns of Tennesses
Vistnam veterans. The Committes learnsd that the problems
encountersd by the state’s Vietnam vaterans ars of snormous
magnitude and will demand a concerted and coordinated sffort by
the fedaral and state governments to maintain the quality of
programs and sexvices traditionally awarded to those who have
‘hoxne the battle.” Working in close conju‘nction with the state
Departmant of Veterans Affairs, the Coxmittes hoves that this
raport will better inform the public“md menbers of the Genaral
Assenbly, thereby enhancing the opportunity for Tannesses to
cm:lt.inuo its commitment to those who served thnir country in time

of war.

ix
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INTRODUCTION

The Select Committee for the study of Veterans Affairs
was created by the GCensral Assembly to etudy the problems of
Tennessee veterans. In response to public concern and the Tom-
troversy surrounding herbicides used in Vietnam, the committee
decided to axamine the issue and give Tennessee Vietnam veterans
an opportunity to spsak-out on past experiences and perceived
present physical and psychelogical problems, The essence of
the problem is the fact that veterans of the Vietnam War era are
experiencing health problems they feel are a result of their ex-
posure to potenially dangerous herbicides. Unfortunately, the
federal government has no anevwer to the effects of Agent Orange,
because at present there is no scientific evidence to link Agent
Orange sxposure to anything except a skin irritation called chlor-
acne. Thus the question inwolves a moral obligation to care for
our nations veterans, the enormous cost associated with veterans
a;rvicos and a determined sffort by Congresa to research phenoxy
herbicides and their relation to long-term adverse health effects.

At the present time there are 169,000 vietnam veterans who
are residents of the state of Tennesses. Of those 169,000 approxi-
mately 109,000 are also vererans of the Korean War era. According

to 1981 statiatics made available by cooperation by the Vetarans
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Aministration Medical Centers in Tennessee, there have been
approximately 2,177 Vietnam veterans who have taken the Agent
Orange examination in VA medical centers throughout the state.

A breakdown of the examinations at the state medical centers can

be seen below:

Location Number of Veteyxans Examined
Mountain Home 460
Mur freesboro a8
Hashville 1,278
Hemphis 391
Total 2,177

The information gathered from these examinations has been
made a permanent part of the veterans record and the Veterans
Administration Agent Orange Registry. This information can be
used to support any future claim that might be filed and is
correlated with those of other veterans in a search fom common
problems.

At the request of the Committee, the Veterans Administration
has made available a very informative Agent Orange film. The
film was aired by several of the states public television stations
in November 1961, to make the public more aware of what is being
done about human exposure o herbicides. The Committee felt the
film would bring more veterans to the medical centers for exami-
nations and would inform the veteran of the services available
if he believes he might have been susceptible to herbicide

exposure in the Vietnam War,

-2-
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FINDINGS

The problems experienced by veterans of the Vietnam War
are many.

This uwnanimous evaluation by the committee was felt to
be an important aspect of its report to the General Assembly.
Although there is no scientific evidence to date linking Agent
Qrange exposure to long-term adverse health effects, except
for a skin irritation known as chlor-acne, the committee
heard numerous Vietnam veterans across the state testify
that they believe "there is more to Agent Orange than meets
the eye."*

The comments in this report are not intended to imply
that there are not seriows problems confronting Tennespsee's
Vietnam veterans. Ax will be noted, most of these problema
are not a result of administrative incompetency or a lack of
compassion for veterans' needs by the Veterans Administration.
They are simply the product of a steadily increasing demand for
services on a government gystem that cannot offer anaswers when,
at present, the answers do not exist. Thix report will examine
briefly PROBLEMS recorded by the committee, the related POLICIES
of the Tennessee Department of Veterans Affairs and the services
made available to the wvetaran, and the veterans PRIORITIES

regarding these problems.

-3=-



Problems:
Heslth

Prom the initial testimony the committes lsarned that
veterans of the Vietnam War have been experiencing health
related problems whi;h they feal are linked to exposure to
Agent Orange, Of those veterans examined at VA medical centerxs,
many have reported suspected herbicide related problems including
cancey, birth defective offepring, liver dyafunction and 2
number of other physical and psychological disorders. A
skin irritation characterized by skin lesions or chlor-acne
is another problem. Veterans in both East and Middle Tennessee

testified that they had fathered children borm with birth

defects such as spina bifida and children born with no sense

of hearing. Others told the committes that they were

victimg of cancer, liver damage, kidney dysfunction and delayed
stress syndrome. Many vetarans also feel their wives are
affected because of the number of miscarriages and/or hysterec-
tomies that have resulted when the women became pregnant.

A loss of weight problem and looking much older than their
actual age are other concerns.

Medical Assistance

Another concern of the committee ia the lack of medical
assistance for veterans and thelr families. After hearing
several complaints from the veterans in regard to the

availability of medical attention for Agent Orange victims,

4=
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the vaterans were advised to have a complete physical examination.
Othcr.rolatod problems ware brought to the attention of the
committee including instances of discourteous staff at the
veterans hospitals, the frustration of dealing with foreign
physiclans as well as intern positions and the lack of medical
assistance available in treating birth defective children. The
expanse of obtaining proper care for these children is too much
for the parente to bear alone and with no present medical
assistance from the VA in this regard, the families simply
cannot afford to give the childreh the treatments they need. The
vaterans also voiced their concern for obtaining medical assis-

tance at the time it is needed without delay.

Lack of Adequate Informstion

With the technology, research and laboratory facilities
available in the United States today, veterans cannot under-
stand why tests to determine the "real" significance of Agent
Orange or dioxin exposure to humans have not been conducted.
Mnimals are the prime target for such examinations apd experi-
ments. Doctors admir, however, that different species react
differently to chemical exposure and no direct correlation
between animals and humans can be drawn. In simple terms, the
veterans want to know if indeed Agent Orarige exposure cCan cause
medical problems, and if so, to what extent. With the regearch
and labdratory facilities and the commitment of sympathetic
physicians, veterans believe these answers can be obtained and
the peychological strain of not knowing the physical affects
to humans, can be resolved,

5=
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Medical Records

Medical Records and their whersabouts constitute the fifth
problem area, Veterans testifjed that they have tried repeatedly
without success to obtain their medical records. Many desire to
see for themselves what kind of medication they were administered
while in military service in an attempt to relate past medical
treatments to some of the physical and mental problems they are

experiencing today.

=
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POLICIES OF THE VETERANS ADMINISTRATION
AHD
THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFPFAIRS

As scon as the Veterans Administration became aware that
an increasing number of veterans were worried about their exposure
.to the herbicide dioxin, they began to join sfforts with medical
science to research tha problem. A review of medical literature
on herbicides and other toxic chamicals was undertaken in a ssarch
for sclentifically valid answers. Promr this research, the VA
iearned that Agant Orange wag contaminated with mipute quantities
of the toxic chemical dioxin, or TCDD, Tetra Chlorel Dibenecl Dioxin.
Dioxin is of c¢oncern because it has caused cancer, miscarriages
and birth defects in lakoratory animals exposed to it. Although
a number of animal studies have been conducted, the VA doss not yet
know precisely how dioxin affects humans or the likelihood of veterans
developing dissases as a result of exposure to dioxin in Vietnam.
The only chemically related disease the VA does have scientific
proof about ie chlor-acne.

At present, ghorn is no scientific evidence to suggest that
a veteran axposed to Agent Orange ie likely to incur sperm damage
which might lead to the birth of a deformed child., Because of the
concern relating to birth defects and miscarriages, a number of
sclentific studies are underway to sxplore this issue more fully.

The Veterans Administration is concerred with each individual's
problem. The Veterans hdminiltrattoﬁ currently is giving medical
axaminations to veterans who fesl thay may have besn sxposed to

7=
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Agent Orange, The results of the examinations are placed in the
Veteran's Administrations' Agent Orange registry and hecome part
of a vetarans' permanent file for poseible use in supporting any
future claim, The data from the individual's examination is

correlated with information from other vetérans in a search for

common problems.
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POLICIES OF THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS

To assist tha Tennesses vateran, the Tannsssea Department of
Veterans Affairs is available to collect information on the benefits
and services that are available to veterans through the Veterans
Mninistration., Likewlise tha department will inform veterans, their
dependonts and survivors, of the benefits and services that are
available and assist the vetaran or his dependent/survivor in the
filing of the claim.

-In the £iling of the claim, the TDVA assists the vateran in the
processing and prosacuting of the claim. The Veterans Adminlstration
subsequently follows up the claim for.a possible link with military
service. Compensatjon also may be available if the disability was incurred
in, or was aggravated by military service. The only reguirement is
that the disability be confirmed by a2 medical sxamination and be
ralated to the pericd during which the veteran served in the military,
There i{#s no requiremsnt that a disability be linked to a spacific
cause such as Agent Orange.

Since service connected dilsability contemplates that an individual
incurred a disability in service or aggravated a condition beyond its
normal progress, or manifested a condition within a legal presumptive
pericd (usually within one year follewing the pericd of service)
Agent Orangs c¢arries with it no diagnoses. Tharefore, mers exposurs
is not a disability under the meaning of the law.

-9-



96

VETERANS' PRIQRITIES FOR ACTICH

Prom the testimony received by the committes, veterans
thempelves belisve the following issues are their primary concerns,
They are listed in order of priority for the attention needsd and
the response deasirec,

Ressarch

First, vetarans have voiced as their main concern the need
for free madical examinations for them, thelr spouses and thair
children. These tegts should include chromosome examinations on
potential parents, spexm te;ts on prospective fathers and othar
tests relative to human reproduction. Alse, the proper test to
detect dioxin in the hloodstream or fatty tissue of the body is
felt to be important.

Facts From the Government

A more complete axplanation from the government about the
facts of the dloxin chemical is the pecond concern. The vetarans
want the government to initiate necessary legislation to determine
the significance of herbicide sxposure and to make these facts
known. In an effort to end the controversy once and for all the
vetarans reyuest that the government take the necegsary measures

to find ont the problems linked to herbicides.

Medical Assistance for Health Problems

Although chlor-acne is the only herbicide related physical
disorder scientifically proven, veterans believe the Veterans

Administration should be recognizing other health problams aince

~11-
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many related symptoms have occured in a sizeable number of
Vietnam vetsarans. They also want the Veterans Administration to
offer aszistance in tha treatment of these problems, both physical
and mental regardless of whether they are related to Agent Orange

or not.

Medical Bervices Investigation

Finally, the veterans see a need for an investigation of the
Veterans Administration Medical Centers by Congress. Some balieve
they have imprudently been administered drugs for their paip while
others feel they are continucusly issued preacriptions so they will
stay away from the medical centers. Also, some veterans have acknowl-
edged that they disapprove of forsign doctors conducting examinations
and feel a need for a better gquality of treatment. The promptness
and courtesy of Veterans Administration staff employed at these

medical centers is a related concern.

-12-
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LEGISLATIVE ACTION OF OTHER STATES
AND
CONGRESS

In response to the perceived lack of clear policy from tha
federal government, several states have addressed the legacy of
Vietnam, relative to vetarans and their siposure to potentially

dangerous herbicides.

Taxas

The most recent state response to ths Agent Orange dontroversy

came from Texas, whare on May 30, 1981 the Texas Legislaturs

unanimously passed HB 2129, The law has four provisions for vetarans

who fael they are victims of Agent Orangs exposure:
1. Requires the Texas Department of Mealth and the

University of Texas Health Service Centers to provide veterans

with fat tissue biopsies (used to determine the persistence
of dioxin over long pericds of time}, genetic -counseling, and

genetic scresning to determine if physical damage has resultaed

from sxposure to harbicides or other causative agents including

Agent Orange.
2. Requires physicians or hospitals having primary
responsibility for treatment of Vietnam veterans who suspect
. herbicide exposure to submit a report at the request of the
veteran to the state health department for evaluation and
distribute an annual report to tha legislature.

~13~
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3. Authorizes the Department of Health to conduct
spidemiological studiea on Vietnam veterans who have cancer
or other medical problams assoclated with herbiclde exposure
or who have children born with birth defects after the veteran
suspected axposure to an herbicide or other causative agent:
and

4. BMuthorizes the state attorney genaral to represent
veterans on & class action suit for the release of medical

records and information relating to herbicide exposura,

In the General Appropriations Bi{ll, the Legislature allocated
$200,000 to the Department of Public Realth for 1982 and $300,000
for the fiscal year 1923,

Hew York

The first state tc recognize the Agent Orange problem, Hew
York passsd legislation in the summer of 1980 to create a two
yaar Commission on dioxin axposurs. The Commission is composed
of nine members; five Vietnam veterans, two union pembers, one from
the business commanity and the Wew York Commissioner of Health.
Tha Commission's mandate is:
1. To identify veterans and others who have been
axposed to dioxin; )
2. To disseminate information aﬁout Agent Orange and
other herbicjides containing dioiin relative to health sffects:
3. To hold public hearings on the problem of Agent Orange;
and

-14=
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4, To make recommendations to the Genaral Assembly

regarding the need for future legislative action.

The legilslation also placed responsibility with the State
Health Commissioner for maintaining a public information program
on dioxin axposure, conducting an epidemiological study of health
effects of dioxin exposure and initiating education and training
prograns for health professionals to assist them in the detection,
diagnosis, and treatment of symptoms that may be assoclated with

such axposursa,

Pennsylvania

In September, 1%31 the Houss Pederal-State Relations Committee
reported on HB 2943 which would create the Agent Oranges Special
Comirission. The Commission would be responsible for:

1. Studying the effects of Agent Orange on Vietnam
vaterans 1ﬁ Pennasylvania;

2. Coordinating and assisting state and federal agencies
in identifying victims; and

3. For seeking asslstance for those afflicted by Agent

Orange.

HE 2943 is currently pending befors the full House.

Related bills such as the ones described above have also been
introduced in California and Illinois., Lawsuits in other states
have petitioned the courts to requir‘ a portion of the chamical
manufactursra’ profits be put im a trust fund for the victims of

exposure. The manufacturers contend that the government ordered

-15-
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the specifications, thus relieving them of any liability. The
manufacturers alse claim that when diluted proparly, Agsnt Orange
is safe.

Congressional Action

Undar continuous pressure from veterans groups and the
Veterans Mnministration, the Department of Defense and Congrass
have increased efforts to address the Agent Orangs controversy.

Under the provisions of the Veterans Hsalth Programs Extension

and Improvament Act of 1979 (P.L. 96-151) the Vetarans Administration
has awarded $114,288 to the UCLA Schoo)l of Public Health to design

a protocel for the congressionally mandated study of the effects

of Agent Orange and other phenoxy herbicides on Vietnam veterans.

On June 1§, 1981 the 1.5, Senate voted 3%8-0 to approve treatment
as part of the $232 million authorization for Veterans Administration
programs. The Senate bill also provides medical cave for veterans
exposed to radiation during nuclear weapons tests in the 1940's
and 1950's. Eimilar legislation passed by the House on June 2, 1981
provides aid for exposure to other defoliants as well. The House
bill provides medical care for Vietnam veterans axposed to herbicides,
including Agent Orangs, extends the Vistnam veterans rsadjustment
counseling program for three additional ysars and expands the
Veterans Administration's herbicide gtudy to include the effects of
other service related environmental hazards.

The Air Force is also moving ahead with a leong-term atudy
designed to show if any of the 1200 operation "Ranch Hand" personnel -
servicemen who operated the C-123 aircraft which sprayed Agent Qrange
in Vietnam have suffered 1ill effects from herbicide exposurs.

=16-
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MEDICAL PROFESSIONALS ADDRESS THE DIOXIN CHEMICAL

pr. Donald Cameron - Toxicologist and Animal Physiologist

As a toxicologist and animal physiologist at the University
of Tennessee Medical Research Laboratory in Oak Ridge, Dr. Donald
Cameron informed the committee that dioxin was indeed one of the
most toxie chemicals prepared by man. From his research, he has
discovered that approximately 200 pounds of the chemical was
sprayed over the dense jungles of South Vietnam from 1966 to 1969.
He estimated that one lethal dose of the chemical could take a
person's life,

As for the physical effecta, there is Known evidence that
dioxin is etored in the fatty tissue of the body and in the liver.
With chloracne being the only visible aymptom, tests in laboratory
animals show liver dysfunction and nervous system disorder. The
toxicity of the animals' reaponse to the chemical is consistent
with the symptoms seen in humans. Research indicates that the
chance for cancer is much higher in thogse exposed to dioxin than
in the general population, According to laboratory tests, dioxin
is 20,000 times more toxic than hydrocyanic acid, an extremely
toxic substance from which cyanide can be derived.

Dioxin itself is teratogenic, causing severe deformation of

fetuses in animal reszearch amd known to be tranemitted to developing

17—
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fetuses through the mother. At the present time there iz no
gcientific evidence in animals that show direct relation by
tranamission of the father's sperm.

As for the mutagenicity, very limited data is available,

One study, however, shows where mutagenic effects and thelr
transmission to succeeding generations were studied and found to

be controversial. Evidence of the atudy does show that dioxin does
concentrate in the testes of the male and does affect the production
of sperm. Also, instancea of the transmission of the reduction in
fertility in succeeding generations was preasent i1n the animals.

Dr. Cameron concluded that diox*n has been found in ooth
Vietnam war veterans and non-Vietnam war veterans, in veterans, as
cuch, and people who have never served in the military. The test
to determine the minute quanity of dioxin is a bio-chemical exam
that measures parts per trillion and can only be administered at

special facilities of which only two such laboratoriea exist,

Dr. Hutchinson - Tennessee Department of Public Health

Speaking with reference to chemicals in general, Dr. Hutchinson
informed the committee on the long incubation period between direct
expogure and later physical effects. He said that medical science
could not detect long-term effects since the close response of such
chemicals was the relevant factor. Through some reaearch and fact-
finding Dr. Hutchinson has discoversd that Jioxin exposure in
animal research produced evidence that the chemical caused cancer

and birth defects. In a laboratory test of mice when exposed to
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dioxin, female mice produced birth defective offspring. However,
when male mice were exposed, no related birth defects, as such
occnrred.

In conclusion, he made reference to Congressional action to
provide for the necessary research as to the effect that dioxin

exposure has on humans.

Dr. Michael Kimberly - Tennessee Department of Public Health

While considering legislative action similar to that enacted
by the Texas legislature in 1981, the committee called on the
Tennessee Department of Public Health to analyze and study the
merits and problems associated with the Agent Orange Research
Legislation.

Aceording to Dr. Kimberly, the law in Texas would provide
for a "totally controlled research project™ that would involve
individual fat tissue hiopsies, genetic screening and counseling,
epidemiclogical studies on veterans who have medical problems
associated with herbicide exposure or those who have children born
with birth defects after the veteran suspected exposure to a herbicide
or other causative agent.

With the lack of adequate facilities to conduct such test, the
state would be spending money to contract out the study or portions
of the study and the results wmld be just that - results since the
Veterans Administration would be the final investigator and would
be the ones to award the benefits as a result of their findings.

In conclusion, the department felt that the contrclled study

would require much money and that the Department of Public Health
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did not have the necessary facilities and staff available to
conduct such research. It was also decided, that once the testing
was complete the veterans would still be without answers.

During the course of Dr. Kimberly's testimomy and the committees
discussion of the Texas bill, the Veterans Administration elaborated
on the protocol being developed by the University of California
Logs Angeles for the Veterans Administration and the contract to
be awarded to a medical facility designed for such testing once
the protoéol had been established.

After analyzing the situation at hand and the possibility
of enacting similar legislation for Tennessee veterans, the committee
then decided that the money was not available to contract out the
necessary staff and facilities for accurate testing and the tests

would be a duplication of the VA's controlled gtudy.
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RECOMMENDATIONS

on January 20, 1982 the committee met in Rashville to
discuss recommendations to Congress, After considerable discusasion

the committee adopted three motions.

Recommendation No, 1

Vietnam veterans exposed to Agent Orange f£find themselves in
the middle of a whirlpool of claims and counter ¢laims. They have
been told by dependable ascurcas that dioxin contaminants found in
Agent Orange are more deadly than the war itself. Other sourcaes
however maintain that the guantities of dioxin found in Agent
Orange are not a threat to humans. Vietnam veterans in Tenhesses
and across the country are demanding scientifically valid answers
from the acientific community and from the federal government.
Therefore, the committee recommends to Congreas that the budget
for the Veterans Administration be fully funded to allow the VA

o move in a more expeditious manner in research and laboratory

testing relative to possible adverse health effects in those

veterans exposed to potentially dangerous herbicides.

Recommendation No. 2
Vistnam veterans exposed to Agent Orange have described a

variety of symptoms to VA doctors. These symptoms include:

-21-
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¢hloracne, liver damage, loss of mex drive, cancer, birth defects
in the children of exposed veterans and numbness or tingling in
the extremities. The free Agent Orange physical examination
being administered at the present time will serve as a method of

spoting trends in the health status of Vietnam veterans and will

be used in subsequent Agent Orange scientific inquiries. Therefore,

we recommend that in this woney appropriated by Congress, that the

Agent Orange examinations being administered by the Veterans

Administration be fully funded to allow these veterans an opportunity

to seek medical service for conditions related to Agent Orange.

Recommendation No. 3

Many Vietnam veterans who have sought assilstance from the
Veterans Administration in the past have been subjected to bureau-
cratic runarounds and indifferent or cynical staff members. There-

fore we recommend that the Veterans Administration Medical Center's

personnel be sensitive to the physical and psychological needs of

veterans who claim exposure to Agent Orange and be emphathetic

with these needs as veterana are examined, treated and counseled

and work to establish more positive repport with the veterans who

seek such medical assjistancs.
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VETERANS EXPOSED TO AGENT ORANGE

Rogersville, '™ July 9, 1581

HAME MADDRESS FHONE SYMPTOMS
Q. Box 1316 M:{Ms,m rash, Femory lods, mundimms,
BOGER D, BINGINM LaFollette, ™ 562-9365 hti#n shortness of breath
S 0 vl 562-0222 Backache, mouth sopes, Knots on amme, nusbness.
500 E. Hain lwqdiw.,ww patn in meck and
DAVID E. SHEFPARD Rogersville, ™ 274684 sfml&l‘s za.wmlfyﬁum;m rechom, inscenia
MR. & MRS, DAVID KIRBY | 7213 Dogwood Road _
Kmevitle, ™ 51-8513
MR. & MRS. LEIBGFD P, Q50 Rock Rose Circl + incperative, left lung, rvestricted Bywathing, nen-
FRAZIER Kingspoct, ™ 37664 2084346 ;ﬁlityofm ragh, depression and rexves, thickending
JAES EINARD ARMETRONG | Routa 8, Box 399 Fash on amn, pain in joints, (high tewp.) etiffrees in band and
Church Rill, 0 37642 | 357-6392 ankles.
195 Edinkore Lane 4834349 Strees .
RN LIMPYIN Osk Ridge, TH 37830 e .
Rt 13, Moeris Ln. Pain in back and leg, nerves, nbness in legs and ants,
WILLIMY STOCKEY Knowville, ™ 922-2236
Rt, 1 Puin in joints, rash on shoulders and back and depression.
TORALD STEAIMNN Fall Branch, ™ 348-7993
JERRY LNE Ringspare, ™ 246-3989 Stamach, timors, matness and rash.
L
JEFR FEVMIED Yingeport, ™ 245-5638 fash, TeCVee.

w¥u ATGNI Y
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VETERANS EXPUSED TO AGENT ORANGE

Page Twa Rogexsville, TH July 9, 191
HAME ADDRESS PHONE SYMPTOMS
Hoadaches , pain in peck, shoulder, narves and ocher.,,
BOY MULLINS Kingport, ™ 239-5023
335 Hale Aovemwe
B FARRNEY Morristowm, ™ 586=1345
Rt. 2 Peprmssion, nerves, insomnia, aching joints.
EARL J. BECK whitesburg, ™
Swelling hands and feet, stomach and chest pains (continuous) ,
L. STFFLE, JR. Rt. 2 272=2347 dizzineas, fest irritacion, stiffress of joints..madnly in
Mo g, ™ hands.
Re. 1, Box W51A
DNOTY E. SOUDERLAMND oyl iy, 0 37641 72242 Hendaches, back and nerves,
R, 2, Bow 41
JIMY B. EARLEY Cnckay, ™ 37641 2576376 Herwes, leg hrace.
HEERT NEAL Rt. 2 .
Surgoineville, ™ 5-2616
R, #1
HETMAN GREER , ™ M5-3669 Werwous rash,
Rt. 2
FERNETH HORVE Fogersville, T™H 345-2232 Hong
MWONE FROTEN Rt. 8
Surgoinsville, TH 345-2855 Rerves,
JRES W. HARRELL R, 8 :
Charch Hill, ™ 357-3574 ion, mer , rash.
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VETERANS EXPOSED TO AGENT ORANGE

Page Three R ille, ™ July 9, 1960
HAME ADDRESS PHONE SYMPTONS
GAINIE E. BOYD Box 533
Owoech HL11, ™ 76909 Hervoumess, depression, wvaaknasy.
Bt 4 Box 268
¥.3. FATLE , ™ m-90 Unknam
ALFIRD G. WAXEY Snaedville, ™ Nane Unkmown
FALFH ROLEN Rogersville, ™ IN-63M
Skin rash, nerves, eyes, aching joines.
FOGER D. FROET CGrwch Bill, ™ 245-0020 ' i
OBERY B, FNET Ourch #111, ™ 243-5298
R, 2
LLCND H. INFPRIES - £3-7415
Bene
SN LIFE Ihgt:xl&ue,m 2723583 Beadaches, crampy, rewves.
. Rt. 2 Box 61
JAMES L. BULLOCK . Bampton, N Fi5-3779 Severe haatwhes, loss of aight, mmimess of isge and aces ad
back pain.
HWIE §. € 202 Alafom S5t. 288-2991 Hoadaches, nervas, aches and pains. -Swelling and tumors,
HUNLEY GULLEY Rt. &
Bulls Gap, ™ 235-6347 Diseass of the feat md weight loss.

011



VETERANS EXPOSED TO ACENT ORANGE

Page Four Rogeravills, ™ July 9, 1981
HAME ADDRESS PHONE SYMPTOMS
Rt., 2
ROW KEIRSEY Rogarsville, TH 345-2545 Allargies
Rt. 2
CHARLIE Gilley Bulls Gap, ™™ 2356347
235 Alan Ave.
DAVID GATES Knoxville, TR 523-1713 Blackouts, ner .
HAMNY HUGHES Morristown, ™ Hervoukness.,
3661 Glen Alpine
J.E. HAMBLEW Kingsport, TH 349-6495 Birth defect.
ROGER BURLESOH Rt e
Chuckey, TH 257-5380 Rash
Ex-Sqt. 2607 Patrick Ave. . hronic headach a
JERRY LEE Maryville, T 984-2153 Birth datects, < e . Yo 9%+
Rt., 4
LARRY GLADSON Rogersville, TH 272-8353 Jointa sore, nervousness, pain in lungs.
: 5700 Cochise Trail
MNDREW TOLLEY Ringsport, TN 323-3349 Joints sore, pressure in chest and headaches.
LARRY HORNE 1232 Jarvie 172-9943
Rogersville, TH
Re. 2 ’
JIMMIE L., DABES Church Hill, TN 3IST-4458 Leaukemis and rash.
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VETERANS EXPOSED TO AGENT ORANGE

Page Five foguravills, ™ July 3, 1981
NAME ADDRESS FHOHE SYHPTONS
KEMHETH D. LANE 2121 Stadiua br, | 245-7680
GEME W. ORPIELD Rt. 8
Church Will, ™ 3577975
FLOYD 933~6892
THOMAS &, YD Rt. 4
Lo Charch Mill, ™ | 357-4722
LLOYD E. BYRD Wast Hills 2726174
2405 Jarsey Ave.
DOROVER THOMAS Knoxville, ™ 523-4612
3300 Fnott Ave,
RICHARD RAMSEY Knoxville, TH $22-3321
406 Cedarcreac Dr,
JAMES X. WHITE Kingsport, TN 239-551%
133 Hiwassee Dr.
BOB CONNELLY ME. Carmal, TN AST-3647
Rt. 2
DAVID McDOWELL Rogersville, TH 357-3547
ROBERT MASTERSCH . 8
Kremeville, ™ 9336181
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VETERRNS EXPOSED TO AGENT ORANGE

Paga Six Pogergville, ™ July 9, 1961
NAME ADDRESS PHORE SYMPTOMS '
Rt. 1
ELLIS J. COSING Rogarsville, ™ 272-9697
409 onold Dx.
BB A Greemwville, ™ 639-3743 nimdsm {child borm with holes in heart}..,
B, 2 Headache, back and stiffress of all jointa.
OANTEY. W. CRADCOCK mml'm 257-3004 Sun light = sex dexire = skin irritation - blurred vision.
DOHALD L., LAWSCH R, 1
Pogersville, TN 272-3912 Hone nown.
Re. 1 B 980 i
1% ) 944-3108 Joint pain, mmll boes  in hands snd Seet.
115 Manlon Dr.
BILL KENHEDN Kingsport, TN 239-1416 Skin disease and arthritis,
518 Brommiv
JERRY D. LEE Rogersville, ™ 272-4321 Jointa. . .nerms.
P.0. Bou 387
TCM FETERS Church Hill, ™ Hone known.
HAROLD W, LECHARD R, 3
* Rogureville, ™ Z12=3831 Ncra v .
R, @
ELDRIDGE McPERK Charch Hill, ™ 357=4380 Hore Jowam.
1222 Robin Hood Tr, daughtard
RIS G, CHARMAN Greeneville, TH 638-7660 o daug heart disease...severe.
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VETERANS EXPOSEDR 10 AGENT ORANGE

Pooerevilla, ™ July 9, 1981

Pocpe Sewven
HAME ADDRESS PHONHE SYMPTOMS
Routs 42 packache, joint, rash
BOBRY BAILEY Charch Bill, ™ I57-6291
CLAY WINsTOCK . 1
Wooreshurg, T 272-9397 Sore joints, breathing, nervousness.
BUBERT ARNOOD Gresneville, T™H 6396443 Nervas, sore joints, sexual disorder.
YREDGIE EIRBY Gragnaville, ™ 63%-873% Body rash.
Stomach, tidney, depression, memory and othar
1222 Sevierville PK.
LANRENCE B, NEESOOW Maryvills, ™ 984-5392 problems. Ulcers and headaches.
JOHM E. FORD e, 1
* , TR 422=-4132 Srvomach and colon diworder, stifiness of joints ad nerves.
RODDY PRENELL Kingsport, ™ 2454064 Headaches, atomach pains, boils, swalling and
stiff joiote.
JAMES GREVME Stapdville, ™ T33-4559 Pain in arms and legs.
208 Pawce Et, 8kin rash#s, narves, stomach pasins, stiffneas in
ROGER CONPYOR Kingsport, ™ 349-6202 Knes, ! !
2301 Poxwood Lo Skin rash, loss of poktion of lung, dipmeaseion, stiff
STEVE TALLENY Knoxville, T 521-7964 Joints, 7 nd stomch problass.
Box 110 [
J. C. WILDER ogersvilie, TH 235-5680 Back herts, stomach and joint stiffness.

¥



-ZC- »

. W July 9, 1981

L VETERANS EXPOSED TO AGEWT ORANGE
HAME ADDRESS e ) mnge
8 11 St.
. x#mu:?.mt $22-1861 Herve 4 , skin rash, boils and hesadaches.

su1
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VETERANS EXPOSED TO AGENT ORANGE August §, 1981

HAME ADDRESS PHONE SYMPTOMS
1 Miscarriage
506 Mantucky St.
ROY LOUGH LaFollecta, ™™ 562-4220 3 pirth defected children
CEARLES RRMSEY ¥noxville, ™ 8aT-1700 Child with birth defects.
JIM SUDRELS Lot D7 Robarts R4.| $33-0520 2 childran - clasgic symptoms.
JOEM E. FORD Rt, 1 Moshaim, TH 412-4132 pirth defscts in only child.
519 Brummitt st,
JERRY D. LEE Rogersville, TN 272-4321 2irth defect im child.
{Vat.'s wife) Rt. 3, Box 166
MRS. BRFRDA BISHOF| Rogersvilla, T 2728967 payghter has Scoliosis.
310% Topper
JIM BEELER Eingsport, TH 268-3031 Child born pre-mature (open spine}.
Rt. 2, Box 201
CHARLIE M. GRUBR Bulls Gap, TH 2315-63%9 Children with birth defects.
Re. 1
LEROY H. DAVIS m_gcrwiue, ™ 235=25R5 Rash in children.
1222 Robin Hood R4l two daughters with severs congenital
DENNIS G. CHAPMAN | GCreenewille, TN 638-7660 heart dissase.
3661 Glen Alpine *
J.E. HAMBLEN
Kingsport, TH 349-G495 Child with birth defect.

911
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VETERANS EXPOSED TO AGENT ORANGE

Meovember 1%, 1981

NANE ADDRESS PHONE SYMPTO
400 E. Brosdey 272-9876 : . it
DN . JACKSON Rogermville, W 2724392 fosh, insawda, Poils, sensitivity to light.
Lake City, ™ )
FRED VINCENT 113 Rill Street 426-2640 Blackouts, rerwous oopdition, rash am tmors.
2608 Dexber Lane Miscles, nervous, rash, heataches, dizriness, thyvoid and
GAFY BURETTE . ™ 573-0824 gout,
1812 W, Atlantic
SHAON WENTZ Epringfield, M 417-865-3528 Widow
Rt. 1 Bax 59 Radiation expoure . .disabled.
0 SITEREN Milberry, ™ 4338564

LI
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VETERANS EXPOSEU TO AGENT QRANGE

Dacember 16, 1981

NANE ADDRESS PROME SYMPTOHS
400 proabey
DR TS Rogersvills, ™™ T-492
m -
DAWVID F. SHEPFARD m&% ™ 2313
3223 Washington Pk.
W GIEs Ercavitle, ™ S24-9503
Rc. 8 Box 170
CARL 2MTTH, JR. Macyville, ™ 992-0381
2607 Patrick awe.
R LER , ™ 984-2153
Re. 1 Box 248
RAMOND B, RIRMDNHAM Tron City, §15-724-4737
e 400 Bromday
VIRSA Rogarwvills, ™ -2
2301 Powood Lane
SYEVE TALLENY kncseville, S21-1964
§ 1812 W. Atlantic A17-865-3628
SHARN WEHTZ Springfiald,
ft. 12 Sunnyside tr. :
BILL AYRRS MarFressbore, TH
r
s, Danny Shinpeagh
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APPENDIX *B" & "C"
ATOMIC VETERANS

The Case of Mr. John Smitherman

In an effort to agaist Mr. John Smitherman in his fight for
digability henefits from the Veterans Administration, the Ninety-
second General Agsembly passed Houze Resclution No, 131. The
resolution urges the Veterans Administration Poard of Appeals to
give special consideration to Mr. Smitherman, relative to disability
benefits for physical problems believed to have been caused from
exposure to radiation.

The Select Committee for the Study of Veterans Affairs continues

to support Mr. Smitherman in such fight and further urges the federal
government to give him that gpecial consideration that he a0 desetrves,

ROUSE RESOLUTION 131

A RESOLUTION to urge the Veterans
Administration Board of
Appeals to give special
consideration to Mr, John
smitherman, relative to
disability benefits for
phyaical problems caused by
radiation exposure.
WHEREAS, Mr. John Smitherman of Mulberry, began a fight
for disability benefits in 1376 and since that time he has heen
denied compensation on five separate occasions by the Veterans
Administration Board of Veterans Appeals; and
WHERERS, stationed on the USS Allen M. Sumner during two
nuclear test blasts on Bikini Atoll in the Marshall Islands in
1946, Mr. Smitherman and a host of physicians have testified that

radiation exposure has caused his physical problemsz; and

© o -37-
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WHEREAS, as a result of what doctors diagnosed as a kidney
ailment, Mr. Smitherman received a medical diascharge from the navy
in August, 1947 and later incurred even more health problems; and
WHEREAS, following a deterioration of the lymphatic aystem,
Mr. Smitherman has had both legs amputated and doctors have suggested
that hia left hand and part of his arm alz¢ be removed; and
WHEREAS, the Veterans Administration continues to treat
Mr, Smitherman, but the Board of Veterans Appeals does not recognize
his condition as service connected; and ’
WHEREAS, although the board agreed in August, 1981 that
Mr. Smitherman had been exposed to low levels of radiation while on
the Bikini Atoll, they maintained that the amount wae not enough
to cavse hig condition; and
WHEREAS, their decigion stated that Mr. Smitherman "had not
besn exposed o such high levels of radiation, and his exposure
to low-level radiation had not been linked by ongoing research to
arterial or lymphatiec obstructive diseases”; and
WHEREAS, service connected disability contemplates that an
individual incurred a disability in service or aggravated a condition
beyond its normal progress, or manifessted a éondition within a
legal presumptive period (usually within one year following the
period of service); and
WHEREAS, Mr, Smitherman had been the picture of perfect health
when he enlisted in the armed forces, and following his exposure
toe gamma nuclear yradiation, his health began to deteriorate and

he experienced many health problems; and
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WHEREAS, both the state and federal governments have a moral
obligation and & long standing commitment to provide disability
benefits to those men and women who served our country in time of
war; and

HHBREhS, the elected representatives of Tennessee join Mr,
Smitherman in his fight for disability benefits as a resgult of his
exposure to nuclear radiation; now, therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES OF THE NINETY-
SECOND GEMNERAL ASSEMBLY OF fHE STATE OF TENNESSEE, That we hereby
urge the Veterans Administration Beoard of Appeals to give special
congideration to Mr. John Smitherman, relative to disability
benefits for physical problems caused by radiation exposure.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That we urge the board to respond
quickly to Mr. Smitherman's appeal and consider him for the compen-
sation he so deserves,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a copy of this resclution be
forwarded to Mr. John Smitherman, Mulberry, Tennessee, and to each
member of the Veterans Administration Board of Appeals, Washirgton,
D.C. 20420, and to each member of the Tennessee Congressional

Delegation, Washington, D.C, 28515,

-19=-
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StaTEMENT BY Bart KuLL, SPECIAL ASSISTANT TO THE AcCTING DEPUTY UNDER SECRE-
TARY POR INTERGOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRG, DEPARTMENT oF HeartH anp Human
SERVICES AND ASSISTANT TO THE ACTING CHAIRPERSON, ACGENT ORANGE WORKING
GRoup oF THE CaBINET CounciL o Human REsources

Mr. Chairman and members of the subcommittee, I am Bart Kull, Special Assist-
ant to the Acting Deputy Under Secretary for Intergovernmental Affairs, Depart-
ment of Health and }fuman Services. I am also assistant to the Acting Chairperson
of the Agent Orange Working Group of the Cabinet Council on Human Resources.

I am pleased to appear before this Subcommittee to report on the activities of the
Agent Orange Working Group.

With me i Dr, Carl Keller, Senior Epidemiologist with the National Institute of
Environmental Health Sciences of the Igational Institutes of Health; and Chairman
Pro-Tem of the Agent Orange Working Group’s Science Panel.

Dr. Keller, a long-term member of the Working Group’s Science Panel is serving
a8 Chairman Pro-Tem of the Panel to insure the uninterrupted flow of activities by
the panel until a permanent chairperson is designated.

The fortner Chairman of the Science Panel, Dr. Vernon Houk, Director of the
Center for Environmental Health of the Centers for Disease Control, has stepped
down from the chairmanship. Although he remains an important member 0[P the
Science Panel, he proposed and it was agreed that with the recent transfer of re-
sponsjbility for the conduct of the VA Epidemiology Study to the Centers for Dis-
ease Control it would not be appropriate for him to remain as Chairman because of
the review responsibilities of the Science Panel and the major role taken in such
reviews by the Chairperson of that panel.

I understand that this committee is mainly interested in the status of various
human research studies currently underway or in the planning stages.

Representatives of the various agencies involved in this research are present to
provide reports on studies under their purvue. I will limit my remarks to an over-
view of those considerable research efforts.

Since my appearance here on Septemnber 15th of last year, the VA has agreed by
interagency agreement signed January 13th and 14th that CDC be provided the re-
sources and authority for the design, implementation, analysis and scientific inter-
pretation of the Epidemiology Siudy mandated by Congress under Section 307 of
Public Law 96-151, as amended.

The Office of Management and Budget has approved the hiring of personnel by
CDC for fiscal year 1983 for these purposes. The preparation of a protocol for the
study is well underway.

Data collection for the CDC Birth Defocts Study will be completed by the end of
this year with preliminary analysis expected shortly thereafier. The representative
from CDC will provide the commitiee with much greater detail on these topics.

Similarly, the CDC/NIOSH Dioxin Registry o? U.8. Production Workers is pro-
ceeding on schedule.

The establishment and maintenance of an International Registry of similar work-
ers in other countries appears feasible.

The National Institute of Environmental Health Sciences will meet with the prin-
cipal investigator from the International Agency for Research on Cancer, as well as
a scientific advisory group, on May 20th, The purpose of the meeting will be to
decide whether to begin work on development of the actual international registry
and of a protocol for an epidemiclogy study derived from cohorts obtained from the
vegistry. It is anticipated this will be approved. This registry will be compatible with
the NIOSH Dioxin Registry, thus improving the numerical power of mortality and
other data.

The National Cancer Institute is conducting a case control study of lymphoma
and soft Lissue sarcoma Lo test the association between the use of herbicides and the
incidence of lymphoma and soft tissue sarcoma among agricultural applicators in
Kansas. The interview phase of this study is 50 percent complete and should be 100
ptgrcent complete by the end of September with final resuits expected by the spring
of next year.

Addit?onal studies are being conducted in the States of Minnesota and Jowa where
insecticides are generally applied simultaneously with herbicides te corn and other
crops. A similar case control design is being employed in these areas to compare
pesticide exposures in general among cases of leukemia and lymphoma and suitable
controls. Although information will be obtained on herbicide use, we may not be
able to separate possible effects of exposure to herbicides alone from those exposed
;»0 htiré%zi:ides and other pesticides. Results of these studies should be available in
ate .
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The Veterans Administration is engaged in a number of studies on Agent Orange
exposure and the Vietnam experience. For instance a mortality study ia well under-
way to analyze and compare death rates and cause-of-death between veterans with
service in Vietnam and comparable veterans who did not serve there. Also, VA is
planning a study of Identical Twins in which one twin served in Vietnam and the
other did not. VA expects to have its protocol completed, including peer review, by
October. As you know, the VA is enga(fed in other registry and research work, in-
cluding the Agent QOrange Registry and dioxin-in-fat-tissue studies. The representa-
tive from the Veterans Administration will elaborate on these topics shortly.

The mortality data from the Air Force Ranch Hand Study will be released soon.
Data should be available for e‘stu]:’]ic release after review by the advisory committee
next month. It will be followed with morbidity data later this year. Air Force Gener-
al Murphy Chesney will be providing detailed testimony on this today.

Fina 13, following the recent department of James Stockdale, Chairman of the
Agent Orange Working Group, Kae Rairdin has been appointed Acting Deputy
Under Secretary for Intergovernmental Affairs and Acting Chaijrperson of the
Working Group.

Secretary Heckler is seeking a permanent replacement to fill these important po-
sitions. Having served with Mrs. !ggckler on this committee, you know, I am sure, of
her ieenuine and long-standing concern about this issue and the fact that as a
metnber of the Cabinet, she considers it to be a high priority.

In the meantime, research, the oversight of research, contacts with members of
Congress, the public, and the veterans groups and the general flow of information
has continued on an uninterrupted basis.

I appreciate the opportunity to provide this introduction and would be happy to
respond to any questions.

TestimoNvy BY Dr. Vernon N. Houx, Director, CENTER FOR ENVIRONMENTAL
HearrH, CENTERS FOR DiseAsE ConTroL, PusLic HEALTH SERVICE, DEPARTMENT OF
HeartH aND HUMAN SERVICES

Mr, Chairman and members of the Subcommittee, I am Dr, Vernon N. Houk, Di-
rector, Center for Environmental Health (CEH), Centers for Disease Control (CDC),
Atlanta, Georgia. I am accompanied by Dr. J. David Erickson, Director of CEH's
Agent Orange Projects and Dr. William E. Halperin, Chief of the Industrywide Stud-
ies Branch, the Division of Surveillance, Hazard Evaluation and Field gtudies, Na-
tional Institute for Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH), CDC.

1 am pleased to be here this morning in resggnse to your request for testimony
regarding the plans for the Centers for Disease Control's conduct of the epidemiolog-
ical study mandated by Public Law 96-151 as amended, regarding Agent Orange
and the work CDC’s NIOSH has done in evaluating the healt%l of workers who may
have been rt;:époaed to dioxin, the major toxic contaminent of Agent Orange.

I appea before this Subcommittee as Chair, Science Panel, nt Qrange
Working Group on September 15 of last year. Since the matter of CDC's involve-
ment in the egidemiology study was menticned at those hearings, CDC began con-
sideration of the issue well before the Administrator of Veterans Affairs asked HHS
to consider this ibility. CDC had determined as early as the first week of Octo-
ber that, if called upen and provided with appropriate resources, it could design and
conduct a scientifically sound study. On October 22, the HHS Assistant Secretary
for Health, Dr. Edward N. Brandt, met with the VA’s Medical Director, Dr. Custis,
to begin discussions about transferring responsibility for the study to CDC.

On October 27 I asked Dr. Paul Wiesner, Director of the Chronic Diseases Division
and also Assistant Director for Medical Affairs of the Center for Environmental
Health, to assign staff and resources to start work on development of a scientifically
acceptable protocol outline along the lines of other epidemiological investigations
conducied over the years at CDC. Dr. J. David Erickson agreed to chair a task grou
of experienced medical epidemiologists and biostatisticians from among CDC staff.
They were aided by a VA senior staff person loaned to us to give the CDC group
first hand information about the VA's grevious work in this area. The task group
held its first meeting on November 1, 1982, During the first few days of November
its members traveled to several cities to meet on the subject with the Army, Air
Force, and National Institutes of Health fersonnel, and with developers of the
UCLA proposed protocol which had previgusly been submitted to the VA.

I must say that I am proud of the energetic manner in which our scientific team
attacked the task of developing a pretocol outline. By November B, the CDC task
group was meeting daily working to complete the protocol outline, which was sab-
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mitted by Dr. Brandt to the Veterans Administration on December 6. The outline
we proposed included two separate but related investigations: one to evaluate the
possible long-term health effects of exposure of U.S. ground forces to Agent Orange;
the other to make un assessment of the possible health effects of service in Viet-
nam. The protocol outline calls for the participation of 30,000 veterans, comprising
five cohorts—or groups—of 6,000 each. Three of these five cohorts will provide data
for the “Agent Orange” study and the three cohorts will be made up as follows: one
cohort of veterans who served in areas of Vietnam where herbicides were used and
who were likely exposed; a second cohort of veterans who, though serving in areas
of Vietnam where herbicides were used, were unlikely to have ex ; and a third
cohort of veterans who served in areas of Vietnam where herbicides were not used.
Data from the fourth and fifth cohorts will be used in the other investigation of the
possible health effects of the *'Vietnam Experience”. Of the two cohorts in this re-
lated study one will comprise Vietnam-era veterans who served in Vietnam; the
other will be made up of veterans who served during the same years, but in other
parts of the world.

Each of us two concurrent studies will have three major components. First, a mor-
tality assessment to determine which veterans may have died since being dis-
charged and the cause of the death; second, a health interview and; third, a compre-
hensive medical examination and laboratory assessment. This third component—the
examination and laboratory work—will be provided to 2000 men from each of the
five cohorta. Although both of the concurrent studies will have several other fea-
tures in common, the sampling plan, timetables, and some of the health outcomes
measured in the interview and medical examinations will differ between the two
studies. They are designed to angwer related but different questions of importance
to Vietnam veterans and their families,

Because of the particular concern that Vietnam velerans may be at increased risk
for contracting certain cancers, particularly soft tissue sarcomas, we have since pro-
posed an additional study of this problem and its relationship if any, to service in
Vietnam. This addition has been approved by the Assistant Secretary for Health as
a critical third element of the Agent Orange Epidemiology Study and has been
recommended by PHS to the VA for funding. .

The choice of veterans for inclusion in the various study cohorts will derive from
review of military records from the Vietnam era. Considerable work with records
from Vietnam has already been done in consultation and cooperation with the De-
partment of Defense (primarily staff of the Army Agent Orange Taek Force) and the
White House Agent Orange Working Group. CDC has assigned a staff member to
work full time with the Army Agent Orange Task Force. We continue to be pleased
with the energetic and dedicated work of the Army Agent Orange Task Force under
the able leadership of Mr. Dick Christian.

In approving the Interagency Agreement with the Public Health Service on Janu-
ary 13, the VA accepted the Agent Orange Exposure, as well as service in Vietnam
studies concept, and committed to provide $3 million to CDC and to initiate action
to obtain ONFB approval for 28 full-time staff positions during fiscal year 1983 for
the beginning phases of the studies, including the development of a complete re-
search protocol. Since early November a small Agent Oran‘ge Projects statf within
the Center for Environmental Health has been preparing for the planned studies.
We are now in the process of recruiting the appropriately qualified professional and
support staffs for the continuing formative ang implementation phases of the stud-
ies. CDC ig scheduled to have complete protocols, including one for our proposed soft
tissue sarcoma and lymphoma case-control study, ready for peer review and neces-
sary licg and budget clearances by the end of May 1983.

In late January and early February, 1983, Drs, Wiesner and Erickson called sever-
al of the largest veterans’ organizations to seek their advice and to describe the in-
vestigations we intend to crursue. During this same time, they also met with staff
members of the House and Senate Committees on Veterans' Affairs. In addition, on
May 2 Drs. Wiesner and Erickson held an update briefing for representatives of
about 15 veterans’ organizations.

As required by Public Law 96-151, the CDC protocol outline has been reviewed by
the Office of Technology Assessment of the Congress. During the first week of
March, Mr. Chairtnan, you and other Congressional leaders should have received
OTA’e favorable report on the protocol outline. OTA Director John Gibbons’ cover-
ing letter notes the concurrence of the OTA Agent Orange Review Advisory Panel
with the proposed studies as outlined by CDC and states that, “The two studies to-
evether address the questions of greatest concern to veterans and their families:

hat, if any, are the health effects of 1) exposure 1o agent Orange, and 2) service in
Vietnam, which may have included exposure to Agent Qrange, other chemicals,
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drugs, and other factors in an exotic environment?"' OTA has only one serious reser-
vation with CDC's plan. OTA feels that our proposed timetable, which calls for com-
pletion of our studies at the end of 1987 is rather optimistic. | agree. But CDC will
make every effort to meet that timetable.

On April 19, the HHS Assistant Secretary for Health, Dr. Edward N. Brandt. Jr.,
at the request of VA and OMB, submitted to the VA a budget estimate and justifica-
tion for the CDC-recommended Agent Orange and Vietham Experience epidemiolog-
ical studies. Resources for the activity will be appropriately sought through the Vet-
erans Administration appropriation, This budget proposal estimates expenditures
and staffing needs during Fiscal Years 1984-87.

The VA has agreed to review and submit expeditiously our budget proposal to the
Office of Management and Budget to ensure that the fiscal year 1984 hudget is
amended to include specific funding for the studies.

In addition to these proposed studies to be carried out under Public Law 96-151 as
amended, CDC is currently conducting, with support from the Veterans Administra-
tion and the Department of Defense, a case-control epidemiologic study to determine
whether Vietnam veterans may have a higher risk of fathering children with hirth
defects. The study "‘cases’” are the families of babies born with major birth defects
during the years 1968-30 in metropolitan Atlanta and who have been registered by
CDC's Metropolitan Atlanta Congenital Defects Program. Study “controls™ are fam-
lies of babies without defects who were born in the Atlanta area during the same
time pertod and identified through State of Georgia birth certificates. This study is
designed to include the families of about 5.400 case babies and 3,000 control babies.

The major objective of this study is to determine whether an unusgually high pro-
portion of fathers of babies born with defects served in Vietnam. This comparison
will yield an estimate of the risk of fathering a child with a defect for Vietnam vet-
erans relative to that risk for non-veterans. Because information about other poten-
tial risk factors for birth defects will be gathered, this study will permit an evalua-
tion of their contribution, both in Vietham veterans and in the population at large.
Data collection is scheduled to be completed by the end of this year, with prelimi-
nary analysis to be accomplished shortly afterward.

In addition to these studies either proposed or under way in CEH, NIOSH is con-
ducting studies of the health effects of exposure to dioxin. Since 197%, NIOSH has
been investigating the possible link between dioxin exposure and health effects in
workers occupationally exposed to diexin-contaminated products. The results of this
research may be applicable 1o non-workers exposed to dioxin including residents of
communities near hazardous waste disposal sites containing dioxir and among vet-
erans of the Vietnam conflict. In 1979, NIOSH began work on a registry of United
States production workers who were potentially exposed to dioxin during the syn-
thesis or formulation of substances contaminated with dioxin. These substances in-
clude such commonly used products as trichlorophenol; 2,4,5-trichlorophenoxy acetic
acid (2,4,5-T), the herbicide which was one compoenent of Agent Orange; and pen-
tachlorophenol, a wood preservative,

After completion of the registry, our first research task will be to compare the
causes of death in these workers to the causes of death in the U.S. population. Some
of these workers had chloracne. 1t is generally recognized that chloracne is an indi-
cation that there has been definite exposure, so we will examine the health out-
comes of workers with chloracne separately.

We ex to include about 6,000 workers in the study. As of May 1, 4,000 have
been included in the registry. Enroliment will be completed by December of this
year. We plan to have all information relating to the status of these workers collect-
ed and analyzed by March 1985, well before the fina! results of the Agent Orange
Epidemioclogy Study will be available.

NIOSH is exploring other uses of the worker registry, including studies of certain
illness and problems with reproduction ameng persons exposed. A decision to pro-
ceed with these Kinds of studies depends on scientific feasibility and availability of
resources,

Since most of the workers ineluded in the NIOSH registry were exposed during
the period 1940-1970, we expect to be able to find those diseases with long periods of
latency. However, we propose to continue to evaluate the health status of these per-
sons at 5 year intervals into the future.

There are also workers exposed to dioxin in other countries. The production work-
ers in these facilities constitute a valuable study group. A contract was awarded to
the International Agency for Research on Cancer (IARC) by the National Lnstitute
for Environmental Health Sciences INIEHS) to establish and maintain an interna-
tional register of persons exposed to phenoxy acid herbicides and contaminants, par-
allel to the NIOSf;—}Ie registry. In December 1982, Dr. Patricia Honchar, on detail from
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NIOSH to IARC, completed the feasibility assessment for this project. Cohorts from
more than 20 production facilities throughout Europe and in Australia and New
Zealand were evaluated to determine their suitability for epidemiologic study.

In addition to the above studies, NIOSH continues to examine reported associ-
ation between dioxins and disease in occupationally exposed workers. In 1977, cases
of soft tissue sarcoma were reported among Swedish lumberjacks who had previous
exposure to phenoxy acid herbicides. This clinical observation led researchers in
Sweden to conduct two separate epidemiologic case control studies which showed in-
creased risk of soft tissue sarcoma. Subsequently, four independent small studies in
the U.S. were reported to show no association between soft tissue sarcoma and work
exposure to dioxin. However, when data from the 4 studies (which include only 3
cases with soft tissue sarcoma) were combined, the association nated in the Swedish
studies was corroborated. Later, four additional persons who worked at 2,4,5-T pro-
duction facilities were reported to have soft tissue sarcomas. At NIOSH, work is cur-
rently underway to gather pathologic specimens and the work histories for all seven
cases. NIOSH will evaluate the histories of exposure, and the pathology will be re-
viewed by the Armed Forces Inatitute of Patholegy. The goal is to gain an under-
standing of any common characteristics which may exist among the sarcoma cases
and to focus medical expertise on the guestion of the legitimacy of grouping diffey-
ent types of sarcomas.

We feel that information suggesting an association of soft tissue sarcoma in
humans and exposure to dioxin-contaminated products is accumulating. Careful epi-
demiologic analyses are needed. The question of an association of sarcomas and ex-

psure to phenoxy acids and chlerophenols is being addressed in the NIOSH Dioxin

istry mortality study, and would be addressed by the JARC study. In addition

other studies, such as case control, are now being proposed and being conducted.
Epidemiologic studies like these will further delineate the association.

In summary, we are proceeding with all deliberate speed on the Agent Orange
and Vietham Epidemiol Study. The Birth Defects Study, studies of dioxin ex-
posed workers in the Ugyand other countries, continued study of the soft tissue
sarcoma issue, combined with the results of other studies, some of which you are
hearing about today, should help provide answers to the questions we all seek.

Mr. Chairman, that concludes my formal remarks. My colleagues and I will be
happy te answer any questions you or other members may have.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES,
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY,
Washington, D.C., May 16, 1883,
Hon, G. V. (SoNNY) MONTGOMERY,
Chairman, Committee on Veterans' Affairs,
House of Representatives, Washington, D.C.

Dear Mr. CHAIRMAN: Attached are responses to questions you submitted for Dr.
Vernon Houk, Director, Center for Environmental Health, Centers for Disease Con-
trol to be included in the May 3 hearing record of the Subcommittee on Oversight
and Investigations.

Please Jet me know if 1 can be of further assistance.

Sincerely yours,
THomas R. DONNELLY, dT.,
Assistan! Secrelary for Legislation.
Attachment.

GQuestion. After the Centers for Disease Control study has started, when will infor-
mation be available on the mortality assessment of the study cohorts?

Anawer, We estimate that the release of the mortality study analysis will be
about 41 months after the start of the study.

Question. Do you plan any interim reports on the overall study prior 10 the sched-
uled completion date?

Answer, This decision has not yet been made, but probably will be made during
the scientific peer review of the completed protocel. There are both advantages and
disadvantages to interim reports, Certainly, we recognize that there will be interest
in the study results, and we want to share significant facts as scon as we can. But in
any epidemiologic study—more s0 in one this large—there is questionabie wisdom in
announcing any “result” before all the data have been collected and analyzed, Also,
the process of preparing interim reports may actually delay completion of the study.
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TESTIMONY OF CONGRESSMAN Tom DowNEY

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee, I appreciate the opportunity to ad-
dress the committee this morning regarding the Agent Orange issue which is of
vital concern to all of us. My colleagues and I have been besieged with questions
and letters over the last few years from Vietnam veterans who are concerned about
exposure to Agent Orange. A question asked by many, “What is the Veterans Ad-
ministration doing to help me?,"” has become an embarrassing one to answer. The
Vietnam veteran has tried turning to his government for answers and help and has
been sorely disappointed.

The following is a section of a letter from a Vietnam veteran who is seriously ill
due {0 exposure to Agent Orange. He describes how dissatisfied he was by the atti-
tude of the doctor and the Agent Orange examination program itself.

“To me it was rather farcial to take laboratory work done months earlier which
had, in no way, anything to do with Agent Orange * * " s0, once again, the Ameri-
can people, in the institution of the Veterans Administration, gave me a slap in the
face for my service in Vietnam * * * I found this program conducted by the VA
amidst great ballyhoo and publicity to be ineffectual and as insulting was as their
so-called ‘Jobs-for-Vets' program of a few years ago. In an effort supposedly designed
to reconcile the Vietham vet with the rest of American Society, the major instru-
ment for that reconciliation is doing more to widen the rift than to heal the wound!
* * * The prognosis is [or me is 55 percent chance of Living tive years it | take che-
motherapy and experimental drugs * * * could all of this been caused by Agent
Orange? Apparently, we'll never know because the VA doesn’t want te find out * *
* Bitter? Angry? Hurt? You bet your life T am!! I don’t want their damned money, 1
just want a little help now that I am totally disabled and for my wife and children
to have the satisfaction of knowing what really, in the final analysis, killed me! If
not Agent Orange, fine, but let’s not support anymore farces under the aegis of the
VA such as the Agent Orange Screening!

I think this is a very sad commentary. This particular veteran has expressed the
sentiment of many Vietnam veterans who are disgruntled, disappointed and disgust-
ed with the inertia exhibited by the Veterans Administration. The Vietnam veter-
ans have pressing questions about chemicals with catch code names—questions
about chemicals that can defoliate a jungle, but supposedly not harm young men—
questions about the lack of real concern by an agency that should be offering help.

The VA reminds me of a mishehaved child sitting in the corner with a dunce cap
while the Congress must act the part of the stern teacher with a switch. At this
point, the VA should be black ancﬂalue. If T were issuing the VA a report card it
would receive an “A" for procrastination and an “F” for concern .m'ulJo action for
Vietnam veterans.

Obviougly, the VA hae chosen not to pay attention to Congress' complaints re-
garding their program. I realize that the subject of the hearing today is the status of
federally conducted Agent Orange studies, however, my testimony will focus on the
General Accounting Office report I released in October of 1982, entitled, “VA's
Agent Orange Examination Program: Actions Needed to More Effectively Address
Veterans’ Health Concerns.” I wae both pleased and saddened to release the report.
I was pleased that we in Congress have taken steps to try to solve the problems
facing the Vietham veteran and have confirmed veterans' charges against the VA. 1
was saddened that the VA, the government agency which is supposed to abide by its
motto, “To Care for him who shall have borne the battle,” cares very little.

I requested the GAO study over two and one half vears ago. It covered 14 VA
hospitals nationwide and according the the study, only one of the 14 medical centers
adequately followed up on the health problems reported by veterans. The study
clearly indicates that the VA has made little effort to insure that the problem is
addressing veterans' health concerns. The study confirmed veterans complaints that
medical examinations were incomplete. 891 veterans responded to the GAQ ques-
tionnaire and 55 percent were dissatisfied with their Agent Orange examination.
Those veterans said the following: 49 percent were dissatisfied with the interest VA
personnel took in their health; 47 percent were dissatisfied with the thoroughness of
the questions VA personnel asked them; 49 percent were dissatisfied with the oppor-
tunity they were given to ask guestions; 57 percent were dissatisfied with the com-
pleteness of their agent orange examination; 80 percent were dissatisfied with the
amount of information VA provided them about agent orange; 83 percent were dis-
satisfied with the amount of information they learned from VA about their own ex-
posure to agent orange; 57 percent were dissatisfied with the amount of fime VA
spent on their examinations.
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Another major finding was that the examinations were performed by physicians
not always knowledgeable about the potential health effects of agent orange. The
GAO report states that “* * * about half of the environmental physicians expressed
negative attitudes about the Agent Orange program * * * environmental physicians
at six of the facilities told us that the program was of little or no use * * *.”

The study further confirmed that little or no attempt was made to provide veter-
ans with information on Agent Orange. Although about 500,000 Agent Orange infor-
mation pamphlets were distributed to VA facilities, less than 9,000 were sent out-
side the VA system. A $29,000 video tape on the Agent Orange examination pro-
gram was mentioned by only two of the 112 VA facilities contacted in a GAO tele-
phone survey. Only 4 of the 10 facilities provided the pamphlets to veterans who
contacted the facility and only 24 of the 112 VA medieal facilities GAQ contacted by
teleghone survey told GAO ahout the pamphlet.

The sad irony is that the Vietnam veteran has literally been searching for an-
swers while the VA practically hides its outreach materials. The GAO found that
various states had established dioxin commissions and outreach programs which
have proved very effective, unfortunately, the VA just doesn’t follow suit. The VA
doesn’t reach out to those very veterans it was established to help.

Finally, the VA’'s $3 million computer registry, containing the names of 89,000
Vietnam veterans examined for symptoms of Agent Orange exposure is of little or
no use. The registry is not meeting two of its primary objectives: (1) providing infor-
mation on health problems experienced by Vietnam veterans and (2) facilitating
follow-up with veterans if necessary. Why 18 it not meeting its own objectives? The
study found that “the regiatry does not contain the specific diagnoses of health prob-
lems and lacks adequate exposure and medical history information to compare vet-
erans’ health problems with their degree of exposure to agent orange or the area of
Vietnam where they served.” As far as is usefullness for follow-up, the VA did not
include veterans addresses in the registry and the GAO found that at half of the
facilities visited, the locator cards did not contain adequate information for follow-
up with veterans.

In a letter dated, November 10, 1982, T requested that the Administrator of the
Veterans' Administration discontinue the Agent Orange registry. The Administra-
tor responded by claiming that the registry had . . . proved to be useful mecha-
nism * * *" and that “Full information can be retrieved from the medical center’s
files and the computerized registry provides an index to the additional data there.”
I find this highly questionable since the GAQ found that “* * * only 8 of the 14
medical facilities visited maintained adequate information in the locator card
system to permit follow-up contact with veterans, and none of the facilities routine-
ly updated the locator card files * * *.” Generally, the cards were missing the veter-
ang’ city, state and zip code. It is serving no purpose and approximately, $892,000.00
is spent annually on the registry. This money could be used in another area of the
program. I am once again stating that the registry should be discontinued.

There is no question that that integrity of the Veterans Administration is at
stake. How many times must the VA be reprimanded? How often does the VA need
to be reminded of it function and responsibilities? How often must Congress ride on
its tail? When will it start to move? Inliave at this point it is up to the Congress to
see that the VA is forced to improve its Agent Orange Examination Program. The
Committee can be instrumental in providing oversight to see that the recommenda-
tions of the General Accounting Office are fully imilemented by the Veterans Ad-
ministration. The GAO report 18 a fine piece of work and could greatly benefit the
Vietnam veteran, The VA continually promises that it will provide adequate care
for these Vietnam veterans and yet the results just don't materialize.

There is no question that additional hearings are necessary so that the VA is
forced to answer to this committee for its lackadaisical attitude. If the recommenda-
tions of the report were implemented, the Agent Orange Examination Program
could benefit a great number of Vietham veterans and perhaps restore some faith in
the program. We cannot expect the Vietnam veteran to believe that the Veterans
Administration is adequately assisting him if we don't believe it ourselves.

In conclusion, I offer the following points: First, the Agent Orange registry is a
mockery and should be discontinued. g:condly, there is a tremendous need for im-
proved outreach and coovdination of outreach materials. These materials should be
reaching these veterans. Finally, I believe t..at oversight by the committee will
insure this and also whether or not the examit.atic Progr. 't has been improved to
meet the health care needs of the Vietnam veterans exXpused to Agent Orange, Once
again, { refer to the letter by the Vietnam veteran from Virginia who is right when
he says that the way this program is being run widens the rift vather than heals
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the wound. The VA's inaction and unresponsiveness just adds salt to the wound.
The time for healing is now.

StaTEMENT oF DowaLp L. Custis, M.D., Crier MEDICAL DIRECTOR, DEPARTMENT OF
MEDICINE AND SURGERY, VETERANS ADMINISTRATION

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee, Good morning. We are pleased to
have the opportunity to apﬁar before this Committee for the purpose of reporting
to you on the efforts of the Veterans Administration (VA) to resolve the health care
issues raised by veterans’ exposure to the defoliant Agent Orange. Many of the con-
cerns first ew:ressed by some Vietnam veterans in 1978 continue to be voiced across
the nation. We have listened to these concerns and in my opinion have been respon-
sive to them. It is my belief that a great deal of progress has been made in the edu-
cation of our health care staff to recognize the extent and depth of these concerns in
order that, a8 an agency, the VA ¢an respond in a manner which reflects compas-
sion, respect and understanding. The establishment of a special office with the De-
Fartment of Medicine and Surgery to deal expressly with these concerns, the identi-
ication of resources, the initiation of policy, and annumber of Agent Orange-related
research activities demonstrate evidence of our commitment *o provide health care
to Vietnam veterans while, simultaneously, seeking answers to the waany complex
acientific and medical questions raised by the Agent Orange issue.

Every effort has been made to implement fu.., the provisions of significant legis-
lation related to Agent Orange, specifically, Public Law 96-151 enacted December
20, 1979, and Public Law 97-72 enacted November 3, 1981. The transfer, on January
14, 1983, of the epidemiology study to the Centers for Disease Control (CDC), was
implemented at the request of this Committee in order to expedite this most impor-
tant effort. We will review, later in this testimony, the details of the interagency
agreement effecting the transfer of the study from the VA to CDC.

Today we will report on the status of the VA's Agent Orange Registry program
and on a variety of Agent Orange related research efforte that we have undertaken
or supported, including a Vietnam Mortality Study; the Vietnam Experience Twin
Study; a Retrospective Study of Dioxins anc{ Furans in Adipose Tissue and 10 spe-
cially-solicited research projects by the VA scientific research staff. Other efforts in-
clude funding support of the Center for Disease Control’s Birth Defects Study; devel-
opment of a series of monographs for medical and scientific professionals on Agent
Orange and related subjecis; an update of the analysis of the scientific literature as
o(l;iginally mandated by Public Law 96-161; activities of the Chloracne Task Force
(CTF); the development of a special Vietnam service indicator in the VA’s Patient
Treatment File (PTF); Agent Orange-related activities of the Department of Veter-
ans Benefits; cooperation and coordination with other federal and state bodies; and
finally, comments on international research on Agent Orange and other phenoxy
herbicides.

We are hopeful that our current extensive research program and the activities of
other researchers will assist in our search for answers to the question of adverse
health effects of exposure of Vietnam veterans to Agent Orange. We assure the
Committee that our interest in obtaining these answers will continue on behalf of
concerned Vietham veterans and their families.

In furtherance of this objective, I am happy to report that Dr. Han K. Kang, for-
merly a senior epidemiologist with the Occupational, Safety and Health Administra-
tion (OSHA) in the Department of Labor has joined the Agent Orange Projects
Office. Dr. Kang is responsible for managing the technical aspects of Agent Qrange-
related research, and will report directly to Dr. Barclay M. Shepard, Acting Director
of the Agent Orange Projects Office. Dr. Kang received a doctorate in public health
in 1976 from the University of California at Los Angeles. Subsequently, he had 3
{(ears of post-doctoral training and research in environmental epidemiology. Dr.

ang's responsibility at OS included evaluating health hazards, especially
cancer hazards in the workplace; estimating the magnitude of health risks and haz-
ards under various exposure conditions; and developing occupational standards and
guidelines to minimize these hazards. He is the author of numerous scientific papers
conicerning environmental and occupational health. Dr. Kang has been a member of
national and international expert panels, and has played a key role in the prepara-
tion of major publications such as the report of the Federal Panel on Formaldehyde,
Workplace Exposure to Asbestos, and monographs on the evaluation of the cancer
risk of chemicals to humans.

In addition, we now have the full-time services of Dr. Patricia Breslin, a well
known and highly experienced biostatistician who joined the Research Section of
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the Agent Orange Projects Office on April 17, Dr. Breslin has had considerable ex-
perience in the areas of health care research, cancer epidemiology and occupational
ﬂ:idemiology. She has served on the faculty of the Deﬁartment of Bistatistics at the
niversity of Pittaburgh Graduate School of Public Health. Dr. Breslin joined the
Government as senior statistician in the Office of Occupational Health Surveillance
at the National Institute of Safelgr and Health Administration (NIOSH). In 1976 she
became Director of the Office of Statistical Studies and Analysis at the Office of Oc-
cupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA). In 1979 she was made Deputy
Director, Directorate of Technical Support at OSHA, the last post held before join-
ing the Agent Orange Projects Office.
has been made in the full staffing of the Research Section of the Agent
Orange Projects Oifice. An administrative officer and clerical support staff have re-
cently joined the Research Section. We are now in the process of recruiting an expe-
rienced statistical programmer to support Dr. Kang and Dr. Breslin in their Agent
Orange-related research activities.

AGENT ORANGE REGISTER

Monitorinﬁi:nd improving the Agent Orange Registry is a continuing effort. The
Registry is only systematic way the VA has to identify Vietnam veterans who
are concerned about possible adverse health effecta of exposure to nt Orange. In
Al 1982, we issued DM&S Circular 10-82-154 entitled, “Agent Urange Registry
Follow-up Activities”, This circular instrueted every VA health care facility to
send Vietnam veteran who had already received an Agent Orange examination at
that facility, a letter from the Administrator, a name and address update code sheet
and a brief health questionnaire. The purpose of this effort was to obtain the cur-
rent address of each veteran and to update cur files for future mailouta of Agent
Orange related information to Registry participants. The veteran’s name and cur-
rent addreds is being entered into the computerized regiatry. The computerized ad-
dress list, will be updated as changes occur in the veteran's address.

The VA continues to examine concerned Vietnam veterans as participants in the
Agent Qrange Rem program provided at all VA medical centers and outpatient
clinics. Since the lishment of the Registry in 1978 over 106,000 veterans have
received an initial examination. In addition, 24,500 follow-up examinations have
been provided. During the first quarter of fiscal year 1988, 6,422 initial examina-
tions mmtr]e1 performed and we are now averaging 2,100 Agent Orange-related entries
per month.

Last month a completely revised Agent Orange i code sheet used to re
information into the registry, was distributed to all VA th care facilities. This
revised reporting system records the veteran's current address, exposure experience,
the specific diagnosis of any health problems detected during the examination and
related information, This revision will significantly improve the VA’'s ability to ac-
quire more precise medical information on registry participants.

PUBLIC LAW 97-72

Mr. Chairman, since the enactment of Public Law 97-72 in November 1981, the
Veterans Administration has fully upheld both the apirit and the letter of that law.
Final guidelines providing specific instructions to implement this legislation have
been sent to all our health care facilities. In addition, we have been monitering the
effect of this legislation through a system of reports in which we record and docu-
ment the number of outpatient visits and hospital admissions resulting from the im-
plementation of that law.

Our review of these reports indicates that approximately 9,400 Vietnam veterans
were admitted for inpatient care under this law during the period F‘ebruaéz' 1982 to
February 1983. During this same period there were approximately 363,000 Agent
Orange related outpatient visits to VA health care facilities. It should be pointed
out that this initial analysie may not accurately reflect the true impact of this legis-
lation in future years. For this reason, we will continue to monitor closely future
reports and will keep you fully informed as to the impact of this legislation on VA
health care resources.

MONOGRAPH SERIES

Mr. Chairman, it is our conviction that we must explore every approach that will
aggist us in providing up-to-date technical information of use to our health care
staff. For this reason, we are preparing a series of scientific monographs for the edu-
cation and training of these individuals. Steady progress is being mm'fe in this effort.
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The monograph series is desighed to provide useful scientific information on envi-
ronmental factors that may have affected the health of military personnel serving
in Vietnam. It is our belief that these monographs will be of such quality as to be
useful to non-VA health care professionals as well. When completed, the mon
graphs will be given wide distribution both within and outside the VA. :

ree internationally recognized experts have agreed to prepare monographs. Dr.
Ronald D. Hood, University of Alabama, will author a monograph on Agent Blue.
Birth Defects, Genetics Screening and Counselling will be the aubject of a meno-
graph prepared by Dr. Annemarie Sommer, Children’s Hospital, éolumbus. Chio.
The monograph on Human Exposure to Phenoxy Herbicides will be prepared by Dr.
Terry Lavy, University of Arkansas. All three authors are well along in the prepa-
ration of their respective monographs.

Final plans for a monograph on Chloracne are being made, Dr. Donald L. Bir-
mingham, Clinical Professor of Dermatology, Wayne State University, Detroit,
Michigan, will serve as senior editor of this monograph. Dr. Birmingham is a widely
recognized expert in occupational diseases of the skin. It is anticipated that all four
monographs will be published and available for distribution by mid-1984.

LITERATURE REVIEW UFPDATE

In April of this year, we Initiated action to update the report mandated by Public
Law 96-151 entitled “Review of Literature on Herbicides, Including Phenoxy Herbi-
cides and Associated Dioxina”. The contract was awarded to Clement Associates
Inc., on April 22, 1983,

In addition to an analysis of the scientific literature which has appeared since the
previous effort, the updated report will focus on a number of more recent studies
which pertain to herbicide exposure and health problems in humans, It is estimated
that well over 500 such publications will be reviewed. Our goal is to be able to pub-
lish and distribute the updated report in early 1984.

I aggure you Mr. Chairman that the VA will continue to provide Congress and
oqhgrshwith current and complste information on the scientific literature dealing
with this issue.

PATIENT TREATMENT FILE VIETNAM SERVICE INDNCATOR

The Patient Treatment File (PTF) maintained by the Department of Medicine and
Surgery is a large computerized data base which records informastion on all veterans
admitted to VA medical centers. As such it has great potential for epidemiclogical
research related to Vietnam veterans as well as other veteran groups. A major prob-
lem with this automated file, however, is that until July 1982, there has been no
entry to identify those veterans who actually served in Vietnam. Effective July 1,
1982, the VA implemented procedures to record Vietnam in-count@ service in the
PTF on all applicable veterans discharged from VA hoapitals. The Vietnam service
indicator will enable the VA to obtain specific diagnostic information on this group
of veterans.

_In addition, a Vietnam in-country service indicator how hag been added to the pa-
tient data card and will enable medical center personnel to eagily identify veterans
with Vietnam service. This will assist us in assuring that Vietnam veterans are
properly entered into the Agent Or Registry and, in applicable cases, will iden-
tify veterans from whom tissue samples should be forwarded to the Armed Forces
Institute of Pathology to be included in their Agent Orange Tissue Registry.

In order to determine the kinds of medical problems for which this group of veter-
ans have, in the past, been receiving care as inpatients in VA medical centers, we
selected a random sample of 15,000 Vietnam era veterans from the PTF. On Sep-
tember 29, 1982, the VA s'fned a contract with JAYCOR to review the military per-
sonnel records of these individuals for the purpose of establishing Vietnam service
status. This will enable the VA to compare the health care needs of those veterans
who actually served in Vietnam with those who did not.

EPIDEMIOLOGICAL STUDY OF AGENT ORANGE

As you will recall, Public Law 96-151 directed the VA to design and conduct an
epidemiological study of veterans who were exposed in Vietnam to dioxins con-
tained in herbicides, including Agent Orange. The VA entered into a contract with
the University of California at Los Angeles (UCLA) to design a study, and subse-
quently, four reviews of the resulting protocol were accomplished, three of them by
groupe outside the VA,
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It became evident during the protocol development that it would be difficult and
time-consuming to determine who had been exposed to Agent Orange in Vietnam,
and who had not. At one time it was believed that such a determination would be
virtually impossible, but subsequent diligent efforts by the Army Agent Orange
Task Force under the able leadership of Mr. Richard Christian have made it likely
};"Z?:lt groups or cohorts of exposed and unexposed Vietnam veterans can be identi-

i

The VA contracted with UCLA to design the study and asked non-VA experts to
review the design because veterans had expressed doubts about the VA's objectivity.
In addition, several members of Congress suggested that the credibility of the study
would be enhanced by transferring the conduct of the study to the Centers for Dis-
ease Control. Subsequently, formal requests and recommendations for such a trans-
fer were submitted to the VA by many members of Congress including the leader-
ship of this committee.

Consequently, on January 14 of this year, the VA and the Depariment of Health
and Human Services entered into an interagency agreement implementing such a
transfer. We have agreed to provide $3 million to CDC in fiscal year 1983, and we
have supported a request for additional personne! for CDC to initiate the study. The
fiscal year 1983 request for personnel resources has been approved by the Office of
Management and Budget (OMB). A request for an amendment to the fiscal year
1984 budget to support this important research effort is in final preparation.

The CDC has agreed to complete the study as expeditiously as possible, but not
later than September 30, 1987. The CDC has been and will remain completely inde-
pendent of the VA in designing and conducting the study. They have told us that
they are considering two parallel studies, one to examine the effects of exposure to
Agent Orange and the other to determine if there are any adverse health effects of
Vietham service in general. The latter is in keeping with the option provided in
Public Law 97-72.

CDC BIRTH DEFECTS STUDY

In addition to the epidemiology study recently transferred irom the VA, the Cen-
ters for Disease Control is proceeding in its conduct of a birth defects study in the
Atlanta, Georgia, area. This study, which is centered around CDC's Metropolitan
Congenital Defects Surveillance program, is continuing to be jointly funded by the
VA, Department of Defense and the Department of Health and Human Services.
Since 1968, the surveillance program has collected information about babies in the
Atlanta area with birth defects. Tt is our understanding that CDC expects to com-
plete the study by December 1983 or January 1984, We are continuing to monitor
with great interest their progress in this significant research effort.

VIETNAM VETERAN MORTALITY STUDY

The Vietnam Veteran Mortality Study is a major research effort to assess mortal-
ity patterns of U.S. servicemen of the Vietham era. The researchers will examine
the information contained in the records of 60,000 decreased veterans who served
during the Vietnam era (1964-75), The study will compare mortality patterns and
gpecific causes of death between those who served in Vietnam and those who did
not.,

After selecting the study population from VA files, we are simultaneously collect-
ing two types of information about each veteran: military service data from the mil-
itary personnel record and medical data from the death certificate. The VA has let
contracts for both of these activities and the work has begun.

We expect to complete the study by the end of 1984.

VIETNAM EXPERIENCE TWIN STUDY {VETS)

Progress is being made in the conduct of a Vietnam Experience Twin Study
(VETS) of approximately 500 pairs of twins, where one twin served in Vietnam
during the period of Agent Orange spraying and the twin sibling did not serve in
Southeast Asia. The VETS project, conceived by a team in the VA Medical Center
in St. Louis, will utilize a battery of psychologic, physiologic, and biochemical tests
to measure the psychological and physical impact, if any, of service in Vietnam on
Vietnam veterans. The VETS project team, which includes a principal and two co-
investigators, has been brought into the VA Cooperative Studies Program and as-
signed to the Cooperative Studies Center in Chicago. The transfer to the Center in
Chicago was in recognition of the need to receive full support and asasistance from
the VA research group most experienced in conducting large-scale investigations.
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Methods for selecting, finding, and recruiting the twins are being explored. Proto-
cols are being prepared and will include pilot tests to validate the proposed physical
and psychological measures employing identical and fraternal twins. Participants in
the pilot tests will not be included in the study itself. An approved final protocol is
anticipated in the next 4-5 months. The resulls of the study, however, cannot be
expected for two to three years. We believe that this study will provide the most
sensitive means for detecting subtle effects of Vietnam service and will therefore
Jjustify the necessary considerable expenditure.

RETROSPECTIVE STUDPY OF DIOXINS AND FURANS IN ADIPOSE TISSUE OF VIETNAM ERA
VETERANS

A small feasibility study conducted in 1979-80 showed that dioxin or TCDD can be
detected and measured in adipose tissue removed (rom Vietham-era veterans. The
study revealed, however, that there was no clear relationship between levels of
TCDD and Vietnam service, exposure to Agent Orange, or the current health status
of the individuals from whom the tissue samples were obtained. In addition, nothing
is known about the levels of TCDD in the general U.8. population. The VA and the
Envirenmental Protection Agency have recently entered into an interagency agree-
ment to determine the levels of TCDD in adipose tissue from a selected group of
U.S. males of the Vietnam era veteran age group.

Since 1970, the EPA has collected fat samples for its National Human Adipose
Tissue Study, These statistically representative samples from the general population
have been analyzed for vesidues of selected pesticides and toxic chemicals. Addition-
al tissue samples are still available for analysis from some individuals, including
555 men born between 1937 and 1952. Many of these veterans served in the military
during the Vietham-era and some served in Vietnam. Our study will measure the
levels of TCDD in these samples and will thereby indicate whether service in the
military and especially in Vietnam has had an effect on the TCDD levels. Work has
already begun to obtain details about the 555 men, including their military service
and other occupational history. We are also in the process of designing and validat-
ing a uniform method of analyzing for TCDD. The analysis is both exacting and
time-consuming and we therefore do not expect final results until 1935,

CHLORACNE TASK FORCE ACTIVITIES

The VA's Chloracne Task Force (CTF) is charged with reviewing and evaluating
skin conditions resumbling chloracne, coordinating special examinations of veterans
with questionable skin conditions, developing a chloracne examination protocol and
preparing a monograph on chloracne.

Dr. A. Betty Fischmann, Chairperson of the Task Force, has reconstituted its
membership and is organizing a cooperating group from among the 24 full-time and
29 part-time VA dermatologists.

Two Task Force members have recently conducted an extensive review of the
chloracne literature to assist in the indentification of significant diagnostic criteria
as the basjs for a dermatology quiestionnaire which is nearing completion. This
questionnaire will provide the basis for computerizing pertinent medical informa-
tion obtained from a special standardized examination of veterans claiming skin
conditions related to Agent Orange exposure.

A detailed view of the records of more than 3,000 Vietnam veterans who had filed
compensation claims with the Departiment of Veterans Benefits resulted in a group
of 14 veterans who might possibly have chloracne. Using the services of three
prestigous non-VA clinics, 13 of these 14 men have received a complete medical ex-
amination including a special dermatological evaluation. The remaining veteran, al-
though located, has not yet been examined due to his remote job location. None of
the 13 veterans examined was diagnosed as having chioracne although one man
save 2 history of exposure that suggests that he might have had chloracne. His con-

ition is being evaluated further. Eleven of the 13 veterans, including the one still
being evaluated, were diagnosed as having some form of acne. The other two had
non-acneform skin diseases.

SPECIALLY SOLICITED RESEARCH ACTIVITIES

During Fiscal Year 1982, the VA's Medical Research Service approved 1} new
Agent Orange research studies that investigate the impact of low levels of exposure
to Agent Orange on basic biological processes,

These studies will include an analysis of the effects of the components of Agent
Orange on liver cell function on neurabehaviorial functions and the biochemistry of

23-542 0 - 83 - 10
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chioracne. The studies are in addition to three studies still underway, two of which
were initiated prior to the special solicitation.

We exﬁect to initiate in l‘fi‘;ccal Year 1984 another 10 studies dealing with possible
adverse health effects of exposure to Agent Orange and related herbicides.

DEPARTMENT OF VETERANE BENEFITS AGENT ORANGE INITIATIVES

Mr. Chairman. The Department of Medicine and Surgery's efforts on behalf of
Vietnam veterans concerned about the possible adverse health effects of exposure to
Agent Orange are compiemented by the activities of the Department of Veterans
Benefits (DVB). We are trying to assure that all DVB personnel who deal directly
with the public are knowledgable regarding the issue of Agent Orange and are capa-
ble of providing accurate infermation and timely assistance to veterans.

The %A maintains a nationwide toll-free telephone service and personal interview
units in all 58 regional offices. When asked about Agent Orange, veterans benefits
counselors conduct personal or telephone interviews to inform individuals of the ex-
amination and treatment program provided by the VA. In addition, VA medical
center personnel frequently refer veterans to the appropriate DVB regional office
for help and guidance in l{ling a claim, If a service-connected disability is alleged,
benefits couneelors provide assistance in filing a claim for VA compensation.

Veterans Services Division personnel also respond to invitations from various
groups to discuss Agent Orange-related issues and to appear on television or radio
talk shows to provide information on the VA’s Agent Orange program, These indi-
viduals are generally available as a community resource in distributing information
on VA benefits and services. We view these activities as essential to maintaining
communication between the VA, Vietnam veterans and the general public.

INTERNATIONAL ACTIVITIES

A number of research studies that are important for the Agent Orange and other
Vietnam veteran issues are in progress or have been completed in other countries.
Within the past few months, the Australian “Case Control Study of Cogenital
Anomalies and Vietnam Service {Birth Defects Study)”, the New Zealand Study on
“Cogenital Defects and Miscarriages Among New %.ealand 2,4,5-T Sprayers”, the
Finnish Study “Mortality of 2,d4-Dichloro-phenoxyacetic Acid and 2,4,5-Trichloro-
phenoxgaoetic Acid Herbicide Applicators in Finland” and the “New Zealand Soft
Tisaue Sarcoma Case-Control Study’ have been reported.

The Australian Birth Defects Study examined records from 34 hospitals and 4 cy-

enetic laboratories to identify infants born with birth defects. Matched healthy
infants born in the same hospitals served as controls. The fathers of cases and con-
trols were identified in 8,517 instances and their service in the army was deter-
mined as well as their duty in Vietnam. In all, 127 of the fathers of children with
birth defects were Vietnam veterans, while 123 Vietnam veterans fathered normal,
healthy, children, There was no evidence that service in Vietnam increased the risk
of fathering a child with a birth defect.

In New Zealand the manufacture and spraying of phenoxy herbicides has exposed
workers to these chemicals. Both spragers and ﬁwir wivea are expoged during field
s?raying and in the purchase and handling of chemicals. A survey of 989 profession-
al sprayers and a control group of agricultural contractors determined the numbers
of births, cogenital defects, and miscarriages. The sprayers had 1.19 times as many
children with birth defects and 0.89 times the number of miscarriages. The differ-
ences are not statistically significant. Exposure of the wives also had no detectable
reproductive effect,

A Finnish study reported the death rate in a group of 1,926 men who spra]yed the
ingredients of Agent Orange. The herbicide exposure was generally rather low but
the deaths among the sprayers were only 54 percent as great as exgected from expe-
rience with the general population. Later the death rate rose to 81 percent of the
expected value. The sprayers experienced no increase in their death rate from
cancer. Types of cancers among them were what would be expected in the general
population.

rlier, two case-control studies by a single Swedish group were conducted among
forestry and agricultural workers. A total of 52 cases of soft-tissue sarcoma and 20
“eontrol” men without sarcomas were selected from registers in nerthern Sweden
and the iatients or their survivors were questioned about earlier occupational expo-
sures to herbicides and other chemicals. A similar study of 110 cases and 219 “con-
trol” men was made in southern Sweden where farming is more commeon than for-
estry. It was then ible to calculate the relative risk of contracting the sarcomas
among those thought to have been exposed and those deemed not to have been. The
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calculated risk was about & times as great for exposed men. The investigators con-
cluded that “Exposure to phenoxy acids and chlorophenols might constitute a risk
factor in the development of sofi-tissue sarcomas.” Several cases of soft tissue sarco-
ma have been reported among chemical workers in the United States. '

Scientists in New Zealand have just released the results of their studies on soft
tigsue sarcoma. A case-control study of 102 men with soft tissue sarcomas and 306
matched controls reveal no higher rate of sarcomas among men working in agricul-
ture and forestry where phenoxy herbicides have been used extensively for many
years. The findings so far suggest that exposure to phenoxy herbicides has no sig-
nificant role in the development of soft tissue sarcomas.

In Italy, a case-control study of approximately 100 cases of soft tissue garcoma and
300 controls is currently underway. The Danish Cancer Registry in Copenhagen will
study the cancer incidence in more than 3,500 persons emploved in the production
of phenoxy acid herbicides. Data from both studies are due within this next year or
50.

In summary, studies from several countries around the world are providing re-
sults that will contribute to resolving the Agent Orange controversy. OQur VA scien-
tists will continue to interact with the international scientific community and will
keep this committee informed on the progress of their research.

SUMMARY

Mr. Chairman, as you can see, the VA’s approach to resolving the Agent Orange
issue is multi-faceted. We stress the continuing delivery of health care to eligible
Vietnam veterans, special Agent Orange-related examinations within the Agent
Orange Registry, significant research related to Agent Qrange and other phenoxy
herbicides, updating the review of worldwide scientific literature, professional staff
education, and finally, information activities designed to make Vﬁetnam veterans
?)nd the general public aware of the latest known scientific information on Agent

range.

We will continue to pursue scientific answers to the health care issues generated
by Agent Orange. In the meantime, we will continue to deliver quality health care
to eligible Vietnam veterans and attempi to allay fears as well as we can by direct
contact with concerned veterans and their organizations. Further, we will continue
to cooperate closely with other organizations such as the Agent Orange Working
Group (AOWG), the Congress, State legislative offices, and various Agent Orange
comrmissions at the state level, In all our efforts, we strive to serve the needs of
g:etnam veterans concerned about the possible adverse health effects of Agent

ange.

That concludes my statement, Mr. Chairman. I will be pleased to answer any
questions you or members of this Committee may have.

VA's COMMENTS oN THE GAO Avucust 6, 1932, Drarr ReporT, “IMPROVEMENTS
NEEDED IN VA's EFFoRTS TO ASSIST VETERANS CONCERNED ABOUT AGENT ORANGE"

GAQ recommends that the Administrator, through the Chief Medical Director:
“Require VA medical facilities to include the agent orange examination program in
the facilities’ systematic internal review process.”

I agree, but the systematic internal review program leaves to each medical center
the selection of specific facility activities to review at any one time. However, the
systematic external review program (SERP) reviews the quality assurance of each
center's ambulatory care program, In the future, the SERP medical team member
who surveys ambulatory care will review the agent orange program, using detailed
criteria being developed. This will accomplish the intent of this recommendation.

“Require environmental physicians to review all examination records to insure
that examinations are thorough and documented.”

This recommendation is already implemented. The January 14, 1981, Department
of Medicine and Surgery (DM&S) Circular 10-81-12 directed environmental physi-
cians to advise veterans of the results of their examinations. This was further
stressed in a February 11, 1981, Chief Medical Director's Information Letter, IL 10-
81-5. Environmental physicians were directed to inform veterans of the positive or
negative findings of their examinations. The physicians prior review of each medical
record is implied in these directives,

“Direct VA physicians to document all findings for every factor described in VA
agent orange program circulars for each examination.”



136

I do not concur. The VA is revising the agent orange examinations reports and
any specific directions concerning documentation are better given at the time the
new procedures are distributed.

“Reemphasize to VA medical facilities the importance of providing examinations
in a timely mannet.”

1 believe the problem of excessive delays in %Fem orange examination schedules
no longer exists. For the past two years, the VA has continually em hasized the
need for prompt examinations. For the past 17 months, each facility has been re-
portigg its monthly backlog and the number of agent orange examinations per-
formed. From May through July 1982, only one facility reported a backlog of 50 or
more scheduled examinations. This facility is Anchorage, Alaska, where there is a
regional office but no hospital or clinic, and where it is difficult to obtain contract
physicians to examine the waiting veterans. Other VA facilities have short waiting
lists and almost always perform examinations within 30 days after application.

“Direct VA medical facilities to insure that examining physicians are familiar
with available information on agent orange and that they provide this information
to all veterans examined.”

I agree, and examining physicians will be kept informed of all agent crange infor-
mation as it becomes available. This will be accomplished through national confer-
ences, information mailings, and telephone conferences. I do not agree, however,
that this information should be provided to all veterans examined as it would serve
no useful purpose. Examining physicians should discuss agent orange matters with
the veterans as questions are raised, not as a routine to be followed as part of each
examination.

“Discontinue the computerized agent orange registry, and maintain a list of veter-
ans who have had agent orange examinations.”

I do not concur in this recommendation. The agent orange regisiry is the most
extensive list of Vietnam veterans concerned about agent oranse‘ The registry pro-
lg'.ram is an important mechanism for assisting the VA in detecting significant

ealth trends in the Vietnam veteran population, which may differ from that of the
%eneral population. Descriptive information generated from the registry enables the

A to review those areas requiring more in(?&pth medical/scientific analysis. It also
serves as an index to the medical record of the examination where more detailed
information can be sought as needed.

“Revise the exposure history form, and use the standard VA physical examination
and medical history forms to gather more thorough mformation during agent
orange examinations.”

1 concur. The March 19, DM&S Circular 10-81-54 stipulated that standard physi-
¢al examination forms (VAF 10-7978 or SF 506) be used to document the physical
examination. This circular is being revised and will include instructions on the use
of physical examination forms. The exposure history forms (VAF 10-20681 and VAF
10-9009) used in the agent orange examination process are also being revised. It is
anticipated that these revised forms will be available to VA health care facilities in
December 19382.

“Direct VA medical facilities to inform veterans seeking agent orange examina-
tions of the examination's limitations.”

I concur. It should be noted that among other activities, the VA prepared and
widely distributed the pamphlet, “Agent Orange Information for Veterans Who
Served in Vietnam—Questions and Answers.” This pamphlet specifically addresses
the limi{ations of the examination. During education oonf:arenoee on agent orange in
September 1979 and May 1980, environmental physicians were instructed to explain
the purpose of the examination process to veterans receiving examinations. In meet-
ings with the administrative staffs of veterans’ organizations, the VA explained the
nature and limitations of the examination. The media was also informed of the
intent, nature, and limitations of the examination. During an August 13, 1982, na-
tionwide conference call, the health care staff was instructed to define the limita-
tions of the a%ent orange examinations. These instructions wili be outlined in a
Chief Medical Director letter scheduled for publication this month.

“Develop and analyze statistics on the kinds of skin problems, tumeors, and birth
defects identified in agent orange examinations and make this information available
to veterans.”

I do not concur because the intent of this recommendation, as stated, is not clear.
Information gained by the development and analysis of such statistics cannot be
used to compare the prevalence of illnesses or disabilities reported by Vietnam vet-
erans with that of the general population because the veterans examined are a self-
selected population ans more prone to report real or perceived illnesses or disabil-
ities. Any statistical report of prevalence, based on registry data, implies a much
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%reaber prevalence among all Vietnam veterans than is actually the case and, there-

ore, might serve to unduly alarm veterans without providing useful information.
“Emphasize to VA medical facilities the importance of sending tissue samples

akian from veterans who served in Vietnam to the Armed Forces Institute of Pa-
clogy.”

I concur, The VA continues to emphasize the importance of the special registry at
the Armed Forces Institute of Pathology (AFIP) and will continue to urge VA medi-
cal facilities to send pathological material obtained from any Vietnam veteran. A
Chief Medical Director's letter reemphasizing the need to provide tissue samples to
the AFIP will be released this month. In addition, this issue was addressed during
an August 13, 1982, nationwide conference call with VA field staff. Earlier VA ac-
tivities relating to the AFIP include:

1. A series of Circulars (10-78-234, 10-79-239, 10-80-229, and 10-82-37) was issued
directing all VA medical centers to send this material to the AFIP. On March 16,
1981, and March 22, 1982, this matter was discussed during nationwide conference
calls with environmental physicians, chiefs of staff, and other key officials at all VA
medical centers.

2. Tranecripts of meetings of the VA Advisory Commitiee on Health-Related Ef-
fects of Herbicides are sent to all environmental physicians.

3. The AFIP registry was publicized in the July 1981 issue of Agent Orange Bulle-
tin.

4. Earlier poor cooperation in submitting tissue samples was due in large part to
the lack of an indicator for in-country Vietnam service in VA medical records. This
deficiency was corrected by DM&S Circular 10-82-128.

“Hasten the development of a monograph on agent orange’s potential for causing
birth defects.”

On June 30, 1981, I approved funds for a monograph series. One of the series,
“Birth Defects/Genetic Screening,” was funded for Fiscal Year 1982. The VA is now
seeking a consultant who will prepare that monograph which has a December 1983
completion date.

“Direct VA medical facilities to provide available information to veterans con-
cerned about birth defects, or refer veterans to genetic counseling services for such
information.”

I concur, and this recommendation has been implemented. On September 18,
1981, the VA forwarded a copy of the March of Dimes Birth Defects Foundation
publication, “Birth Defects/Genetic Services,” to all environmental physicians. This
publication provides an international directory of genetic counseling services. The
physicians have been instructed to refer veterans to one of those facilities when
they request special genetic testing and counseling.

“Direct VA medical facilities to follow up with all veterans examined before Janu-
ary 1981 to insure that they have been provided their examination results.”

I do not agree that veterans should be provided with the results of examinations
performed before January 1981 because of their grestly diminished usefulness, In
fact, receiving belated results 1 or 2 years after examination could unduly alarm
veterans. The results of agent orange examinations are permanently maintained in
the veterans’ medical records and are available to veterans upon request.

“Direct all VA medical facilities to offer to send the agent orange pamphlet to all
telephone callers interested in information about agent orange, and advise callers
when and where they can see the agent orange film.

I concur. This recommendation 1e being implemented. The pamphlet, “Worried
About Agent Orange?” is now out of date and out of print. However, three new
pamphlets were distributed early this year and c¢over a broad spectrum of informa-
tion on this important issue. More will be published and made available to all VA
facilities. During August and September conference calls, VA medical centers were
advised to used the agent orange pamphlets and film. These calls will be followed by
a Chief Medical Director’s letter reminding them of the recommended actions.

. "[J'se public service announcements to advise veterans of VA agent orange serv-
ices.

I concur. The VA is using public service announcements (PSA's) to provide an in-
formation and education program for concerned Vietnam veterans and their fami-
lies. An automated mailing list was developed for the agent orange registry and in
June, over BO000 letters were mailed to veterans on the registry, along with 2
newly published information pamphlets. Mailings will continue as additional publi-
cations are issued.

Other outreach efforts will include, but not be limited to, a display and franked
card return mailers at all VA facilities, print and broadcast PSA's directing inter-
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ested parties where to write or call for more information on agent orange. and addi-
tional fact sheets and an agent orange digest.

Any national broadcast campaign of PSA's must be carefullv handled. Because
most PSA's are of 20- and 30-second duration, the message must be necessarilv con-
fined. This has the potential of creating “unrealistic expectations’” which (GAQ ix
concerned about. A national broadcast campaign could also create unwarranted fear
and anxiety among veterans and dependents, especially since there is no conclusive
scientific or medical evidence establishing a cause-and-effect relationship between
exposure to agent orange and health problems in Vietnam veterans.

“Work with State veterans affairs offices to advise veterans of available VA agent
orange services,”

I concur, and assure you that the VA takes seriously its obligation to keep veter-
ans informed of what is presently known about agent orange and what services are
available to veterans. Information material, including news releases. is distributed
to VA facilities, to veterans organizations, to the media, the Congress. and upon re-
quest. All testimony before the Congress by the VA and other agencies is made part
of public record. VA officials deliver speeches, participate in public seminars, pews
media interviews, and other forums dealing with agent orange. The VA has pro-
duced a video tape for showing, as appropriate, internally. and externally. Although
attempts are made to inform every Vietnam veteran about agent orange, the exami-
nations, and provigions for treatment, it should be noted that the VA has an espe-
cially difficult task because there is no list of the 2.4 million veterans who actually
served in Vietnam.

GAQ also recommends that: “the Congress consider whether d3 US.C. 301y
should be amended to extend the period of retroactive compensation for agent
orange-related disability claims to the date the claim was filed.”

I believe this recommendation is premature. At present. the best available scien-
tific evidence fails to indicate that exposure to agent orange or other herbicides used
in Vietnam has caused any long term health problems for veterans. A number ol
research efforts are underway, or will soon commence, that will attempt to shed
more light on this difficult question. [ believe it is more appropriate to await the
results of the various studies before making any recommendations for changes in
the laws regarding the effective date of an award of disability compensation bene-
fits, Changing the law before the scientific uncertainties are resolved could create
false expectations in veterans justifiably concerned over the issue.

Mav 5, 1983,
Mr. Joun MurpHY,
Genera! Counsel, Veterans’ Administration,
Washington, D.C.

Dear JouN: During the May 3rd Subcommittee on Oversight and Investigations
hearing on Federally conducted Agent Orange studies, the Honorable Dan Burton
questioned the Veterans' Administration witness, Dr. Donald L. Custis, concerning a
possible Agent Orange outreach program. Mr. Burton suggested using existing data
files, including those of the Internal Revenue Service, to develop a mailing list ol
Vietnam era veterans.

I am aware of the limitations imposed by certain Federal statutes in obtaining
private information from governmental and other sources, and request that you pro-
vide the Subcommittee with a historical prospective of Veterans' Administration ac-
tivities in this regard, including citings of precedents.

1 also request that you provide alternative Ageni Orange information outreach
methodologies which may be considered if statutory limitations prohibit or preclude
timely development of the address list suggested by Mr. Burton.

The information you provide will be included in the May 3rd hearing record.
Therefore, 1 request that you provide the information to me by close of business on
Monday, May 16, 1983.

lncerely.
G. V. (SonnYt MONTGOMERY,
Chairman.
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VETERANS ADMINISTRATION,
OFFICE oF GENERAL COUNSEL,
Washington, D.C., Julv 3. 1982
Hon. G. V. (SoNNY) MONTGOMERY,

Cha%man, Committee on Veterans' Affairs. House of Representatives. Washington.
Xid

Dear Mr. CHalaman: I am pleased to respond to your inguiry of May 5, 1983, con-
cerning development from existing data files (including those of the Internai Reve.
nue Service {(IRS) of a mailing list of Vietham Era veterans to be used for Agent
Orange outreach purposes.

As you indicated in your letter, the Veterans Administration iVA) had identified
the existence of legal impediments to obtaining veterans’ addresses from the IRS for
use for Agent Orange purposes. However, special legislation was recently enacted
which now permits VA use of IRS addresses for Agent Qrange notification purposes.
Notwithstanding this legislation, however, practical considerations have prevented
the Agency from utilizing this authority. Specifically, no list of those who served in
Vietnam exists as records created by the Department of Defense and the VA were
not maintained and have not been kept or organized in a manner which permits
reasonable access to the identities of the estimated 2.5 million servicemembers or
former servicemembers who served in Vietham.

Since Lhe creation of a list of that magnitude would be extremely difficult and
time-consuming, the VA has followed a carefully developed Agent Orange outreach
program targeted at those veterans who have expressed an interest in Agent
Orange issues. In this connection, the VA has mailed information to Vietham veter-
ans whe have received examinations as part of the Agency's Agent Orange registry
program. In addition, an Agent Orange newsletter is being prepared for quarterly
distribution. Expenditures in this area were approximately $19,000 in fiscal year
1982 and $68,000 in fiscal year 1983 (to date).

Additionally, the VA for several years has been engaged in public forums de-
signed to educate veterans service organizations, state groups, local media and
others, of the Agency’s actions, the results of Agent Orange research and available
services regarding Agent Orange. In this regard, it should be noted that the VA has
met with the various state Agent Orange commissions/committees on numerous oc-
casions and has provided them periodically with materials which have been used in
intensive outreach efforts. Moreover, Agent Orange pamphlets and an award-win-
ning VA film on Agent Orange (which cost $42,000 to produce) have been distribut-
ed and are available to Vietnam veterans and their families at VA facilities. To
assist VA DM&S field employees in educating Vietnam veterans about Agent
Orange, bimonthly telephone conference calls are initiated from VA Central Office.
Finally, a videotape presentation aimed primarily at VA employees is expected to
be completed late this summer (at an estimated cost of $20,000) on the Agency's
Agent Orange Policy and Procedures. This videotape, which could be easily updated
as future developments occur, will be made available to the VA's 172 hospitals and
58 regional offices.

You may be assured that VA outreach efforts will fully invelve print and broad-
cast public service announcements on carefully prepared factual data on Agent
Orange and available VA services. In doing so, we will also continue to be concerned
that these informational efforts not create undue anxiety or fear among veterans
and dependents on the one hand or unrealistic expectations on the other hand. It is
expected that over $50,000 will be spent in these efforts alone in fiscal year 1983,

t should be noted that, as of April 30, 1983, over 114,000 veterans have been ex-
amined and entered into the Agent Orange registry, with an average of 2,100 new
examinations being performed each month. Moreover, during the period of Febru-
ary 1982 to February 1983, over 369,000 outpatient visits and 9,400 hospital admis-
sions to treat veterans exposed to Agent Orange under the provisions of Public Law
97-72 occurred at VA health care facilities.

\ The Agency’s continuing specific objectives of Agent Orange outreach are as fol-
ows;

(1) To make known the availability of appropriate medical care under Public Law
97-72, 1o all those veterans who beheve their health has been adversely affected by
Agent Orange;

(2) To make known that the VA continues to give Agent Orange Registry exami-
nations; and

(3) To report on the progress of all research being conducted in the area of Agent
Orange and dioxins.
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The VA remains open to any further suggestions of approaches to outreach.
Sincerely yours,
Joun P. MuRrpHy,
General Counsel.

VETERANS ADMINISTRATION,
OFFICE UF GENERAL COUNSEL,
Washington, D.C., June I, 1987,
Hon. G. V. (SoNNY) MONTCOMERY,
Chairman, Commtittee on Veterans' Affairs,
House of Representatives, Washington, D.C.

Dear MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you for affording me this opportunity to respond to
your questions regarding the status of Federally conducted Agent Orange studies.

I am pleased to provide you with the enclosed answers. If additional information
ig desired, do not hestitate to contact me.

Sincerely,
Joun P. Mureny,
General Counsel,
Enclosure.

Question. I. In your testimony, you indictate that approximately 9,400 Vietham
veterans were admitted for inpatient care under the provisions of Public Law 97-72.
What were the major disabilities of those veterans?

Answer. To date, only the running count of Vietnam veterans admitted under the
provisions of Public Law 97-72 is reported. No separate diagnostic record of these
patients is maintained centrally.

Question. 2. In light of the many possible means of exposure to Agent Orange, can
a truly accurate differentiation between groups of exposed and unexposed Vietnam
veterans be accomplished?

Answer. The Veterana Administration, the Department of Defense, and the Agent
Orange Working Group's Scientific Panel have spent many hours with the person-
nel of the Army Agent Orange Task Force in order to develop methods for defining
and determining the extent of exposure of ground troops to Agent Orange in Viet-
nam. It is now thought that a satisfactory, if not completely accurate, separation
can be made between veterans who were likely to have been heavily exposed and
those who were unlikely to have had contact with the herbicide. A group with an
intermediate likelihood can also probably be identified.

Question. J. In addition to exposure to herbicides, what are other possible causes
of chloracne?

Answer. A wide variety of organic chemicals containing chlorine and bromine can
cause chloacne. Representative groups include the polychlorinated naphthalenes, po-
lyhaloginated biphenyls {PCBs and PBBs), polyhalogenated dibenzofurans, hexchlor-
odibenzo-dioxins, tetrachloredibenzofurans, tetrachloroazoxybenzene, tetrachloroazo-
benzene, and tetrachlorobenzenes. Some of these chemicals, especially PCBs and
PBB, are widely used throughout the United States.

Question §.A. What determines whether or not an individual is placed on the
Armed Forces Institute of Pathology Agent Orange Tissue Registry?

Answer. The Armed Forces Institute of Pathology (AFIP) serves as a reference
laboratory for diagnosing anatomical specimens obtained by biopsy or at autopsy.
The pathologists at AFIP do not themselves perfortn the autopsies or biopsies. An
individual is placed in the Agent Oranfe Tissue Register when a biopsy or autopsy
tissue sample is sent to AFIP and labeled as having come from a veteran claiming
exposure to Agent Orange or known to have served in Vietnam. Pathologists at VA
hospitals have been reminded frequently to submit any and all specimens from
Vietnam veterans to AFIP for inclusion in the Register.

Question 4.B. How many names are on this Registry?

Answer. There are now about 1,500 Vietnam veterans on the Agent Orange
Tissue Register, Of them, some 1,200 have had their specimens examined in detail
without any unexpected results. The tvpes of disease and their relative numbers
were Lhe same as those encountered in any similar population.

Question 5. Will the revised Agent Orange Registry code sheet be distributed to
those persons who were previously put on the Registry, i.e. before the revised code
sheet was developed?

Answer. To recode all prior registry participants onto the new code sheet would
be a massive undertaking for all VA health care facilities and would remove valua-
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ble personnel involved in direct patient care to perform clerical functions. Informa-
tion on selected cases will be recoded as the need arises and will be implemented
gradually so as not to interfere with patient care.

STATEMENT oF MAJ. GEN. MURPHY A, CHesNey, U5, Air Force

Major General (Dr.) Murphy A. Chesney is Deputy Surgeon General, Headquar-
ters U.S. Air Force, Washington, D.C.

General Chesney waz born November 29, 1927, in Knoxville, Tennessee, and grad-
uated from Central High School near Knoxville in May 1945. He attended the Uni-
versity of Tennessee in Knoxville from September 1945 to March 1947 in an acceler-
ated premedical program and graduated with a bachelor of science degree. He
earned his doctor of medicare degree in June 1950 from the University of Tennes-
see’'s College of Medicine in Memphis.

In June 1951 he completed his internship at the Scott and White Hospital,
Temple, Texas, and entered private practice as a surgeon and general practitioner
at the Edgar Renegar Clinic in Levelland, Texas. A year later he moved to Rule,
Texas, where he was associated with Dr. Robert E, Cotbert in the Rule Clinic. While
residing there he was elected president of the Chamber of Commerce.

General Chesney entered the U.S. Air Force in April 1955, attended the basic ori-
entation course at Gunter Air Force Base, Alabama, and later the primary course in
aviation medicine at Randolph Air Force Base, Texas. In July 1955 he was assigned
to the dispensary at Portland International Airport, first as Right surgeon and then
a'als comrlnander, I\-(Ie continued to serve as commander when the dispensary became a

ospital.

From July 1957 to June 1960, General Chesney was at the University of Tennes-
see in Memphis where he completed his Air Force-sponsored residency in internal
medicine. During his last year of residency he was appointed chief resident and was
involved in several research papers and projects. He also served as a university in-
structor from July 1959 to June 1960, For the next two years he was assigned as
chief of hospital services and chief of the Department of Internal Medicine at Home-
stead Air Force Base, Florida.

In May 1362 he transferred to the dispensary at Ben Guerir Air Base, Morocco, as
commander. He moved to the 401st Tactical Hospital, Torrejon Air Base, Spain, in
June 1963 and became deputy commander and senior internist.

General Chesney returned to the United States in June 1966 and assumed com-
mand of the 852nd Medical Group at Castle Air Force Base, California. He became
director of professional services in the Office of the Command Surgeon Pacific Air
Forces, in August 1969 and deputy command surgeon in June 1972. While there his
duties included supervision of the professional medical care of patients, including
combat-injured personnel, intratheater aeromedical evacuation, flight medicine, pre-
ventive medicine and bicenvironmental engineering, medical aspects of the drug
abuse program and the prisoner of war release program.

In AE;il 1973 General Chesney transferred to Headquarters Tactical Air Com-
mand, Langley Air Force Base, Virginia, as command surgeon. He moved to Brooks
Air Force , Texas, in August 1978 where he was commander of the Air Force
Medical Service Center. General Chesney served as director of medical plans and
resources, Office of the Surgeon General, Headquarters U.S. Air Force, from Janu-
ary 1980 until assuming his present position in April 1980.

General Chesney is a member of the Society of Air Force Physicians, Society of
Air Force Flight Surgeons, International Congress of Medical Astronautics and Cos-
monautics and Phi Rho Sigma Medical Fraternity. He is a fellow of the American
College of Physicians, fellow of the American College of Preventive Medicine and
diplomate of the American Board of Internal Medicine.

e holde the aeronautical rating of chief flight surgeon. His military decorations
and awards include the Distinguished Service Medal, Legion of Merit, Meritorious
Service Medal, Air Force Commendation Medal, Air Force Qutstanding Unit Award
ribbon, National Defense Service Medal and the Spanish Cross of the Aeromedial
Order of Merit, 2nd Class.

191'_;153 was promoted to major general February B, 1979, with date of rank July 1,

General Chesney is married to the former Mary Ann Wilson. They have four chil-
dren: Murphy A III, Charles Allen, Carol Jean and John Lowell.

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee, I am Major General Murphy A.
Chesney, Air Force Deﬁuty Surgeon General. I thank you for the opportunity to
present an update on the progress of the Air Force Epidemiologic Study of Ranch
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Hand personnel exposed to herbicides in Vietnam from 1961-71. OQur previous pre-

sentations to this Committee included information on the use of the herbicides

Vietnam, the development and peer review process of the Air Force studv design

and protocol, the process of study implementation, compliance figures. program

costs and preliminary meortality findings. The basgic pretocol and study were devel-

lc{ged and conducted at the School of Aercspace Medicine, Headquarters Aerospace
edical Division, Brooks Air Force Base, Texas.

The information that 1 will present today includes final study participation [ig-
ures, an update of the mortality study, a descri&iun of some of the types of morbid-
ity data which will be analyzed and which will be of special interest to this Commit-
tee, and the dates on which we expect the reports to he available.

The Louis Harris and Associates contract for in-home questionnaire administra-
tion to the study participants was cotnpleted on November 15, 1982, Of the 2R
subjects selected for the guestionnaire and physical examination phases of the
study, only two Ranch Handers and nine comparison subjects could not be located.
Therefore, our location rate for the baseline data base is 99.6 percent (2867/28781, 4
substantial achievement.

A total of 1,172 or 97 percent of the Ranch Handers and 1,156 or 93 percent of the
initiei 1,241 comparison subjects participated in the questionnaire. Al! comparison
subjects who declined the questionnaire and/or the physical examination were sub-
stituted with willing subjects who were equally well qualified for inclusion in the
study. Three hundred seventy-two in-house questionnaires were completed on com-
parison group substitution to maximize questionnaire and physical examinasion par-
ticipation. In addition to the study subject guestionnaire, Louis Harris and Asso-
ciates completed in-home interviews on 2,546 former or present spouses, and =4
next-of-kin to known dead study subjects. They also completed 54 telephone iner-
views on the population that refused to participate. Thirty-four Ranch Handers and
158 initial and/or control substitutes were classified as absolute questionnaire rejus-
als in the study. Forty-five percent (87/192) of these refusals stated their reason lor
refusal as “having no time or interest'’; 18 percent (35/192) were passive relusals
tlocated but totally nonresponsive), and 14 percent (27/192) refused because they felt
that participation could adversely affect their military or civilian careers. The re-
mainder of the refusal population cited factors such as job commitment (257192}, dis-
satisfaction with the military (14/192) or fear of the physical examination 12/1921
Hti\yever, ill health was cited as a reason by only two individuals, both comparisen
subjects,

One thousand forty-five (87 percent) of the Ranch Hand populauon and 940 (74
percent) of the initial comparison population participated in the physical examina-
tion. Two hundred eighty-seven comparison substitutions also completed the physi-
cal examination prior to the contract completion date on December 15, 1982, for a
total of 1,227 comparison participants. Reasons cited for refusal to participate in the
physical examination included: no time/no interest (54 Ranch Handers. 159 com-
parisons); job commitment {29 Ranch Handers, 92 comparisons); passive refusals (9
Ranch Handers and 21 comparisons) confidentiality/active duty (11 Ranch Handers,
16 comparisons), travel/distance/family considerations (4 Ranch Handers, 19 com-
Earisons); fear of the plgsica! examination (5 Ranch Handers, § comparisons);

ealth reasons (5 Ranch Handers, 5 comparisons) and dissatisfaction with the mili-
tary (5 Ranch Handers,  comparisons). Overall, the average participation rate was
815 percent, (not including the comparison substitutes) which is substantialiy
higher than the 60 percent rate cited in the study protocol. These are very high
compliance rates compared to most other major health studies and will enhance the
statistical power of our effort.

In September of last year, I presented to this Committee our initial mortality
report based on deaths occurring prior to January 1, 1982 The data that | am pre-
senting today is an update of that initial report. The mortality analysis is an on-
going process, and additional deaths will be included in subsequent reports.

As of September 1, 1932, there were 67 documented deaths in the Ranch Hand
group: 22-killed in action; 18-accidental deaths; 3-suicides; 1-homicide; 3-malignant
neoplasms, 1-endacrine, nutritional, metabolic and immunity disorder; 14-diseases of
the circulatory system, and 5-diseases of the digestive system. For the same time
period there were 235 deaths among the comparison subjects. The larger number ol
comparison subject deaths is a result of the 1:5 Ranch Hand o comparison subject
martality study design. The causes of death for this group includes: 4l-accidental
deaths; 12-suicides; 3-homicides; 34-malignant neoplasms; 2-neoplasms ol upcertain
behavior; l-endocrine, nutritional, metago]ic and immunity disorder; tis-diseases ol
the circulatory system; 11-diseases of the digestive system; 3-infectious and parasiti¢
diseases; 1-nervous system and sense organ disorder; 4-respiratory system diseases;
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2-genitoruinary system conditions and 2 ill-defined conditions. No statistically sig-
nificant differences in the crude death rates were found between the Ranch Hand
and the comparison group.

The overall survival pattern of the Ranch Hand and the comparison group was
contrasted to the 1978 U.8. white male population vital statistics. Both study groups
continue to experience significantly less mortality than equivalently aged U.S.
white males, an epidemiologic phenomenon called the healthy worker effect. This
effect iz due in part to the selection of healthy individuals for entry into the Armed
Forces as well as the availability of health care throughout their careers and retire-
ment.

The refined analyses of more than four million pieces of information currently
available will account for the effects of exposure patterns, social habits, other medi-
cal factors, family history or predisposition to specific diseases, and time spent in
Southeast Asia. We are dealing with 2,272—two and one half day long executive
physical examinations and 5,330 detailed subject, spouse, and next-of-kin interviews.
Analysis of these interrelated factors will improve our ability to properly delineate
any adverse health effects of herbicide exposure.

1 would like to outline some of the data analyses we are going to accomplish
which may give you a clearer understanding of how we will be assessing the overall
health of the study population. Those described are major areas of concern ex-
pressed by numerous lay and scientific groups and focus on target organ systems
identified in the scientific protocol. These include mortality (will be updated in all
subsequent reports), assessments of general health {perceptions of both subject and
physician}; fertility/infertility (fertility index, live birth rates, sperm counts); repro-
ductive abnormalities (birth defects, learning disabilities), cancer (organ specific
rates, soft tissue sarcomas), dematologic (chloracne, porphyria cutanea tarda); hepat-
ic (liver functions); sychologic (depression, anxiety, fatigue, anger); neurologic
(muscle weakness, coordination, reflexes); and cardiovascular (blood pressures, cho-
lesterol levels, abnermal heart sounds, electrocardiogram abnormalities). There are
many other parameters which will also be reported.

This initial round of questionnaires and physicals will form the basis for the re-
mainder of the study. Follow-up examinations will be at 3, 5, 10, 15, and 20 years.

In summary, we have concluded our initial mortality study and have presented an
update of that efiort to you today. The mortality data will be submitted to the Advi-
sory Committee for review and should be available for public release by 30 June
1983. The morbidity data (questionnaire and physical examination data) will be sub-
mitted for review and should be available for public release by early October 1983.
We estimate that approximately two months of the interim period will be required
to accomplish the necessary review and Federal Register notification for each of
these reports.

T would like to reiterate to you at this time the importance and necessity for these
data to be appropriately reviewed by the Advisory Committee before premature or
public release.

The original Scientific Panel of the Interagency Work Group to Study the Poasible
Long-Term Health Effects of Phenoxy Herbicides and Contaminants, later redesig-
nated as the Agent Orange Working Group by President Reagan in 1981, recom-
mended to the White House in August 1980, that the conduct of the Ranch Hand
study be overseen by an independent peer review group.

That recommendation was accepted and the Secretary of Defense was so directed
in September 1980. On 31 March 1981, an announcement was made in the Federal
Register by the Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) on the formation
of the Advisory Committee on Special Studies Related to the Possible Long-Term
Health Effects of Phenoxy Herbicides and Contaminants.

The charter of the Advisery Committee ie to advise the Secretary of the HHS and
the chair of the Working Group of its overaight of the conduct of the Ranch Hand 1T
Study, provide to the Air Force technical assistance and to provide oversight of
other studies when directed to do so by the Working Group. It is chaired by Dr.
John Moore, Deputy Director for the National Toxicology Program, Research Trian-
gle Park, North Carolina.

The review of data presented to the Advisory Committee will be made after appro-
priate notice in the Federal Register. This independent, scientific review is the es-
sence which lends technical validity as well as public confidence in the study.

The questionnaire and protocol were made available to the public upon comple-
tion of the physical examination phase. The following reports may be obtained from
the National Technical Information Service:
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1. USAF School of Aerospace Medicine; Technical Report SAM-TR-82-42, Epide-
miologic Investigation of Health Effects in Air Force Personnel Following Exposure
to Herbicides: Baseline Questionnaires; NTIS ID No. ADA 121285.

2. USAF School of Aerospace Medicine; Technical Report SAM-TR-82-44, Epide-
miologic Investigation of Health Etfects in Air Force Personnel Following Exposure
to Herbicides: Study Protocol; NTIS ID No. A 122250,

We will continue to work closely with this Committee, the Veterans Administra-
tion, and other Federal agencies in the resolution of the herbicide issue.

I will be happy to answer questions at this time.

WRITTER COMMITTEE QUESTIONS AND THEIR RESPONSE

Chairman MonTcomerY. Would you please provide us with the compogition of the
Advisory Committee as to scientific or medical qualifications and affiliation with the
government or private sector?

General CHESNEY. The Advisory Committee is as follows:

Dr. John A. Moore (Chairman), Deputy Director, National Toxicology Program,
P.O. Box 12233, Research Triangle Park, NC 27709; Dr. John Doull, Professor, De-
partment of Pharmacology and Toxicology, University of Kansas Medical Center,
Kansas City., MO 66103; Dr. Norton Nelson, Professor and Chairman, Department of
Environmental Medicine, New York University, School of Medicine, New York, NY
10016, Dr. Alan Poland, Aasociate Professor of Oncology, McCardle Laboratory, Uni-
versity of Wisconsin, Madison, WI 53706; Dr. Irving Selikoff, Director, Environmen-
tal Sciences Laboratory, Mt. Sinai School of Medicine, 5th Avenue and 100th Street,
New York, NY 10029; Dr. G. W, Comstock, Professor of Epidemiology, Johns Hop-
kins Research Center, Box 2067, Hagerstown, MD 21740; and Dr. Richard Monson,
Professor of Epidemiology, Harvard School of Public Health, 677 Hunnington
Avenue, Boston, MA 02115.

Chairman MoNTGoMERY, What aspect of exposure would not have been affected
by the Ranch Handers' ability to shower and clean up after a mission?

General Cuesney. The inhalation exposure would not have been affected. There is
little available scientific evidence to support or refute the contention that showering
limits or enhances the skin absorption of TCDD.

Chairman MonTGOMERY. How does the typical Ranch Hand exposure compare to
a typical ground soldier’s exposure?

neral CHEsNEY. The “typical’” Ranch Hand exposure was a repeated, direct skin
exposure to large bulk amounts of herbicide on a daily basis over a prolonged period
of time. In addition, there was a large amount of vapor inhalation. The Army is
currently reviewing the organizational records to determine the frequency of expo-
sure of ground troop to herbicides.

Chairman MonTGoMERY. Did the Ranch Hand personnel, in fact, have the oppor-
tunity to clean up immediately following the completion of a mission?

General CHEsNEY. While it is true that a change of clothes and washing facilities
were generally available at the Ranch Hand bases, informal interviews with study
participants revealed that the flight line personnei and aircrew members involved
in handling and spraying the herbicides did not normally feel compelled to shower
or change clothes immediately after each exposure. They normally finished their
workday, and then they would clean up. After each mission, the aircrews were in-
volved in extensive debriefings of the day's mission and preparations for the next
flight. They would often supervise the maintenance of the aireraft. The ground sup-
port personnel would work until the operational demands of the day were met.

Mr. Evans. Isn't it true that the National Academy of Sciences, in their critique
of your study, stated that the study lacks the statistical power to detect the “uncom-
mon disorders mentioned in the complaints of veterans” as well as for less prevalent
diseases, such as cancer, especially at this early date?

General Cursney. The National Academy of Sciences {NAS} did criticize the study
for its lack of power to detect “uncommon’ causes of death. However, this criticism
is only valid if the increased risk of disease is only low to moderate and clustering
of cases in on¢ subgroup does not occur, a fact that we do know at this point in
time. The study will detect reasonable increments in overall cancer rates. With
regard to specific cancer groups, the study hae limited capability.

Mr. Evans. Have there been any documented Ranch Hand deaths since Septem-
ber 1, 19827 If <o, have these deaths been factored into your mortality calculations?

General CHEsNEY. Both Ranch Hand and comparison group deaths have occurred
since September 1982, as can be expected in any group of 7500 men ranging in age
from 3% to 75 years. The ascertainment process for deaths used in this study is
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based upon death reports from four sources. In some instances, it may take up to six
months for a death to be reported and recorded, and notification to be received at
Brooks AFB. Thus, a fixed point in time must be selected for each mortality analy-
sigd report. We have chosen September 1 as the cutoff point in time for this mortality
update.

Mr. EvaNs. You say there have been three malignant neoplasms in the Ranch
Hand group. What specific types of cancers were involved here?

General CresneY. The three malignant neoplasms in the Ranch Hand group
were: First, one neoplasm of the Jung; second, one neoplasm of the kidney; and
third, one neoplasm of an unspecified site.

There were also 34 neoplasms in the comparison group.

Mr. Evans, Could you elaborate on the last sentence, paragraph 2, page 3 of your
testimony, where you say that there is “no significant differences in the crude death
rates”” between Ranch Hand and the cotnparison group?

General CHESNEY. The reference to “crude death rates” in the testimony is a sta-
tistical and epidemiologic assessment of the overall death experience of the Ranch
Hand and comparison groups. The “erude rate” is one standard approach to mortal-
ity analysis and compares the deaths from all causes in the groups under observa-
tion. In the Ranch Hand study, the overall death experience of the two groups was
nearly identical; any variations were of minor nature and most likely occurred by
chance alone. This is the meaning of the term “not statistically significant.”

STaTEMENT oF JOHN F. TERZANO, LE;:;:LATWE DirecToR, VIETNAM VETERANS OF
ERICA

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee, | am John F. Terzano, Legislative
Director of the Vietnam Veterans of America. [ appreciate this opportunity to
present before the Committee for the record our views on the status of the Federal
Government’s efforts to study the health of Americans who served in the U.S.
Armed Forces in Vietnam, particularly on those studies which are examining possi-
ble long-term adverse health effects as a result of exposure to Agent Orange or
other Environmental factors.

Since September 1982, some progress has been made. Limited compensation legis-
lation which urged the Congress to adopt is now being considered by this Commit-
tee. H.R. 1961, introduced by Congressmen Daschle and Bonior, and which currently
has over 150 ¢o-sponsors, is a responsible forward step and we urge the Committee
to report favorably on it.

Second, responsibility for conducting the critical congressionally mandated epide-
miological study has been transferred from the Veterans Administration to the Cen-
ters for Disease Control. That organziation has begun, with its customary profes-
sionalism and diligence, to carry out this work. We have every confidence that the
CDC, if given necessary funding and personnel resources, will do a first-rate job.
However, like many others in the veterans’ community, we are concerned because
of the amount of time that has been spent within the Administration in securing
final approval of relatively incidential logistical arrangements. We believe it is un-
acceptable that the Office of Management and Budget or any other part of the Ex-
ecutive Branch should be able, as apparantly had been the case to date, to thwart
p{oﬁr&?ls because of bureaucratic paper movement that is incidential to the mission
at hand.

We urge the Committee to question closely the commitment of the Administration
to assure a sustained high priority of funding and logistical support for this scientif-
ic work. Specifically, we believe the Committee should seek from the Administration
a clear reaffirmation that funds and personnel resources adeguate to support this,
and all other related research at the Federal level, are being built into fiscal year
1984 and fiscal year 1985 budget plans. It is unacceptable for this study to be de-
layed even one week by virtue of internal administrative jockeying between agen-
cies; it is even more unacceptable, given the Administration’s repeated public pro-
nouncements of strong support for this work, for middle and lower level budget bu-
reaucrate to frustrate the commitment of the Federal research community in accom-
plishing the mandate of Public Law 96-151.

Regarding the Agent Orange Working Group, we are confident that Secretary of
Health and Human Services Margaret Heckler, based on her long record in Con-

ess as an advocate and leader for Vietnam veterans, will place the highest prior-
ity on the Working Group. The Workinf Group cannot operate effectively without a
strong Chair of the overall Group; equally important, an experienced, commited top-
flight Federal scientist must take the reins of the scientific panel, so that the ster-
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ling effort of Dr. Vernon Houk, who has recentlv resigned the post because of ('D("'s
assumption of responsibility for the conduct of the epidemiological study, and his
predecessor Dr. John Moore, on NIEHS, can continue.

As we have stated repeatedly, VVA is fundamentally committed to the Federal
Government's research program and will continue to support it in any wav we can.
Vietnam veterans and their families and others concerned about these public health
issues are counting on the Government to pertorm creditablv. This Subcommittee
has a responsibility to assure that the Federal pledge is honorably redeemed. Unlor-
tunately, far too much time has elapsed in getting started. It would be a tragedy of
the highest magnitude if, now that progress is being made. the Federal Government
were to become complacent and adopt a business-as-usual attitude toward this criti-
cal scientific research.

Vietharm Veterans of America appreciate this opportunity to present our views for
the record.

O
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